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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
& 3 R 1

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries, collectively (the “Group”), I hereby present to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020,
revenue of approximately HK$298.2 million,

the Group reported
representing a
decrease of approximately 41.9% from the revenue of

approximately HK$513.6 million (restated) of the previous year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group reported a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$344.0
million (2019: profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$20.8 million). Such downturn of the
performance for the year ended 31 December 2020 was mainly due
to (i) the decrease in revenue of approximately HK$215.4 million,
the effect of which was partially net off by decrease in royalty,
licence and management fees of approximately HK$21.9 million and
decrease in staff expenditure of approximately HK$53.6 million
respectively, (ii) the increase in provision for impairment losses, net
of approximately HK$110.2 million rnainly resulting from the
provision for impairment loss on goodwill in respect of the Financial
Services Business (as defined under the section headed “Business
Review”) of approximately HK$99.9 million (2019: approximately
HK$9.2 million) and the provision for impairment losses on assets
of Media Business (as defined under the section headed “Business
Review”) (including property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets, prepayments, deposits and other receivables and intangible
assets) of approximately HK$26.8 million (2019:
HKS$0.3 million) recognised during the year ended 31 December

approximately

2020, and (iii) net unrealised losses on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$85.9 million recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2020, whereas net realised and
unrealised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of approximately HK$74.3 million were recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in (a) the provision of financial
services (the “Financial Services Business”) and (b) the provision
of media sales and advertising services covering various advertising
platforms in Hong Kong (the “Media Business”) during the
reporting period.
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Financial Services Business

The Group continued to engage in the Financial Services
Business with the licences to carry out Type 1 (dealing in
securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the Securities Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”). As at 31 December 2020, the Financial
Services Business of the Group mainly consists of (i) external
asset management (“EAM?”) services, (ii) fund management
services, (iii) securities services; and (iv) investment advisory

services to fund management.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
18 February 2020, the Company entered into an agreement
with Shanghai Dongfu Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (b
AR A A% FHECA R A A ), Ankai (Tianjin) Economic
Information Consulting Co., Ltd.* (?‘rﬁ (R &5 B
Egéjﬁﬁ[gﬁ//_\\ﬁl) and China Sports Insurance Broker Co.,
Ltd.* (*ﬁ%ﬁl@%@%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬂ) (“CSIB”) in relation to the
disposal of 100% of the equity interests of CSIB at a
consideration of RMB80.5 million (subject to adjustment) (the
“Disposal of CSIB”). The Disposal of CSIB was completed
on 30 April 2020. The net proceeds from the Disposal of
CSIB amounted to approximately HK$27.0 million.

Meanwhile, on 16 December 2020, Bison Corporate Finance
Limited, being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
was granted a licence to carry out Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activity under the SFO by the
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”). This enables the
Group to further broaden its Financial Services Business and
to create synergies with other existing financial services of the
Group by strengthening its ability to provide integrated

financial products and services to our customers.

Media Business

The Group continued to engage in the provision of media
sales, design services and production of advertisements for
transit vehicle exteriors (“BUS-BODY Advertising”) and
interiors (“BUS-INTERIOR Advertising”), shelters (“BUS-
SHELTER Advertising”), outdoor signage (“BILLBOARDS
Advertising”) advertising business and the provision of
integrated marketing services covering these advertising
platforms in Hong Kong.

* for identification purposes only
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The Group reassessed its strategies so that it would be in line
with the adjustment of the financial budgets. In particular,
having experienced continued losses in its existing BUS-
SHELTER Advertising business and upon expiry of the
advertising licence of its BILLBOARDS Advertising business,
the Group since late 2020 implemented measures to reduce
loss for operation of its BUS-SHELTER Advertising and
BILLBOARDS Advertising businesses to alleviate its financial
pressure while the Group continuously adjusts its strategy to
face the challenging situation caused by the on-going
COVID-19 pandemic and the changes in trend in advertising
industry such as change in clients’ and audiences’ preference
on advertising platforms.

The aforementioned measures allow the Group to now focus
its resources on other segments of its Media Business,
including the BUS-BODY Advertising and BUS-INTERIOR
Advertising businesses. Following the expiration of the
exclusive licence in relation to BUS-BODY Advertising and
BUS-INTERIOR Advertising with The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933) Limited and Long Win Bus Company
Limited on 30 June 2020, the Group successfully obtained an
exclusive licence from New World First Bus Services Limited
and Citybus Limited pertaining to BUS-BODY Advertising and
BUS-INTERIOR Advertising businesses for the term
commencing from 1 July 2020.

Other Investments

The Group has been continuously exploring opportunities for
investments to diversify income stream and maximise returns
for the Shareholders. As disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 February 2019, the Group subscribed
for limited partner interests in BeiTai Investment LP (the
“Investment Fund”). As at 31 December 2020, the Group
has made investment of HK$103.0 million (2019: HK$93.0
million) in the Investment Fund as a limited partner, which
represented approximately 71.0% (2019: approximately
75.0%) of the total capital commitment of the Investment
Fund. The fair value of the Investment Fund decreased from
approximately HK$167.5 million as at 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$95.0 million as at 31 December 2020 due
to the overall decline in fair value of the underlying assets of
the Investment Fund near the end of 2020.
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PROSPECTS

The impact from the COVID-19 pandemic, weak economic
condition and market instability on our Group’s businesses are
expected to persist for a certain period. It is expected that such
business environment will weaken revenue generating activities,
affect investors’ willingness to launch new asset management
portfolios, and eventually affecting the profitability and financial
resources of the Group. The business operations of the Group will
remain challenging. The Group will cautiously monitor the
development to ensure timely response to changes in market
condition and development of the COVID-19 pandemic. Yet,
despite these unfavourable factors, the Board is of the view that the
business performance of the Group will recover gradually in 2021.
We will strategically streamline and alter allocation of resources
among business segments where appropriate and will continue to
seize investment opportunities with a view to maximise returns for

the Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express its gratitude to all the staff for
their hard work and dedication and to thank all our Sharcholders,
clients and suppliers for their continuous support.

By Order of the Board

ZHU Dong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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FINANCIAL SERVICES BUSINESS

The Group has been engaging in the Financial Services Business with
the licences to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4
(advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the SFO since December 2018 and throughout the
reporting period. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Financial Services Business contributed approximately HKS$79.0
million (2019: approximately HK$129.5 million (restated)) of
revenue which represents a decrease of approximately 39.0% as
compared to that of the previous year. The Financial Services
Business has been unfavourably affected by various factors including
the down-turning macroeconomic trends (which correlated with the
COVID-19 pandemic), trade wars and global political conflicts that
decreased the frequency of transactions by the investors, reduced the
risk appetite of the investors leading to withdrawal of investments
and downsizing of assets under management (“AUM?”). The decrease
in transactions and/or service fees charged amid such unfavourable
market situation resulted in the decrease in revenue of the Financial

Services Business.

The Group expected that the growth of AUM and revenue will be
limited in coming years due to the adverse impact and the
uncertainties brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic together
with the economic and political factors. The management took a
conservative approach to adjust the financial budgets and its key
assumptions and assessed that part of the carrying amount of the
goodwill in relation to the Financial Services Business may not be
recoverable through the future cash flow to be generated from
operations or from their disposal. As such, an impairment loss on
goodwill in respect of the Financial Services Business of
approximately HK$99.9 million was recognised in 2020 (2019: nil)
due to adjustment to financial budgets.

(i) EAM services

The Group provides EAM services to clients who are mostly
high net worth individuals, whose asset sizes under EAM
arrangement dropped to approximately HK$4.8 billion at 31
December 2020 (2019: approximately HKS$6.1 billion).
Revenue generated from EAM services during the year of
2020 amounted to approximately HK$35.2 million (2019:
approximately HK$39.6 million) representing a decrease of
approximately 11.3% from the revenue for the year ended 31
December 2019. Despite the market volatility brought by
geopolitical tensions as well as the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic, the Group will continue to leverage on (i) the
stable relationship between the Group and the financial
institutions which are able to provide investment products
which suit the needs of the EAM clients; and (ii) the
management team with extensive asset management
experience and strong network with high net worth clients, to
broaden the customer base and support continuous

development of the EAM business.
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(i) Fund management services

The Group acts as the investment managers or general
partners of certain offshore private equity funds and manages
the assets and investments of the funds on a discretionary
basis in pursuit of the investment objectives and strategies of
the funds, which include achievement of long term
compounded net asset value gain for investors. The
committed AUM of fund management services remained
stable as at 31 2020 and amounted to
approximately HKS$8.5 billion (2019: approxirnately HK$8.6
billion). Revenue generated from fund management services

December

during the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$32.5 million (2019: approximately
HKS$54.3 million). Such decrease was due to the decline in
performance of certain funds and hence the performance fee

income decreased.

(iii) Securities services

The Group provides a full range of securities brokerage
services, including securities margin financing, underwriting,
placing services, as well as securities dealing which was
commenced after Target Capital Management Limited
(“TCM”) was admitted as a CCASS participant of the Stock
Exchange in 2019. The Group will continue to develop and
enhance the income stream from this segment. The business
remains minimal at this stage so as to minimise the operating

cost during the uncertain economic condition.

(iv) Investment advisory services to fund

managcmcnt

The Group acts as the investment adviser to fund managers or
general partners of several offshore private equity funds and
provides portfolio advisory services to them.

During the year of 2020, the Disposal of CSIB was completed with
a gain on disposal of approximately HK$2.2 million, whilst an
impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$9.2 million was
recognised in 2019 with reference to the price quote obtained from
the potential buyers at the end of the reporting period. The Group
considers the Disposal of CSIB as a good opportunity to streamline
the Group’s business segments for better utilisation of the
Company’s financial resources in its Financial Services Business and

strengthening of the cash position of the Group.

Meanwhile, on 16 December 2020, Bison Corporate Finance
Limited, being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
granted a licence to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) regulated activity under the SFO by the SFC. This enables
the Group to further broaden its Financial Services Business and to
create synergies with other existing financial services of the Group
by strengthening its ability to provide integrated financial products

and services to our customers.
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In the long term, the Group’s Financial Services Business will
continue to diversify the existing Financial Services Business and to
utilise the Group’s resources and network as well as the extensive
investment experience of our senior management, which are
considered as major contributing factors to maintain an ongoing
business development in the Financial Services Business carried out

by the Group.

MEDIA BUSINESS

The Group continued to engage in BUS-BODY Advertising,
BUS-INTERIOR Advertising, BUS-SHELTER Advertising,
BILLBOARDS Advertising, and the provision of integrated
marketing services covering these advertising platforms in Hong
Kong. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Media Business
recorded revenue of approximately HK$219.3 million (2019:
approximately HK$384.2 million) which represent a decrease of
approximately 42.9%.

Facing the unfavourable advertising business environment mainly due
to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and unstable political and
social condition, the occupancy rate of various advertising platforms
provided by the Group has been adversely affected and thus
resulting in a decline in advertising revenue of the Media Business

throughout the year of 2020.

Having considered the adverse impact and the uncertainties brought
about by the COVID-19 pandemic affecting the Media Business, the
management adjusted the financial budgets and assessed that the
carrying amounts of certain assets in relation to the Media Business
may not be recoverable through the future cash flow to be
generated from operations or from their disposal upon expiry of the
As such,
respect of the Media Business of approximately HK$27.0 million

advertising licences. an impairment loss on assets in
(2019: approximately HK$0.5 million), of which impairment loss on
assets (including property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets, prepayments, deposits and other receivables and intangible
assets) of approximately HK$26.8 million was recognised in 2020
(2019: approximately HK$0.3 million).

In addition, the Group reassessed its strategies so that it would be in
line with the adjustment of the financial budgets. In particular,
having experienced continued losses in its existing BUS-SHELTER
Advertising business and upon expiry of the advertising licence of its
BILLBOARDS Advertising business, the Group since late 2020
implemented measures to reduce loss for operation of its BUS-
SHELTER Advertising and BILLBOARDS Advertising businesses to
alleviate its financial pressure while the Group continuously adjusts
its strategy to face the challenging situation caused by the on-going
COVID-19 pandemic and the changes in trend in advertising
industry such as change in clients’ and audiences’ preference on

advertising platforms.

8 Bison Finance Groul) Limited Annual Report 2020

Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ o AN G <5 AR 5 S 5 1 A A i B

< R IRBS 3605 22 oAb It 35 A SR T 9 RN
Ff‘] A DA B A SR T m AE RN B R R B AL
5 &#I%‘E%ﬁﬁ%zﬁ’*@%%éﬁﬂﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁ
R et st R ) B A o

DR

AREEBEETBRFED LE GRS - B L
SRR~ O R AR S R R A

BEZE GV A NEEE T R - %
:;g?ﬁJr H=1—HIEFE » 35
5%%45(kﬂ{%¢‘%219,300 0007 (=& —JUAF - 4
5 384,200,000 7C) > I8P £)42.9% o

T 38587 25 T AR R PR A KA AT LA BRI B AL
IR DU B NI Y B SE B AR BRI > AR
V412 4L A 25T 1 51 15 1 ) A0 S2 B R PRS2
R TR AR A A S I R WA R T
B o

2 1 21 30 78 ek R B R URAT BE AR AN A R
T AW S I S IR 2B o A5 LR R R B S T
B MRS R A R T A H AR A8 TS Bl 4
omjzﬁAEtb%frT%é@Jﬁﬂﬁfrtﬂ’*Wﬁﬂ&clilﬁﬁﬁﬂi?%
B T EE R E A - Bt > —F AR
I S TS R A (B S HR 40 7 MK 27,000,000
JG (ZF— U - #%K 500,000 7T) > Hoh g
@%%% W5 R S DA R fof P RE O - fﬁi
FY3RIA ~ % 4 B oAl RE i BR 3K I T ) ik
{H 15 18 49 %5 26,800,000 7T (& — JL4F - %’Jp%
#300,0007T) ©

SR - 7 B2 507 A A SR > DA B A5 10 1Y
SRR — 2 RS > hpRBA B
S A B P - L% 7 R 2 1
YRR P RERI AR - AER A —F R
BH 6 R IURE Tt - a0 T ik o B 4 % B AR
o5 B Y e 1R - A T R A R g > [
I3 7 3 A B A 0 Wk R 345 A 194 7 2 e R
BRI R WAT D B AT S S ({91
VBB S L R k) FJT"—‘%HGEI’JEE%



The aforementioned measures allow the Group to now focus its
resources on other segments of its Media Business, including the
BUS-BODY Advertising and BUS-INTERIOR Advertising businesses.
Following the expiration of the exclusive licence in relation to BUS-
BODY Advertising and BUS-INTERIOR Advertising with The
Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited and Long Win Bus
Company Limited on 30 June 2020, the Group successfully obtained
an exclusive licence from New World First Bus Services Limited and
Citybus Limited pertaining to BUS-BODY Advertising and BUS-
INTERIOR Advertising businesses for the term commencing from 1

July 2020.

Whilst it is expected that Hong Kong’s economic contraction is
likely to continue during first half of 2021 due to the outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic, Hong Kong’s retail sector, growth of which
would benefit the overall advertising market, is expected to
gradually recover starting from second half of 2021 following the
launch of vaccination programme for the general public. While the
Group anticipates that the customers will remain conservative on
advertising spending, especially on out-of-home (OOH) media, in
the first half of 2021, we will strive hard to stretch the creativity on
BUS-BODY as well as BUS-INTERIOR platforms in order to drive
the growth of these business units. The cessation of BUS-SHELTER
and BILLBOARDS advertising businesses enable the Group to focus
on its existing BUS-BODY and BUS-INTERIOR advertising
businesses and to seize opportunities in the future. In view of the
challenges amid the COVID-19 pandemic and competitive business
environment, the Group will continue to review its strategies to
effectively allocate its resources and engage in active negotiations
with licensors of certain licensing agreements for better terms that
enable our Group’s business to remain sustainable during such
unfavourable market situation.

OTHER INVESTMENTS

On 22 February 2019, the Group entered into the subscription
agreements with BeiTai Investment Limited (an independent third
party to the Company and its connected persons), being the general
partner of the Investment Fund to subscribe for limited partner
interests in the Investment Fund. The objective of the Investment
Fund is to invest in debt securities or equity securities of both
private and listed companies in Hong Kong or elsewhere or by
investing in such other financial instruments as its general partner
may determine. Such investment is a passive investment and the
Group, as a limited partner, is entitled to receive distributions of
the Investment Fund in accordance with the Group’s capital
commitment therein, but has no right to participate in the
day-to-day operations of the Investment Fund, nor does it have
control over the management of the Investment Fund. The Group’s
investment strategy in the Investment Fund would be to capture
investment opportunities and increase the efficiency of its financial
resources, and to generate a reasonable return for the duration of
the Group’s investments in the Investment Fund. For details, please

refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22 February 2019.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group has made investment of
HK$103.0 million (2019: HK$93.0 million) in the Investment Fund
as a limited partner, which represent approximately 71.0% (2019:
approximately 75.0%) of the total capital commitment of the
Investment Fund. As at 31 December 2020, the underlying
investments of the Investment Fund represent equity securities listed
in Hong Kong and bonds issued by a corporation listed in Hong
Kong (2019: equity securities listed in Hong Kong). The investment
in the Investment Fund is stated at fair value and is recorded as
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” in the
consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 December
2020, due to the overall decline in fair value of the underlying
assets of the Investment Fund near the end of 2020, the fair value
of Investment Fund dropped to approximately HK$95.0 million
(2019: approximately HK$167.5 million), which represents
approximately 15.3% (2019: approximately 15.3%) of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2020. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, as a result of such decrease in fair value
of the Investment Fund, the Group recorded an unrealised loss on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$82.4 million (2019: unrealised gain of approximately HKS$74.5
million) from the Investment Fund. No dividend was received from
the Investment Fund for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

IMPACT OF THE COVID-19
PANDEMIC

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic negatively affected the
global economics, global capital market condition and advertising
industry in Hong Kong. Such factors not only resulted in the
decline of revenue from Financial Services Business and Media
Business of approximately 41.9% during the year of 2020, but also
led to a downward adjustment on expectation on growth of future
revenue which resulted in the carrying amounts of certain assets in
relation to the Financial Services Business and Media Business may
not be recoverable and hence impairment losses on goodwill for
Financial Services Business of approximately HK$99.9 million and
certain assets of Media Business (including property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables and intangible assets) of approximately HK$26.8 million
were recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020. The
aforesaid factors also imposed higher liquidity risk due to the
reduced cash inflow from the operation of the Group among the

business segments of the Group.

The Group reviewed its cash flow forecast for the 18 months after
the year end date. It disclosed the management’s assessment that,
based on the latest forecast, the Group would have sufficient funds
to satisfy its working capital and capital expenditure requirements
for the 18-month period.
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To ensure the sustainability of the Group under the challenging
environment brought by the COVID-19, the Group has
implemented various measures to monitor its liquidity position and
working capital sufficiency. These measures including:

(i)  adoption of a more proactive approach in collection of account
receivables and loan receivables together with tightened cost
controls to maintain a healthy cash flow position;

(ii)  termination of certain loss making businesses (for examples,
BUS-SHELTER Advertising was terminated during the year
ended 31 December 2020) in order to retain working capital;

(iii)  disposal of subsidiaries (for example, Disposal of CSIB was
completed during the year of 2020) and considering the
possibility of realising other assets and investments in order to
strengthen the liquidity position of the Group; and

(iv)  exploring different fund raising activities to improve financial
resources of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December
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Full Year Results (HK$’000)
AR BW T )

Revenue llSt A

LBITDA/EBITDA®® ¥

AwHRLR ~ BEIE - B8 % B 8 0 1R R vy
(Loss)/profit before tax B BE AT O 48) 2

Net (loss)/profit (1) /% F] ¥ #

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (HK cents)

TREA O H), B GEAl)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Data (HK$’000)

B IR D R B (W Ton)

Cash and cash equivalents ReEkR&%HY

Total assets & 2 A8 {H

Total liabilities £1 fif 48 {H

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company
A 2w AN W A1 BE £ 48 H

Cash Flow Data (HK$’000)
REewmE8ig % )

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

REWEB A (R B4 &S

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Bl&RBEFEMIM, (WD) FH

Financial Ratios

S 75 b R

Current ratio ¥i B Fb %

LBITDA/EBITDA margin®”

SRR ~ BEIE 7 85 0 6 A 8
Net (loss)/profit margin®™"” & (ER )/R ) R (Hits)
Debt-to-equity ratio G A LR

Notes:

1. LBITDA/EBITDA = Loss/profit before finance costs, income tax, depreciation

and amortisation

2. LBITDA/EBITDA margin = LBITDA/EBITDA divided by revenue

3. Net (loss)/profit margin = (Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the

Company for the year divided by revenue

Bison Finance Group Limited

Wt

2020

298,230
(295,740)

(345,393)
(343,973)
(30.17)

151,939
621,020
233,786
387,234

112,443

54,847

1.65
(99.2)%

(115.3)%
42.8%

2019

(Restated)
(REH5)

513,646
80,356

32,054
20,766
1.81

80,722
1,096,167
374,312
721,855

(123,552)

(142,973)

1.91
15.6%

4.0%
36.9%
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REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group reported a
revenue of approximately HK$298.2 million (2019: approximately
HK$513.6 million (restated)). Revenue generated from the Financial
Services Business was approximately HK$79.0 million in 2020,
representing a decrease of approximately 39.0% when compared to
approximately HK$129.5 million (restated) in 2019. Revenue
generated from the Media Business decreased by 42.9% to
approximately HK$219.3 million in 2020 from approximately
HK$384.2 million in 2019. The overall decrease in revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was mainly due to the adverse
impact on the Group’s business operation caused by the COVID-19
pandemic and volatile global financial market.

PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT
LOSSES, NET

In view of the changes in the current economic environment related
to the COVID-19 pandemic and volatile global financial market, the
management assessed such effect on financial performance of the
Group’s Financial Services Business and Media Business and the
impact on the recoverable amounts of assets. The recoverable
amounts of the assets were determined based on value-in-use
calculations. Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 Impairment
of Assets (“HKAS 36”), discounted cash flow method shall be

adopted in the value-in-use calculations.

In assessing the value-in-use of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”)
of the Financial Services Business, the Company appointed an
independent valuer to conduct a valuation (the “Valuation”). The
discounted cash flow method was adopted in compliance with
HKAS 36,

projections based on historical data and financial budgets approved

and the value-in-use calculations use cash flow

by the Board cover eight-year period for the year ended
31 December 2020. Whilst a financial budget of five-year was
adopted in deriving the value-in-use calculations for the year ended
31 December 2019, the Directors adopted a financial budget of
eight-year period to demonstrate a more appropriate change in free
cash flow before applying the terminal value in the value-in-use
calculation. In view of the adverse impact and the uncertainties
brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic affecting the Financial
Services Business, the Group took a conservative approach to adjust
the financial budgets and its key assumptions. In particular, the
percentage of revenue growth in relation to the investment advisory
services and fund management businesses, being one of the key
assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations, was adjusted
downward from 6% as at 31 December 2019 to Nil to 3% as at
31 December 2020. As the carrying amount of the CGUs was
estimated to be higher than their recoverable amount, the
impairment loss on goodwill in respect of the Financial Services
Business of approximately HK$99.9 million was recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2020. For details of the value-in-use
calculations leading to the impairment loss, please refer to note 17

to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
4 5 o]

A

HE Z " BEF+A=Z1+—HILFEF A&
4] 5% A5 WS A 44 15 5 298,200,000 7T (& — JLAF ¢
£ % %513,600,0007C (ZEE 51) ) o b —F &
A 4 Rl R TS S T EE AR IR K B v
79,000,000 7C > B = F — JLA 19 A i
129,500,000 7C (X% 5 %1]) I8 2 £39.0% o Hi 48 3£
BIEAEAMIKAER -F — LENLH KK
384,200,000 TG D42 .90 58 % T AR 1Y K TR
219,300,0007C ° Bk £ —F _FFE+ H =+ —
H b 4F B S B B8 ek 2D 7 32 fh A 5 Y etk e
BERE NG K IRAT I BRBR A Al T 55 o B S AR AR [ Y
SEHS T vk A TR R BT K -

Ik AEL s 48 5 098 e

S T B e AR R R AT S A Bk T 4
e B 2L R I A B AR AL o A PR BT AG
T R% 5 TR R A AR [ 11 < AR 5 S B L S
B 1Y o B 2R B L A AT [ AR o
AT Wi [e] < B (o A (R o MR K i
B e R 5 36 5% A U ([ 7 o & 5t 4 JI)
363K 1) o (N EERH A ZHR MM BB &R &

FEAG 4 IR TS 2L O B AR A ([ B e 2k
BT |) ) A (ELIRE - AR ) 2 WA ST A L Fi
AT (TE ) - CARE (Rl Este)) &
36E PR B BB 4 U vk > 6 4 R e
T > A JRE b B K K8 356 A 19\ AR 1A
HEAFSEEE _ZFF+ A =+—HIk
EEREAER - BRERFTESRE T LE
+ A = B R A A (R R AR
WA BT L > M S PR /A ) B B R R
H H 3 2 i I P A R (o A (LT 1
LB Al o 2% i 3] g ) ek R 2 0 1 K AT
4 IR 5 2 15 4 B AY AS B 288 K A B B
o> AREERBURST I 7 0 R 0 BrE S =
FEAREL - BB S > 5 & B IR 25 &
R EHERN IR G ot (RIFHE A
BEHEEF—-FHEEES) B _F—LFE+H
=t —HMen FiiE - F -FTHE+__H=+
— H B E30% o H MG HE 4 AR B AL IR
T (L ASF i 7 L AT i m] 4 % > it ) e R 4 il AR
WEHKEE _F T+ _H=+—HIEE
F14) T 52 3 (L s 18 440 75 599,900,000 TG © A BFTHE
i){g%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ@ﬁéﬁﬁ?% s w2 B R
F5EE17 o

20204 ¥k A ZR A ME AR A A 13



FINANCIAL REVIEW
$ut 255 ol

In assessing the value-in-use of assets in respect of the Media
Business, the value-in-use calculations using cash flow projections
were adopted in compliance with HKAS 36. The cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a period of the
remaining licence period of the BUS-BODY Advertising and
BUS-INTERIOR Advertising with Citybus Limited and New World
First Bus Services Limited. Having considered the adverse impact
and the uncertainties brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic
affecting the Media Business, the Group adjusted the financial
budgets in relation to the Media Business. In particular, the future
revenue of the Media Business, being one of the key input used in
the value-in-use calculations for assets, was adjusted downward
significantly. The adjustment led to the decrease in recoverable
amount of the assets (including property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets, prepayments, deposits and other receivables and
intangible assets) of the Media Business. As a result of the
aforementioned assessment, the impairment losses on these assets in
respect of the Media Business of approximately HK$26.8 million
(including impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
right—of—use assets of approximately HK$25.3 million and
impairment loss on prepayments, deposits and other receivables of
approximately HK$1.4 million) were recognised for the year ended
31 December 2020. For details of the value-in-use calculations
leading to the impairment losses, please refer to notes 15, 18 and
19 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, in compliance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards 9 Financial Instruments, impairment analysis
was performed by considering the credit risk of counterparties to
measure the expected credit loss of balances of receivables of the
Group. As a result of such impairment analysis, impairment loss on
accounts receivable of approximately HKS$1.4 million, reversal of
provision for impairment loss on loans receivable of approximately
HK$2.0 million and impairment loss on prepayments, deposits and
other receivables of approximately HK$0.6 million were recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2020. For details of the expected
credit losses calculations leading to the impairment loss, please refer
to notes 19, 21 and 22 to the financial statements.
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LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO THE OWNER OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group reported a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$344.0
million (2019: profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$20.8 million). Such downturn of the
performance for the year ended 31 December 2020 was mainly due
to (i) the decrease in revenue of approximately HK$215.4 million,
the effect of which was partially net off by decrease in royalty,
licence and management fees of approximately HK$21.9 million and
decrease in staff expenditure of approximately HK$53.6 million
respectively, (ii) the increase in provision for impairment losses, net
of approximately HK$110.2 million mainly resulting from the
provision for impairment loss on goodwill in respect of the Financial
Services Business of approximately HK$99.9 million (2019:
approximately HK$9.2 million) and the provision for impairment
losses on assets of Media Business (including property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables and intangible assets) of approximately HK$26.8 million
(2019: approximately HK$0.3 million) recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2020,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately

and (iii) net unrealised losses on

HK$85.9 million recognised during the year ended 31 December
2020, whereas net realised and unrealised gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$74.3 million
were recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2020. In the event that the Group engages in any
plan for material investments or capital assets, the Company will
make announcement(s) and comply with relevant rules under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as and when appropriate.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

CASH FLOW

In 2020, the net cash flows from operating activities of the Group
was approximately HK$112.4 million (2019: used in the operating
activities of approximately HK$123.6 million (restated)). Payment
for Capital expenditure in 2020 amounted to approximately HKS$2.3
million (2019: approximately HK$11.4 million (restated)). The
consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 is set out on pages 100 to 102 of this Annual
Report.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

At 31 December 2020,
amounted to approximately HK$151.9 million (2019: approximately
HK$80.7 million), denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars,
Euro, Singapore dollars and Renminbi.

the Group’s cash and cash ecquivalents

The Group has financed its working capital primarily from its bank
deposits and cash and also cash generated from the operating
activities. To cope with the development of Financial Services
Business and to capture investment opportunities, the Group has
funded its investing activities and operating activities from issuing

promissory notes, bonds and other borrowings.

The Group has adopted a prudent approach in financial resources
management and closely monitors its liquidity position in order to
maintain a healthy cash flow position with adequate facilities to meet
the potential needs for our business expansion and development in
the future.

As at 31 December 2020,
promissory notes and lease liabilities of approximately HK$165.7

the Group’s indebtedness comprised
million (31 December 2019: promissory notes, bond payable,
interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities of approximately
HK$266.1 million). The Group’s indebtedness are denominated in
Hong Kong dollar. As at 31 December 2020, all the indebtedness
carried interests with fixed rates ranging from 2.8% to 10.0% per
all the indebtedness
(except for interest-bearing borrowing in the principal amount of

annum; whilst as at 31 December 2019,

approximately HK$39.1 million which carried variable interest
rates) carried fixed interest rates ranging from 3.3% to 9.5% per
annum. All of the indebtedness shall be repayable in 1 to 2 years
(2019: 1 to 2.5 years). The gearing ratio, representing the ratio of
total indebtedness to the total share capital and reserves of the
Group, was 42.8% as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
36.9%).

At 31 December 2020, the Group had stand-by banking facilities
totalling HK$30.0 million (2019: HK$30.0 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the indebtedness of the Group was in
Hong Kong dollars (2019: United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars).

At 31 December 2020, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$142.6 million (2019: approximately HK$277.0
million (restated)) and total assets of approximately HK$621.0
million (2019: approximately HK$1,096.2 million).
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2020, bank deposits of approximately HK$32.2
million (2019:
mainly to secure certain bank guarantees provided by certain

approximately HK$98.7 million) were pledged

subsidiaries of the Company to the independent third parties
regarding their due performance and payment under certain licence
agreements between certain subsidiaries of the Company and the
independent third parties and for the corporate credit cards issued
to the Group.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN
EXCHANGE RATES AND RELATED
HEDGES

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars, Euro and Renminbi.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company recognised
an exchange gain of approximately HK$1.2 million (2019:
approximately HK$0.7 million). During the year ended 31
December 2020, there was no material fluctuation in the exchange
rates of Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. The Group did not
engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to any
financial instruments to hedge its financial position and foreign
currency exposure in 2020.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during 2020 amounted
to approximately HKS$3.3 million (2019: approximately HKS$11.4
million (restated)).

Capital commitments contracted for but not provided for in the
financial statements of the Group at 31 December 2020 amounted
to approximately HK$41.2 million (2019: approximately HK$54.9
million (restated)).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, the Group
did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31 December
2020 and 2019.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has made investment of
HK$103.0 million (2019: HK$93.0 million) in the Investment Fund
as a limited partner, which represent approximately 71.0% (2019:
approximately 75.0%) of the total capital commitment of the
Investment Fund. As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of
Investment Fund amounted to approximately HK$95.0 million
(2019: approximately HK$167.5 million). During the year ended
31 December 2020,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$82.4 million (2019: unrealised gain of approximately HK$74.5
million) from the Investment Fund.

the Group recorded an unrealised loss on

For details, please refer to section headed “Operational Review —
Other Investments”.

Details of the investment in the Investment Fund are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 February 2019.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, save as the Disposal of
CSIB (details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “Business
Review”), there was no material acquisition or disposal of

subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures by the Group.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND
POLICIES

The financial statements set out on pages 95 to 209 have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules, all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards,
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,

Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT
POLICIES

At 31 December 2020, the Group had 113 full-time employees
(2019: The
comprehensive and competitive remuneration and benefits package

179 full-time employees). Group offers a
to all its employees. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group incurred staff costs of approximately HK$80.7 million (2019:
approximately HK$134.3 million). For remuneration payable to key
11 and 38 to
financial statements. In addition, the Group offers a performance

management personnel, please refer to notes 10,

bonus scheme to its senior staff based on achievement of business
objectives and a sales commission scheme to its sales team based on
achievement of advertising revenue targets. The Group has adopted
a provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as
required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
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The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 8 June 2018, under which the Company may grant
options to, among others, employees of the Group to subscribe for
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) for providing them with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company as a
reward for their contribution and to encourage them to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its Shares for the
benefit of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, a total of 118,020,000 share
options of the Company (the “Share Options”) (2019: Nil) were
granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, among which
57,800,000 (2019: Nil) Share Options were lapsed during the year
ended 31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2020, there were
60,220,000 (2019: Nil) outstanding Share Options granted under
the Share Option Scheme. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the Shares Options granted under the Share Option Scheme
was approximately HK$9.3 million (2019: Nil).

The Company also adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 24 August 2018 which complements the
Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the
Shares may be awarded to employees, directors (including executive
and non-executive directors), officers, agents or consultants of the
Group for providing them with incentives to continuously make
substantial contributions for the long-term growth of the Group in
the future and aligning their interests directly to the Shareholders
through ownership of Shares. During the year ended 31 December
2020, a total of 11,500,000 shares of the Company (2019:
17,610,000 shares) were granted pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme. For the year ended 31 December 2020, total expense
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for shares
granted under the Share Award Scheme was approximately HK$3.5
million (2019: approximately HK$20.6 million).
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Dr. MA Weihua

Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Dr. MA, aged 72, was appointed as a non-executive director and
the chairman of the Company on 21 November 2017 and 29 May
2018 respectively. He is currently the chairman of National Fund
for Technology Transfer and Commercialisation.

Dr. MA is currently an independent director of Guangdong
Qunxing Toys Joint-Stock Co.
Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code: 002575) since August
2020 and an independent non-executive director of Legend Holdings

Ltd.* (a company listed on the

Corporation (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with stock code: 3396)

since June 2015.

Dr. MA was previously an independent non-executive director of
China World Trade Center Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (“SSE”) with stock code: 600007) from
August 2014 to June 2020, Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd.
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 1658)
from December 2013 to December 2019,
Airlines Corporation Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 670 and the SSE with stock code:
600115) from October 2013 to December 2019.

and China Eastern

In addition, Dr. MA was a deputy to the 10th National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) from 2003
to 2008, a member of the 11th National Committee of the Chinese
Pecople’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”) from 2008 to
2013 and a member of the 12th National Committee of the CPPCC
from 2013 to 2018.

Mr. XU Peixin

Executive Director

Mr. XU, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 21 November 2017. He has more than 12 years of
corporate executive management and investment experiences. From
June 2005 to June 2012, Mr. XU was a venture partner of New
Enterprise Associates (Beijing), Ltd., one of the group companies of
New Enterprise Associates, Inc. which is a venture capital firm. He
was primarily involved in designing and executing investment
strategies in the retail and healthcare industries. Mr. XU also served
as a director of AirNet Technology Inc. (formerly known as
AirMedia Group Inc.), a company listed on NASDAQ Stock Market
(“NASDAQ”), from January 2014 to December 2016. Mr. XU
founded Bison Capital Holding Company Limited, which is an
investment holding company specialised in investments in the media
and financial industries, and has been an executive director since
December 2013. In May 2010, Mr. XU was nominated as a chief
committee member of the Expert Committee of the APEC
E-Commerce Business Alliance. He is a director of Bliss Chance
Global Limited and Bison Capital Financial Holdings Limited, which
are the controlling sharcholders (as defined in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange) of the Company.

#  For identification purpose
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Mr. SUN Lei

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. SUN, aged 51, was appointed as an executive director and the
chief executive officer of the Company on 24 December 2018.
Mr. SUN is also an executive director and responsible officer of
Target Capital Management Limited (“TCM”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, a licensed corporation under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance to carry out type 1 (dealing in
securities), type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities. Prior to joining TCM, Mr. SUN
had worked at Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited as an
executive director in corporate coverage from March 2014 to
September 2015 and BOCI Securities Limited as a director from
March 2011 to February 2014. With experience for over 17 years
in the financial industry, he has extensive experience in various
aspects such as corporate finance, fixed income and bond issuing.
Prior to stepping into the financial industry, Mr. SUN had been
working on environmental engineering, overseas corporate
financing, futures and project budgeting. Mr. SUN obtained a
bachelor of engineering from China University of Mining and
Technology in July 1990.

Mr. ZHU D()ng

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. ZHU, aged 47, was appointed as an executive director and the
chief financial officer of the Company on 13 December 2017. He is
also a non-executive director of Bison Corporate Finance Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and a licensed corporation
under the Securities and Future Ordinance to carry out type 6
(advising on corporate finance) regulated activities commencing
from 16 December 2020 and the chief financial officer of Target
Capital Management Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
has more than 25 years of experience in accounting, corporate

finance and advisory services.

Dr. QI Daqing

Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. QI, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company and a member of
the Company’s remuneration committee and nomination committee.
He is a professor of accounting and former associate dean of
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (“CKGSB”). He began
teaching in CKGSB since 2002 and was the founding director of the
executive master of business association programme. His primary
research interests are in financial accounting and reporting as well as

profit manipulation by management of the listed companies.

Dr. QI received his degree of doctor of philosophy in business
administration from Michigan State University in 1996, master of
business administration degree from the University of Hawaii at
Manoa in 1992 and bachelor of science and arts degrees from Fudan
University, the PRC in 1985 and 1987 respectively.
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Dr. QI is currently an independent director of Sohu.com Inc. (a
company listed on NASDAQ (Symbol: SOHU)) since 2005 and
Momo Inc. (a company listed on NASDAQ (Symbol: MOMO))
since 2014, and an independent non-executive director of,
SinoMedia Holding Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 623) since May 2008, Jutal Offshore Oil
Services Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code: 3303) since July 2015, Yunfeng Financial Group
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code:
376) since February 2016 and Haidilao International Holding Ltd. (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 6862) since
May 2018. Dr. QI was previously an independent non-executive
director of Honghua Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 196) from January 2008 to January 2018
and independent director of iKang Healthcare Group, Inc. (a
company privatised and delisted from NASDAQ in January 2019
(Symbol: KANG)) from 2014 to 2019.

Mr. CHEN Yigong

Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr.

non-executive director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He

CHEN, aged 50, was appointed as an independent

is the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company and a
member of audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. He is currently a partner in PacGate Law Group, a law
firm in the PRC. Mr. CHEN obtained a bachelor degree in
biochemistry in the Peking University, the PRC in 1992, and he
obtained a degree of jurisdoctor in the University of lowa, the
United States of America in 1998.

Mr. CHEN is currently an independent director of Ambow
Education Holding Ltd. (a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange (“NYSE”) (American depositary shares) (Symbol: AMBO))
since March 2013. He was previously an independent director, a
director and president of Link Motion Inc. (a company which was
delisted from the NYSE (American depositary shares) in January
2019 (Symbol: LKM)).
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Mr. FENG Zh()nghua

Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. FENG, aged 50,
non-executive director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He

was appointed as an independent

is the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and
a member of audit committee and nomination committee of the
Company. He was previously a director of AirMedia Group Inc.
from May 2011 to December 2016, and served as chief operating
officer with respect to certain affiliated entities of AirMedia Group
Inc. from October 2005 to December 2016. Mr. FENG received an
executive master of business association degree from Peking
University, the PRC in 2009.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

The changes in information of the Directors since the date of the
2020 Interim Report of the Company which are required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out
below:

Name of Director Details of the changes

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
£k iy

%5 rp 3 5 Ak

BorEPiTESR

WA Ltk RF—LEF—A = —
AEZELARANRZ B EBATHES - iAAR
AFEIFHMER G2 T ERANFAERE G R
RAZEGZNE - YR _F——FHHE
TR N T HEAT AirMedia Group Inc. [ &
Ho MR CFFRAET AR S E - NAE N
Y& 1T AirMedia Group Inc. Z%?%ﬁ%/\ﬂ NERES
HATE o BN ZFF IR K2/
%&%EAEIﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂ°

3O 5 g

*E%((J:FE%E 1) 2813 51B()IRA T #8 B AR
A R AR ARG H R A R )
#wH I

HENA 5 ) 5

MA Weihua . He has been appointed as an independent director of Guangdong Qunxing Toys Joint-
Stock Co. Ltd.* (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock
code: 002575) with effect from 4 August 2020.

K5 Y o TREZAT B SRR BB A AT IR F (— [ TR R 28 5 BT TR

NGNS (v 002575

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information of the
Directors that is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule

13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

* for identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
G WA

The directors (the “Directors”) of Bison Finance Group Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and has its registered
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is situated
at 6th Floor, 18 King Wah Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

office at Clarendon House,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was principally
engaged in (a) provision of financial services and (b) provision of
media sales and advertising services covering various advertising
platforms in Hong Kong.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Group are set
The analysis of the
principal activities of the operations of the Group during the

out in note 1 to the financial statements.

financial year are set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend

for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020,
development and description of the risks and uncertainties that the

a discussion on the Group’s future business

Group may be facing and particulars of important events affecting
the Group have occurred during the year are set out in the Letter
from the Board on pages 2 to 5 and Operational Review on
pages 6 to 11 of this Annual Report. This discussion forms part of
this Directors’ Report.

The risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set
out on pages 52 to 56 of this Annual Report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2020 taking into account the financial key performance
indicators is set out in Financial Highlights on page 12 and Financial
Review on pages 13 to 19 of this Annual Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
carrying out various measures to ensure the fulfilment of its social
responsibilities towards to the preservation of the environment and
natural resources. The Group carries out its business having
recognised the importance of building awareness of environmental
conservation and minimising carbon footprints through utilising
resources efficiently, employing green office initiatives and
promoting environmental awareness among employees and other key
stakeholders. The Group understands the global implications of
climate change and is committed to minimising the potential impact
on the environment by its operation.

The Group realises the importance of environmental protection in
pursuing long-term sustainability. In this connection, the Group has
implemented various measures which include reducing wastage of
resources, and implementing environmental practices to reduce
carbon footprints etc. with the aim of mitigating any potential
adverse impacts on the environment brought about by the Group’s
day-to-day operations. Employees are encouraged to conserve
resources and minimise waste.

For details of the Group’s environmental policy and performance
and an account of the relationships with the Group’s key
stakeholders are set out in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report on pages 62 to 86 of this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

On the Group’s business and operational levels, before using any
information, programme, music video or photo which is not owned
or taken by the Group, the Group shall first identify the copyright
owner, ascertain the ownership of the relevant copyright work so to
obtain consent from the copyright owner. In addition, if any
advertisement order is placed by the advertiser which may have legal
or compliance issues with the applicable laws, rules or regulations,
such advertisement shall be pre-vetted before acceptance. The
Group constantly reminds employees of and emphasises the
importance of safeguarding the security of personal data. When
collecting and processing such data, the Group complies with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and the guidelines issued by the
Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data. The Group
will not use or provide personal data to any person for use in direct
marketing unless the data subject’s consent is obtained in writing.
For the business operations of the Group which involves regulated
entities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), the
Group has formulated internal guidelines and has engaged
compliance officers to ensure compliance with the SFO, Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance and all other
applicable laws and regulations.
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In relation to human resources, the Group is committed to
complying with the requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, and ordinances relating to disability, sex, family status
and race discrimination, as well as the Employment Ordinance, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational
safety of employees of the Group, so as to safeguard the interests
and well-being of its employees.

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the requirements
under the Companies Ordinance, the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the SFO for, among other things, the
disclosure of information and corporate governance matters, and the
Group has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard of
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets of the Group.
With a view to retaining talents, the Group offers a comprehensive
and competitive remuneration and benefits package to all its
employees. On-the-job training and carecer development
opportunities are provided to employees to enhance their career
progression. The Group, believing that work-life balance is essential
for our employees, has continued to organise staff-friendly activities
for our employees in 2020, which are vital to enhance
communication and relationship between employees and create a

harmonious working environment.

The Group believes that timely feedbacks are crucial to increase
customer satisfaction and improve performance. Therefore, we
actively collect customer feedback and if any complaints are made,
we handle them within 24 hours upon receipt by the responsible
person pursuant to the established procedures. We strive to build a
long-term relationship with our customers which is vital to our
business.

SHARES ISSUED AND SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 31
to the financial statements. There were no movements during the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Non-executive Director
Dr. MA Weihua (Chairman)

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Peixin

Mr. SUN Lei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZHU Dong (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. QI Daqing

Mr. CHEN Yigong

Mr. FENG Zhonghua

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 87 and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
Dr. MA Weihua, Mr. SUN Lei and Mr. CHEN Yigong will retire
from office by rotation at the Company’s forthcoming Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) and, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

Profiles of the Directors of the Company are set out on pages 20 to
23 of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
pursuant to the Model Code as adopted by the Company, were as
follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company and associated corporations

( i) Interests in shares and underl )/ing shares of
the Company
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Bk A (LG AR 8 G 5 B &A1) A B 16 SC
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(i) AL TG I 1 T BRI 13 19 9

Interests in
Total
interests in

underlying
shares under

equity shares and % of total
Personal Corporate  derivatives underlying issued
Name of Directors HEHEA interests interests (Note 1) shares shares
it S48 A
THMH M il 2 8
Bevr s Bty RAHBE AT RN
MARER A wlBEL (ffaF1) T 4 KA [ipid:1
Dr. MA Weihua RS EE R+ — — 11,000,000 11,000,000 0.93%
Mr. XU Peixin (“Mr. R A — 680,508,005 1,180,000 681,688,005 57.53%
Xu”) ([fR5EH4E]) (Note 2)
(Ht7F2)
Mr. SUN Lei BREE 8,340,000 — 4,000,000 12,340,000 1.04%
Mr. ZHU Dong RAESEE 1,000,000 — 4,000,000 5,000,000 0.42%
Dr. QI Daging PRR B+ — — 1,180,000 1,180,000 0.10%
Mr. CHEN Yigong BRIR T 56 — — 1,180,000 1,180,000 0.10%
Mr. FENG Zhonghua WA — — 1,180,000 1,180,000 0.10%
Notes: I}ﬂg
1. These interests in underlying shares under equity derivatives represent 1. TEATA TR B R R 2R FE A A ED R

the share options of the Company granted by the Company on 27
March 2020. Details of the Share Options are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

2. All of these 680,508,005 shares of the Company are held by Bliss
Chance Global Limited (“Bliss Chance”), all the ordinary shares of
which are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison Capital Financial
Holdings Limited (“Bison Capital”). Bison Capital is in turn wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. XU. Mr. XU is deemed to be
interested in shares of the Company held by Bliss Chance for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.
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(ii ) Interests in associated corporations

Name of associated

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EHFHRE

(i) A i 75 1 v B ik

Total number of

% of total

Name of Director corporation Interest shares held issued shares
[E S8 iy
HREEA R Wk 25 4% R HE £ it i Tt A 48 8 it 43 i 43 be
Mr. XU (Note 1) Bliss Chance (Note 2) Corporate interests 325,119,444 ordinary shares of 100.00%
no par value
ot (Bt B (i) o AR A 325,119,444 /5 I8 T {73 466 i
Mr. XU (Note 1) Bison Capital (Note 2) Personal interests 1 ordinary share of US$1.00 100.00%
ot (Bt AREAR (W it2) PN 253 1 1B T 1.00 3% 7T FY 3 488
Notes: B
1. All the ordinary shares of Bliss Chance are wholly and beneficially 1. FEN TS h B RE AT
owned by Bison Capital. Bison Capital is in turn wholly and Ho HFREARNHGREZEERER - R
beneficially owned by Mr. XU. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. XU is WGBS M BB > e vl st B A
deemed to be interested in the shares of Bliss Chance held by Bison BEARAME B IR PHEA R - R4 R
Capital. Mr. XU is a director of Bliss Chance and Bison Capital. HEMHBRERNESR -
2. Bliss Chance and Bison Capital are the holding companies of the 2. BN HEFREARBARN AR A o

Company.

Short positions in shares and undcrlying shares of
the Company and associated corporations

(i) Short position in shares and undcrlying
shares

i
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D md

S

LR gk 925 T e oy B A+ R
- 1] 19 B R 0 1 7%

% of total issued

Name of Director Corporate interests shares
e et ¥
wHHREEH 2\ HE Iy @ 4 ke
Mr. XU 680,508,005 (Note 1) 57.43%
e 680,508,005 (M7t 1)
Note: M]LEI :

All of these Shares held by Bliss Chance have been charged in favour
of Fruitful Worldwide Limited (“Fruitful Worldwide”). Fruitful
Worldwide is wholly-owned by China Huarong International Holdings
Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. All the ordinary shares of Bliss Chance are
wholly and beneficially owned by Bison Capital. Bison Capital is in
turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. XU. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. XU is deemed to be interested in the short positions in the
shares of the Company held by Bliss Chance.

1.

2B FEA MRS B 28 2 KT T Fruitful
Worldwide Limited ([ Fruitful Worldwide]) °
Fruitful Worldwide B H B0 2 i |20 PR 428 IE A PR 2
A AREEEA > I b EE L PR A PR A
P AP I A R A IR R AR
e FEREEBYHAREARE TR
WA - ARREARM BRI SEESHER -
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(ii) Short positions in associated corporation

Name of associated

(ii) TR Wi 2 1 B 3

Total number of % of total issued

Name of Director corporation Interests shares held shares
TE:S It i)
EHEA il Ry B 1 % it 5 Jie oy 48 84 i 4 i 43 kb
Mr. XU Bliss Chance (Note 1) Corporate interests 325,119,444 ordinary shares of 100%
no par value

ek 8 (Wit O A 4 305,119,444 1 10 T {5 4 1

Note: Bk -

1. Bliss Chance is the hol(ling company of the Company. All ordinary 1. FERAARRNFMER AT - BAREARFEEDN

shares of Bliss Chance held by Bison Capital have been charged in
favour of Fruitful Worldwide. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. XU is
deemed to be interested in the short positions in the shares of Bliss
Chance held by Bison Capital.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved and adopted at the AGM held on 8 June
2018. The scheme mandate limit under the Share Option Scheme
has been refreshed to 118,486,533 share options of the Company
(the “Share Options”), representing the approximately 10% of the
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) in issue as at the date of
passing of the resolution, at the AGM held on 16 June 2020. Please
refer to the circular of the Company dated 29 April 2020 for
further details.

The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company as a reward for their contribution
and to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its sharcholders as a whole. The Share Option
Scheme will provide the Company with a flexible means of
either retaining, incentivising, rcwarding, remunerating,

compensating and/or providing benefits to participants.

2. The participants of the Share Option Scheme include any

employees, directors (including independent non-executive

director), sharcholders, suppliers, customers, consultants,

business or joint venture partners, franchisees, contractors,
advisers,

agents, lenders or financiers of the Group and

associates of any of the foregoing persons.
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3. The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 118,486,533 Shares, representing
approximately 10% of the issued Shares as at 30 March 2021
(the date of this Annual Report).

4. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of share options granted to each participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in

issue.

5. The exercise period of any share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period must
not exceed ten years from the date of grant of the relevant
share options.

6. The Board has the authority to determine any minimum
period(s) for which a share option must be held before it can
be exercised. However, it is not a mandatory condition for
the participant(s) to hold the share options for a minimum
period before exercise of the share options granted.

7. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the share options
must be made within 14 days from the date of offer with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from each participant.

8. The subscription price of share options shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share on the
date of grant.

9. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme on 8 June 2018.

For further details of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 30 April
2018.
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Particulars of the outstanding Share Options granted under the Share BE_F_FHE+_H=1+—HILFE B
Option Scheme and their movements during the year ended 31 s e RRE 3 432 T 1 A AT O Y B R R A L

December 2020 were as follows: BEMT
Number of
Share Options Share Options
Exercise Balance as at granted on Exercised cancelled/ Balance as at
price 1 January =27 March 2020 during  lapsed during 31 December
Grantees Date of grant per Share Exercise period 2020 (Notes 1 & 2) the year the year 2020
#
BE CZZF0%E L
ZRIRE ZAZHEH EnDRES FFE
“H—H &R KA A=+
S-IN il H HRATHEE M WERE (AR RN BH 9 85 4
1. Directors
3
MA Weihua 27 March 2020 HKs0.33 From 27 March 2020 to - 11,000,000 - - 11,000,000
26 March 2025
MR e e 2 ot MoFSEE=ASTLHE
=R=+tn CECHE=ATTAHR
Mr. XU 27 March 2020 HKs0.33 From 27 March 2020 to - 1,180,000 - - 1,180,000
26 March 2025
Rtk e e 2 ot MoFSEE=ASTLHE
=R=+tn CECHE=ATTAHR
SUN Lei 27 March 2020 HKs0.33 From 27 March 2020 to - 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
26 March 2025
i e e 2 ot MoFSFE=ASTLHE
=R=+tn CECHE=ATTAHR
ZHU Dong 27 March 2020 HKs0.33 From 27 March 2020 to - 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
26 March 2025
KE e e 2 ot MoFSFE=ASTLHE
Epi e e CECHE=ASTAHE
QI Daging 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to - 1,180,000 - - 1,180,000
26 March 2025
VPN 4 SERCRE Blonr HoFSEE=ASHERE
=R=+ttn CECHE=ATTAHR
CHEN Yigong 27 March 2020 HKs0.33 From 27 March 2020 to - 1,180,000 - - 1,180,000
26 March 2025
Bs T e e 2 ot MOFSFE=ASTLHE
=R=+ttn CECHE=ATTAH
FENG Zhonghua 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to — 1,180,000 — - 1,180,000
26 March 2025
52 e e 2 B0t MoFSFE=ASTLHE
=R=+tn CECHE=ATTAH
2. Employees 27 March 2020 HKs0.33 From 27 March 2020 to - 22,000,000 - 22,000,000 -
12 September 2020
fEE e e 2 kot MOFSEE=ASTLHE
=AZ4tR “ZCRENLATCH
27 March 2020 HKs0.33 From 27 March 2020 to - 36,500,000 - - 36,500,000

26 March 2025
CERCTE W03t MOFSERE=ASHLHZE
)< s o | CECHFEZASTAH
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Number of

Share Options Share Options

Exercise Balance as at granted on Exercised cancelled/ Balance as at

price 1 January = 27 March 2020 during  lapsed during 31 December

Grantees Date of grant per Share Exercise period 2020 (Notes 1 & 2) the year the year 2020

#

[ E R e 21 LES

CRO®RE ZAZLN ENCHES SR ORE

—“H—H R R A =4

3TN il 1 BRATHER M WRE (R RERATEE #H )3
3. Other participants 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to — 31,800,000 — 31,800,000 —

12 September 2020
b2 & e St 222 w033 WIFSEFFE=A-THEHAE
=AZ1+tH SEZEERATZH
27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 -
26 March 2025
SR 03 WoF-FFEZHTLAR
ZHZtEH SECEEZAZFAH
Total: — 118,020,000 — 57,800,000 60,220,000
A
Notes: B &E -

1. The closing price per Share on 26 March 2020, being the date immediately 1. A TECFAEZH RS H ORI BB I A AT

before the date on which the Share Options were granted, was HK$0.31.

2. Share Options under the Share Option Scheme granted on 27 March 2020 has
been vested immediately.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a total of 118,020,000
Share Options (2019: Nil) which were granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme are accepted, among which 53,800,000 Share
Options and 4,000,000 Share Options were lapsed on 12
September 2020 and 1 December 2020, respectively. As at 31
December 2020, there were 60,220,000 outstanding Share Options
(2019: Nil) granted under the Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, there were no outstanding Share Options
granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2020.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

In order to (i) complement the Share Option Scheme; (ii) provide
incentives for the participants to continuously make substantial
contributions for the long-term growth of the Group in the future;
(iii) further align the interests of the selected participants directly to
the shareholders of the Company through ownership of Shares; (iv)
attract and retain talented participants who may be beneficial to the
growth and development of the Group; and (v) encourage or
facilitate the holding of Shares by the participants, on 24 August
2018, the Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) under which Shares (the “Award Shares”) may
be awarded to selected participants which include employees,

— H) B R A s R 0.31 0T ©

2, WA TR TR =] oAb AR O R B 0 Y
T ROHE 0 BV IR B o o

BE_FZ-FHET_H=1+—HILFE > R
R R ERE NS /\118,020,000{53‘E%H>z%
(ZE—NLFE m)OEERN EI353 800 000
193 1 1 WE % 4,000 ooo{%ﬂﬁﬂx%ﬁﬁﬂ [
FTEALAT AR -E_RFE T+ _H—HK
Mo WE T _TEFT A=A —H o RIEHE
Ji RE 51 B 3% 0 TR AT ﬁE’J i i e
60,220,00017 ( & — JU4F © %)

BRULEERH SN WE—F _FEF A=t
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H B Jih st 21
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directors (including executive and non-executive directors), officers,
agents or consultants of the Group pursuant to the terms of the
scheme rules and trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. The Share
Award Scheme is be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on the adoption date of the Share Award Scheme on
24 August 2018.

In connection with the implementation of the Share Award Scheme,
the Board or the Board committee may from time to time cause to
be paid certain funds to the trustee for the subscription of new
Shares and/or purchase of the existing Shares (either on-market or
off-market) and to hold them in trust for the benefit of the selected
participants and for the satisfaction of awards granted or to be
granted under the Share Award Scheme upon vesting. The trustee
shall not exercise any voting right in respect of any Award Shares
held in trust by it under the Share Award Scheme.

Subject to the provisions of the Share Award Scheme, the Board or
the Board committee may, from time to time, grant such number of
Award Shares (subject to any vesting criteria and conditions or
periods for the Award Shares to be vested as determined by the
Board or the Board Committee) to any selected participants at a
price (i) equal to or lower than the average subscription price per
share of all Shares subscribed by the trustee at the date of grant
(other than those Award Shares granted but not yet vested) (in the
case of subscription of new Shares) or (ii) equal to or lower than
the average purchase price per Share of all Shares purchased by the
trustee as at the date of grant (other than those Award Shares
granted but not yet vested) (in the case of purchase of existing
Shares) on and subject to such terms and conditions as it may in its
absolute discretion determine.

The Company shall not make any further grant of award which will
result in the number of Shares granted under the Share Award
Scheme exceeding ten per cent of the total number of issued Shares
from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme purchased a total of 10,000,000 Shares (2019:
38,356,000 Shares) from the market at a total cost of
HK$3,671,210 (2019: HK$43,980,520) (excluding all related
expenses, transaction levy, brokerage, tax, duties and levies) and a
total of 11,500,000 Shares (2019: 17,610,000 Shares) have been
granted to the selected participants pursuant to the terms of the
Share Award Scheme.

As at 31 December 2020, 43,890,000 Shares (31 December 2019:
45,390,000 Shares) were held by the trustee for the purpose of the
Share Award Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Further details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in note 32(a)
to the financial statements.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is currently
in force and was in force throughout the year ended 31 December

2020.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in notes 5, 6, 21, 23, 28
and 34 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report. Such transactions were either (i) fully exempt from the
reporting, annual review,
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(1) and
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules or (ii) did not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

announcement and independent

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Company did not have any connected transactions or continuing
connected transaction which were subject to the reporting

requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed
TRANSACTIONS”,

significance to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,

“CONNECTED

arrangement or contract of

above section headed

no transaction,

subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND  E R ot J I fl A L7 Ji iy ]2
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND R B Tt A 4 HE i B IR AT

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND,
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the MEEZEFET+_H=1T—H > BARAFAER
persons (not being Directors and chief executives of the Company) K@ AT BN B AN A AR 2 B s CHAT T A
in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company or any of its Wt 1 1 (e 26 LGB 5 B B R 491D BB XV ER) 1Y)
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) JE A3 T A B 15 Ay v AT AR R 2 % ) Mk 49D
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange S5 XV A 2 Je 340 T ZE N g A\ S W A BT K
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required ZHEA AN FIAR B5 G 2 T A B 191D 36 336 I
to be entered into the register maintained by the Company pursuant A S MR SIRE W

to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Total number of % of total issued

Name Capacity Shares held Shares
i 2z BB © #3474y
#h S Fin 5 47 JBe A B8 [EFi:A
Bliss Chance (Note 1) Beneficial owner 680,508,005 57.43%
=B (M) Ha A A
Bison Capital (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 680,508,005 57.43%
HIRER (Mf7t2) 32428 i 15 1 ) R i
Ms. JIANG Feng Yun (Note 3) Interest of spouse 681,688,005 57.53%
B E Lt (W aEs) PC % F) HE i
Fruitful Worldwide (Note 4) Person having a security interest 678,259,144 57.24%
in shares
Fruitful Worldwide (#f7£4) T e Ay v A D% o HE i )
China Huarong International Person having a security interest 678,259,144 57.24%
Holdings Limited (Note 4) in shares
k] 2 il o] % 428 A R ] TP A7y v A DR A E £ 9 A £
(Htit+)
China Huarong Asset Management Person having a security interest 678,259,144 57.24%
Co., Ltd. (Note 4) in shares
ook e A P A PR R R e A PR R R A
(Htit+)
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Total number of % of total issued
Shares held Shares

[t TaR i ZFy 2/

Pt 5 A i B8 8 Ak

Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong)
Financial Holdings Limited
(“Dongxing Securities
(Hong Kong)”) (Note 5)

TR 75 (%) < Fl 42 i
AR A (TR (i) )
(Htits)

Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd (Note 6)
LGS I A R A (B ite)
China Orient Asset Management
Co., Ltd. (Note 6)
Hh I SR A PR A PR
(Htite)
Cruiser Determined Limited (Note 7)
Cruiser Determined Limited (#/7L7)
Mr. TAN Bin (Note 7)
AR e (Rt 7)
Ms. DENG Xianzi (Note 8)
B T ot (Wt ats)

Notes:

1. Bliss Chance owns 680,508,005 Shares.

Beneficial owner

oA A

Person having a security interest
in shares

TP A7 rb B A DR A E £ 9 A £

Interest of controlled corporation
2 Y5 1 18 T R R

Interest of controlled corporation
2 Y5 1 18 T R R

Beneficial owner

HafEa A

Interest of controlled corporation
2 1 T T A

Interest of spouse

ic 1 P HE 4

it -

2. As Bliss Chance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bison Capital, Bison Capital 2.

is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by Bliss

Chance under the SFO.

3. Ms. JIANG Feng Yun is the spouse of Mr. XU. She is deemed to be interested 3.
in 681,688,005 Shares which represents the same interest of Mr. XU for the

purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

4. All these Shares held by Bliss Chance have been charged in favour of Fruitful 4.
Worldwide. As Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-owned by China Huarong

International Holdings Limited., which in turn is wholly-owned by China

Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd., China Huarong International Holdings

Limited and China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. are deemed to be

interested in the security interest in the 678,259,144 Shares charged in
favour of Fruitful Worldwide for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

5. Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) owns 2,914,000 Shares and is interested in 5.

the security interest in 103,624,000 Shares.

6. Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd. and China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd. 6.
are deemed to be interested in the same interests of Dongxing Securities

(Hong Kong). Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) is wholly owned by
Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd. which is 52.74% held by China Orient Asset

Management Co., Ltd.

2,914,000 0.24%
103,624,000 8.75%
106,538,000 8.99%
106,538,000 8.99%
103,624,000 8.75%
103,624,000 8.75%
103,624,000 8.75%

B A 680,508,005 BE A7)

MU B A BB A 2 B 28w > R AR 9%
(7 RIRWBD) > BEREAREH AN E B AR
S SRR O B P B A R

AR E b AR R o DB AR
681,688,005 [ JI 3 vl Bl A1 W 4 - 0 (A8 O I 0D £ Ak
B XV IR & > 6% 55 Mt 15 15 58 A A B9 AR [R] HE

o

H BRI AT CAKHH T Fruitful Worldwide © H
Ji® Fruitful Worldwide H *@%Hﬂ@ﬂj E%PITH&%‘FE/Z} w4
A T e I A R R D B e
Pl A BB A AT BR S B B AT > MOt GIE o K
BRI S X VIR I 5 > o ) 3 il o] P48 I B
A M H I R A A BR A R B A B
HEA T Fruitful Worldwide 19678,259, 144 B 0 o HE A
fREME R

RBLEE S (i) HEA 2,914,000 B A5G R 103,624,000
TRy B R RS RE AR o

TR 8 5 B A ) e v B TR A R IR R A
AR 2 T R 5 (B s ) B AR R ME 4 o AR
Fr () By RBLRE 50 IRA Al 2 S > B J
i BRZA ) H A B R A R A BR A WA
52.74%HE£5 ©
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7. Cruiser Determined Limited owns 103,624,000 Shares. As Cruiser
Determined Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TAN Bin, Mr.
TAN Bin is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by
Cruiser Determined Limited under the SFO.

8. Ms. DENG Xianzi is the spouse of Mr. TAN Bin. She is deemed to be
interested in 103,624,000 Shares which represents the same interest of Mr.
TAN Bin for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

SHORT POSITIONS IN THE ISSUED
SHARES

Name Capacity

# H 5

7. Cruiser Determined Limited%%’ﬁ103,624—,0005&%“} o i
JiA Cruiser Determined Limited B 38 M2 56 4= EERE W
B o DR AR G 2R B B ) > B S 2R A
£y A Cruiser Determined Limited 35 4[] 55 #0819 A f7
A HER o

8. BOWA 7 Lo B RE W e AR Y BE A o Bk W B iR
103,624,000 8 I 173 Hp 8 5 M 2 3k CGRE 25 B ) 1R Mk
B EEXVIERIN T > 5% 55 HE 25 15 s A Jo 2B A 1o AR ]
WSS o

it O3 AT e Oy IR A

Total number of

Shares held that
are subject to % of total issued
short position Shares

RS R R A o R LY 4
R ey BB Har ke

Bliss Chance (Note 1) Beneficial owner 680,508,005 57.43%
=8 (M) Ha A A
Bison Capital (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 680,508,005 57.43%
HIREAR (Mf7t1) 242 ] 35 T ) i
Ms. JIANG Feng Yun (Note 2) Interest of spouse 680,508,005 57.43%
WREL A (FE2) Fic {1 1) HE 4

Notes: i &E

1. All these Shares held by Bliss Chance have been charged in favour of Fruitful 1. HE A B AT E KA T Fruitful - Worldwide °

Worldwide. Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-owned by China Huarong
International Holdings Limited., which in turn is wholly-owned by China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. All the ordinary shares of Bliss Chance
are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison Capital. Bison Capital is in turn
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. XU. Bison Capital is deemed to be
interested in the short position of Shares of Bliss Chance for the purpose of
Part XV of the SFO.

2. Ms. JIANG Feng Yun is the spouse of Mr. XU. She is deemed to be interested
in the short position of the Shares of Mr. XU for the purpose of Part XV of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, no other interests or short positions
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of
the SFO have been notified to the Company.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS”, there was no contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling
Sharcholder or any of its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESSES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and
their respective close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
were interested in any businesses that competed or were likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

MA]JOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during

the financial year is as follows:
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%%&ﬁ%"fﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁvﬁki ﬁ(i
HALAL) \,\ZIK%[%Eﬁ%a’%EEjZFﬁﬁ 5T B
] RE E T+ A A AT SE S Hh A RE AR o

ERE P KA

A BUFEE N > AR 2R AR Sy
Sl E A ) 8 1 D R BRI T

Percentage of the Group’s total

A 4 [ AR 0 43 L
Sales Purchases
WE Wi H
The largest customer mRKEF 7%
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the largest suppliers of the
Group include two external asset management consultants, Citybus
Limited, New World First Bus Services Limited, The Kowloon
Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited,
Production Company Limited. The Group recognises that it is

Sin  Fung Advertising

important to maintain good relationship with our suppliers so as to
deliver the high-quality products and services to customers.

No Director who held office at 31 December 2020 nor any of his
close associates; nor any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number of

issued Shares) had any interest in the largest suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme purchased a total of 10,000,000 Shares (2019:
38,356,000 Shares) from the market at a total cost of
HK$3,671,210 (2019: HKS$43,980,520) (excluding all related
expenses, transaction levy, brokerage, tax, duties and levies) and a
total of 11,500,000 Shares (2019: 17,610,000 Shares) have been
granted to the selected participants pursuant to the terms of the
Share Award Scheme.

As at 31 December 2020, 43,890,000 Shares (31 December 2019:
45,390,000 Shares) were held by the trustee for the purpose of the
Share Award Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, necither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s

listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s

listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws and the laws of Bermuda.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
its sharcholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has not
entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body

corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part
of any business of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Shares Issued and Share
Capital”, “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” above,
no equity-linked agreement was entered into during the year ended
31 December 2020 or subsisted at the end of the year ended 31
December 2020.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 210 to
211 of this Annual Report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and
participates in employee pension schemes organised by the local
governments of the PRC under the regulations of the PRC. All

these retirement schemes are defined contribution plans.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITORS

During the year, Messrs. KPMG has resigned as auditor of the
Company with effect from 30 June 2020 (the “Resignation”).
Following the Resignation, Messrs. Ernst & Young (“EY”) has been
appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy
with effect from 8 July 2020 and to hold office until the conclusion
of the next AGM. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 30 June 2020 and 8 July 2020 for details.

A resolution for the re-appointment of EY as auditor of the
Company shall be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

ZHU Dong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FRAMEWORK

Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) have placed strong emphasis on
maintaining high standards of corporate governance and believe that
good corporate governance provides a solid and sound framework to
assist the board (the “Board”) of directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities to the
Company and its shareholders. The Company also believes that good
corporate governance practices are important to protect the
interests of its shareholders and to build the investors’ confidence.
The Board applied the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 (“CG Code”) to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
through various Board committees who are responsible for different
functions and reviewing this Corporate Governance Report to enable
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) to evaluate how
these principles are being applied.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the CG
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 December 2020, save for the deviation from code
provision E.1.2 as described below.

The Chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 16 June 2020 (“2020 AGM”) as stipulated in code
provision E.1.2 due to other business engagements and strict
compliance with COVID-19 pandemic prevention and control
measures. The Board had arranged Mr. SUN Lei, being executive
director and chief executive officer of the Company, to attend and
Mr. ZHU Dong, being our executive director and chief financial
officer of the Company to attend and chair the 2020 AGM together
with the external independent auditor of the Company with a view
to answer and address the enquiries from the attending

Shareholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Overall accountability

The Directors are individually and collectively accountable to the
Sharcholders for the success and sustainable development of the
Company. The Board provides direction and approval in relation to
matters concerning the Company’s business strategies, policies and
plans whilst the day-to-day business operations are delegated to the
executive Directors (“EDs”). The Board is accountable to the
Shareholders and in discharging its corporate accountability, every
Director is required to pursue excellence in the best interests of the
Shareholders and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying the required
level of skills, care and diligence up to a standard in accordance

with the statutory requirements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2020, the Board has seven Directors, among
which independent non-executive Directors (INEDs”) represent
more than one-third of the Board members. The list of Directors
are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 27 of this Annual
Report.

These INEDs bring in a wide range of business and financial
experience to the Board, which facilitates the provision of strategic
advice in the future development of the Group. Dr. QI Dagqing,
who is the chairman of the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 December 2020 and as at the date of this Annual Report,
possesses appropriate professional qualifications and experience in
financial matters. The Company has received from cach INED an
annual written confirmation of his independence pursuant to the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers that all INEDs are independent.

Board Structure
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The biographical details of the current members of the Board are set
out in the “Profiles of Directors” section on pages 20 to 23 of this
Annual Report. The current structure and composition of the Board
provide it with an appropriate mix of skills, knowledge, experiences
and diversity of perspectives for the Group’s businesses. Save for
disclosed herein, there were no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationship among members of the Board and
senior management during the year.

A list of current Directors identifying their roles and functions is
maintained on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Board Responsibilities and Dclcgali()n

The Board is responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the
best interests of the Company. The types of decisions that are taken
by the Board include those relating to:

. strategic plans and objectives of the Company;

. monitoring and controlling the Group’s operating and financial
performance;

. overseeing the management of relationships with stakeholders,

including  Shareholders, customers, government, suppliers,
employees and the community;

. ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, the relevant training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions;

. the corporate governance functions; and

. overseeing the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems.

Day-to-day management of the business of the Company is
delegated to the EDs who are required to report back to the Board.

All Directors have devoted sufficient time and attention to the

affairs of the Company during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, to fulfill the corporate
governance functions, the Board has: (i) reviewed and monitored
the policies and practices of the Company on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (ii) reviewed and monitored the
training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; (iii) reviewed compliance of the Company with
the CG Code, save for deviations from code provision E.1.2 as
described above; (iv) reviewed code of conduct applicable to
Directors and employees of the Group; and (v) reviewed the

policies and practices on corporate governance of the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the Directors and its officers.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. MA Weihua is the Chairman and Mr. SUN Lei is the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company (“CEO”). The roles of the
Chairman and CEO are served by different individuals to achieve a
balance of authority and power, which is in compliance with code
provision A.2.1.
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The Chairman is mainly responsible for leading the Board with the
support of the Board committees, senior management and the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) to
ensure the effective operation of the Board to fully discharge its
responsibilities. CEO is delegated with the authorities from the
Board to manage the day-to-day business operation of the Group,
and recommend the corporate strategic plan to the Board.

The Chairman has held a meeting with INEDs without the presence
of other Directors during the year.

Board Mcctings

The Board held meetings regularly throughout the year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group. All Directors are kept informed on a
regular basis of major changes that may significantly affect the
Group’s businesses, including development of relevant rules and
regulations.

Apl)ointmcnt and Re-election of Directors

Each of EDs, INEDs and non-executive Director has entered into
service agreement or letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years. Such term is subject to the retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”). The bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”) provide that:

1. each Director who has been longest in office since his last re-
election or appointment shall retire from office by rotation at
least once every three years; and

2. any Director appointed by the Board, (i) to fill the causal
vacancy on the Board, shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company (the “General
Meeting”) or (i) as an addition to the Board, shall hold
office only until the next following AGM, and they shall then
be eligible for re-election at such either of General Meeting
or AGM.

Directors’ Induction and Training

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year ended 31
December 2020, Directors are provided with monthly updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to fully discharge their duties.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of
trainings received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2020 is as follows:

MRPEHE R R FC s > B REE T T
T H =4 B s B a2
T

Type of Trainings™* ?

Name of Directors EHHENAL 35 30 K owiva - w)
Chairman and Non-Executive
Director: ERRIERITES : A, B
Dr. MA Weihua BB R IE
Executive Directors: AT -
Mr. XU Peixin B ik Se 2k A, B
Mr. SUN Lei T e A, B
Mr. ZHU Dong RASEE A, B
Independent Non-Executive
Directors: B IERATEDS -
Dr. QI Daqing VPN A, B
Mr. CHEN Yigong BN 5 A, B
Mr. FENG Zhonghua S A, B
Notes: BiFE
A, Reading materials and updates on various topics, including corporate A. B A B A ) S (B A B R R

governance matters and directors’ duties and responsibilities

B. Attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or briefings

Com pany Secreta ry

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. WONG Kwan
Yeung (“Mr. WONG”) was the Company Secretary until his
resignation with effect from 1 September 2020. Mr. WONG is a
full-time employee of the Company and undertook over 15 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Fun (“Ms. CHEUNG”), who possesses the
requisite qualification and experience of a company secretary as
required under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, has been appointed
as the Company Secretary with effect from 1 September 2020.
Under code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code, the company secretary
should be an employee of the Company and have the day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Ms. CHEUNG is not an
employee of the Company. Mr. ZHU Dong, an executive director
and a chief financial officer of the Company, has been assigned as
the main contact person of the Company with Ms. CHEUNG so as
to ensure Ms. CHEUNG can obtain and access the information of
the Group’s major affairs. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
Ms. CHEUNG undertook over 15 hours of professional training to
update her skills and knowledge.

BOARD COMMITTEES

In order to oversee various aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established various Board Committees. All the members
of the Board Committees are INEDs.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
was established on 11 April 2001 with its terms of reference
formulated in accordance with the Listing Rules and the CG Code.
As at the date of this Annual Report, the Audit Committee has
comprised three INEDs, namely, Dr. QI Daging, Mr. CHEN
Yigong and Mr. FENG Zhonghua. Dr. QI Dagqing is the chairman of
the Audit Committee who has appropriate professional qualifications

and experiences in financial matters.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in fulfilling its responsibilities relating to accounting and reporting
practices, to improve the credibility and objectivity of the
Company’s financial and other reports, and to strengthen the
systems of internal control and risk management and compliance

with all applicable laws and regulations.

During the year, the Audit Committee held three meetings and
performed the following works as summarized below:

. reviewed the Directors’ Report, Independent Auditor’s Report
and Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019 and the 2019 Annual Report and made a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

. reviewed the Company’s interim financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2020 and the 2020 Interim Report
and made a recommendation to the Board for approval;

. reviewed the Company’s accounting policies and its compliance
with the prevailing accounting standards of Hong Kong and
the results of the external audits;

. reviewed and assessed the effectiveness of risk management
system and internal control system taking into account the
2019 Enterprise Risk Assessment Report and 2019 Internal
Control Review Report for the Group of an independent
professional firm (the “Internal Auditor”), issued after
completion of the independent assessment of the risk
management system and internal control system conducted by
the Internal Auditor;

. reviewed and monitored the compliance of the Group with all

applicable laws, regulations, standards and best practice

guidelines; and

. made a recommendation to the Board on the appointment of
the external auditor of the Company (the “Extermal
Auditor”) and approved the remuneration and the terms of
engagement of the External Auditor.

The Audit Committee also met in separate private sessions with the
External Auditor twice during the year.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 23 March 2004 with its terms of
reference formulated in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
CG Code. As at the date of this Annual Report, the Remuneration
FENG
FENG

Committee has comprised three INEDs, namely, Mr.
Zhonghua, Dr. QI Daqing and Mr. CHEN Yigong. Mr.
Zhonghua is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to define
and articulate a compensation philosophy or strategy consistent with
the strategic objectives of the Company. To achieve this objective,
the Remuneration Committee has established the remuneration
policy of the Directors and senior management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will
review the proposals made by the senior management on the
remuneration packages of the EDs and senior management, and
make recommendations to the Board. The Board will have final
authority to approve the recommendations made by the

Remuneration Committee.

The principal elements of the Company’s remuneration policy for

Directors and senior management are that:

. no individual should determine his or her own remuneration
package;
. remuneration packages should be on a par with companies

whom the Company competes for human resources market;

. the Company should aim at designing remuneration packages
that attract and retain executives needed to run the Group’s
business successfully and motivate them to pursue appropriate
growth strategies whilst it should avoid paying an excessive
amount for such purposes;

. remuneration packages should reflect the performance and
responsibility of an individual, as well as the complexity of
work; and

. remuneration packages should be structured in such a way that

they provide incentives to Directors and senior management
to improve their individual performance.
During the year, the Remuneration Committee performed the

following works as summarised below:

. reviewed the remuneration packages of EDs and senior
management and considered any relevant adjustment(s);
Directors’

. reviewed the fee proposals and made a

recommendation to the Board for approval;

. reviewed the proposal in relation to grant of share options of
the Company to all Directors and made a recommendation to
the Board for approval; and
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. reviewed the service agreement of each of Dr. MA Weihua,
Mr. XU Peixin and Mr. ZHU Dong and a letter of
appointment of each of Dr. QI Daqing, Mr. CHEN Yigong
and Mr. FENG Zhonghua regarding the renewal of a term of
3 years and the proposed remuneration packages and made a
recommendation to the Board for approval.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 8 March 2006 with its terms of
reference formulated in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
CG Code. As at the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination
Committee has comprised three INEDs, namely, Mr. CHEN
Yigong, Dr. QI Daqing and Mr. FENG Zhonghua. Mr. CHEN
Yigong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

. reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s

corporate strategy;

. reviewing the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below) at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed
revisions (where required) to the Board for consideration and

approval;

. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, and making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships. In
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the criteria as set forth
in the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below), and whether
such candidate would facilitate or assist the development of

the existing or future business of the Company;
. assessing the independence of INEDs; and

. making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and CEO.

Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) in August 2013 which was updated on 20 December
2019. The Company recognised and embraced the benefits of having
a diverse Board that fits its own business model and specific needs
in order to enhance the quality of its performance. The Board
Diversity Policy aimed at setting out the approach to achieve
diversity within the Board. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity within the
Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision on the
appointment of the Directors will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates can bring to the Board

without focusing on only one single diversity aspect.

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure its effectiveness.

During the year, the Nomination Committee performed the

following works as summarised below:

. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board;
. reviewed and assessed the independence of INEDs for the year

ended 31 December 2020 and considered that all INEDs

were independent; and

. made a recommendation to the Board on the retirement and
re-appointment of Directors by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM.

Directors’ Attendance at Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Chairman has held a
meeting with INEDs without the presence of other Directors in
compliance with code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code. Details of
Directors’ attendance at the AGM, Board and Board committee
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in

the following table:

B8 NS4 I — R 9 2 T AL WG o Ve
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Meeting(s) attendance/held

E T V& 2508

Audit Remuneration Nomination 2020 AGM
Board  Committee =~ Committee Committee (Note 1)
“EORE
B AR R
Name of Directors EFEA #HE FHHUZRE FMZEHE REZERE (Hit1)
Chairman and Non-Executive EY Y EF KT
Director: E
Dr. MA Weihua HREER L 26 n/a NEF na ANEF na AEA 0/1
Executive Directors: HiTHEH
Mr. XU Peixin Rk E 4 0/6  n/a MM n/a A n/a N 0/1
Mr. SUN Lei RERAE 6/6  n/a NEM  n/a A n/a N 1/1
Mr. ZHU Dong ﬂig%@‘c 6/6 n/a AN A n/a AN T n/a AN T 1/1
Independent Non-Executive BoEPrES
Directors:
Dr. QI Daging PR B 1 6/6 3/3 1”1 1”1 0/1
Mr. CHEN Yigong BN T 6/6 3/3 1”1 1”1 0/1
Mr. FENG Zhonghua L s 3/6 2/3 1/1 1/1 0/1
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Note:

1. Dr. MA Weihua, Mr. XU Peixin, Dr. QI Daqging, Mr. CHEN Yigong and Mr.
FENG Zhonghua were unable to attend 2020 AGM due to other business
engagements and strict compliance with COVID-19 prevention and control
measures. Please also refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance

Code” above for details.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

All Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major
business activities and key financial information on monthly basis.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s
financial statements for each financial year or period that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows position for that year or period. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Directors have:

. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently with appropriate accounting standards;

. made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable;
and
. prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Group’s financial statements. This responsibility extends to annual
and interim reports, inside information announcements and other
financial disclosures, as well as reports to regulators and information
required to be disclosed in a timely manner pursuant to the relevant
rules and regulations. The responsibility of the External Auditor for
the audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 88 to 94 of this Annual Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

In line with the sound practice that the independence of the
External Auditor should not be impaired by other non-audit
assignments, the Group ensures that assignments other than
statutory audits undertaken by the External Auditor do not have an
adverse impact on their independence. The External Auditor is also
required to review its relationship with the Group and furnish

confirmation to the Audit Committee regarding its independence.
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During 2020, the External Auditor (including any entity under
common control, ownership or management with the External
Auditor or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
having knowledge of all relevant information would reasonably
conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or internationally)
provided the following audit and non-audit services to the Group.

Details are set out below:

i %

Services

AT AR AN A BRI (645 AT o] B A B
W B 32 (7] — MR R ) - B B R s R
Fi A5 F B R B4 5 = B A T R R0 17 ot i g L

% % BT 2 T A 2 R R R A B )
B AR SEEARBE DL N M 3% S IR IR - REIE
AW R

2020 2019
EORE CF R
HKS$ HKS

N ESTH AN

A A% M 5

Audit services

2,573,000 3,070,000

Non-audit services (Note 1)

I AL (Wt 1)

1,024,000 620,000

Note:

1. Non-audit services for both years mainly consisted of the reviews of the
Group’s interim financial reports and the performance of certain agreed-upon

procedures.

An independence confirmation has been obtained from the External
Auditor confirming that for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this Annual Report, the External Auditor is
independent of the Group in accordance with the independence
requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board should oversee the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems on an on-going basis, and ensure that a review
of the effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Senior management is primarily responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of the internal control and risk
management systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against

material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks that it is willing to
take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that
the Group has established and maintained an appropriate and
effective risk management system.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the overall risk
management framework of the Group and to advise the Board on
the Group’s risk-related matters.

52 Bison Finance Groul) Limited Annual Report 2020
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With the assistance of the external consultant (the “External
Consultant”), the Company has adopted a Risk Management
Manual since 16 December 2016, which sets out the Group’s risk
management policy, risk management framework and risk
management process for the purpose of enhancing the risk
management of the Group. The Risk Management Manual was

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

approved and reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Risk Mana gement Framewo rk

The Group’s risk management framework is based on a “Three
Lines of Defence” model with a systematic approach and clearly
defined roles and responsibilities of relevant parties.

1st Line of Defence
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Risk ownership
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2nd Line of Defence
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Departments/Business Units/Staff Members

. identifying existing controls relating to the risks in
their areas and evaluating the adequacy of the
control;

. designing risk responses (i.e. actions to improve or

optimise controls or mitigate risks identified during
the risk assessment process) for risks without
adequate control to mitigate risks to the target
tolerance level;

. implementing the risk responses for which they are
responsible for;

. reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of risk
responses for which they are responsible for updating
the Risk Management Task Force at least semi-
annually on the status of their risk responses

implementation.
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Risk management
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Risk Management Task Force

. providing support to the senior management during
the process of design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems,
and ensuring that it is consistently applied across the

Group;
. maintaining and updating the risk register;
. providing the risk owners with the methodology for

conducting the risk and control monitoring activities,
providing direction and training on how to complete
the risk response plans and other risk reports; and

. overseeing activities performed by risk owners,
obtaining and reviewing work prepared by the risk

owners.
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2nd Line of Defence

5 78 b %

Risk reporting
Jo Bt B

Risk oversight
JoR Bt s 5%

3rd Line of Defence

5 =78 bl 4

Senior Management

. monitoring risk management process and developing
relevant responses to risks;

. certifying that they operate an effective system of risk
management and have undertaken an exercise to
identify and assess significant risks faced by the
Group;

. reporting to the Audit Committee on the progress and
status of the risk management process; and

. reviewing the risk register and reporting the
effectiveness of risk management to the Audit
Committee and the Board annually.

Audit Committee
. overseeing the Group’s overall risk management
framework and to advise the Board on the Group’s

risk-related matters;

. approving the Group’s risk policies and risk
tolerances;
. reviewing risk reports and breaches of risk tolerances

and policies; and

. reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk control/mitigation tools including the
enterprise risk management programme, the risk
management systems, the internal audit function
relating to risk management and the Group’s

contingency plans annually.
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Independent assurance

AT

Bison Finance Group Limited

Internal Audit Function

. outsourced to the External Consultant;

. carrying out the audit plan, assessing and analysing if
the controls stated in the risk register is sufficient
and effective; and

. supporting the Board through the Audit Committee in
reviewing the effectiveness and efficiency of the

Group’s risk management system.
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Risk Management Process

The 5-Step risk management process is adopted under the Group’s
risk management framework, as illustrated below:

Steps
3 B

(=

Step 1 E—
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Risk Management Process
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Step 3 E=

Risk Owner Appointment
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Risk Identification Risk Assessment and Prioritisation
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Step 4 Eups Step 5 N
Risk Responses Upward Reporting and Monitoring
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Actions to be taken

PRI 5 it

Risk Identification

J, it ik )

Risk Assessment and
Prioritisation
Ja i A R
P B e

Risk Owner
Appointment
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Risk Responses

J 5 M 2t

Upward Reporting
and Monitoring
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Departments, business units and staff members identify the
risks which will be categorised into external risks, strategic

risks and preventable risks.

Departments, business units and staff members assess and
score the risks identified along with their impact on the
business and the likelihood of their occurrence, and

prioritise the risks in a logical manner.

Risk owners will be appointed to all identified risks. The
risk owners are responsible for ensuring that an analysis over
the causes and consequences of the risk is conducted and an
appropriate risk response is in place to manage the main

causes and consequences.

Risk owners design risk response plans based on the nature
of the risks (external, strategic and preventable) and overall
impact and likelihood that may result from the risk.

Senior managcmcnt monitors the risk managcmcnt process

and report to the Audit Committee and the Board.
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Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM ”)
Assessment

The Company conducted an ERM assessment for the year ended 31
December 2020 based on the Group’s risk management framework
to assess the risks relevant to the business of the Group through the
External Consultant. The ERM assessment report was compiled to
cover: (i) the enterprise risk assessment results; (ii) risk owners and
responsibilities; and (iii) risk management measures, which enable
the Board and senior management to assess the effectiveness and
efficiency of the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems. The ERM assessment report, as endorsed by the Audit
Committee, was presented to the Board for review.

Internal Control

The Board assesses the effectiveness of the internal control system
through the Audit Committee. The Board and the Audit Committee
have engaged the External Consultant to conduct annual review of
the effectiveness of internal control system given consideration of
the Group’s size, complexity of business operation and the
requirements under the rules and regulations and the Board has
delegated to the senior management the design, implementation and
monitoring of the internal control system as well as the review of
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls procedures.
The Board shall annually review the need for establishing an internal
audit function within the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the External Consultant
has reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on (i) internal
control assessment results; (ii) recommendations regarding new
control measures or control measures enhancements which are
necessary to manage the new risks arised during the risk
identification process due to the changes of external business
environment or internal structure of the Group; and (iii) progress
update on the implementation of new control measures or control
measures enhancement as previously recommended by the External
Consultant.

Control Environment

The expectations of the Company regarding duty and integrity are
clearly stated in the Company’s Code of Conduct and Staff
Handbook, as well as the policies and procedures manuals which set
out the rules and policies, for the Directors and employees of the
Group to follow. These cover all aspects of administrative and
operational activities, including relationships with customers,
suppliers, competitors and fellow staffs. The internal control system
covers every activity and transaction of the Group. The system is
based on clear stewardship responsibilities, authorities and
accountability. Our employees are an important part of our internal
control system and the Group expects them to contribute to that
system. In addition to setting our guidelines, principles and values,
the Group recognises that an environment where employees feel
free to report problems to the management is also necessary to
ensure the effectiveness of our internal control system.
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Control Processes

Our senior management and employees, with assistance of the
External Consultant with professional experience in assessing risks
and control procedures, have evaluated the Company’s control
environment, conducted risk assessments of businesses processes,
and documented those processes that are critical to the Group’s

performance.

Qualified personnel throughout the Group maintain and monitor the
system of controls on an ongoing basis and the Chief Financial
Officer is required to report any significant changes, deficiencies and
material weaknesses in, and fraud related to, internal controls to the
Audit Committee.

Control Effectiveness

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the annual internal audit
plan as designed by the External Consultant and approved by the
Board, the scope of work includes the review of effectiveness of
internal control system over the financial, operational and
compliance controls, effectiveness of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws. The major findings and progress
update on the implementation of control measures as previously
recommended by the External Consultant in accordance with the
annual internal audit plan, would be reported annually to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

The Board, through the Audit Committee with the assistance of the
External Consultant, has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2020 respectively. The Board has received a letter of
confirmation from the senior management on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and is
satisfied that such systems were still effective and adequate for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the Shareholders
were identified.

BUSINESS ETHICS
Code of Conduct

The Group’s Code of Conduct has long been established to ensure
that both Directors and employees are kept abreast of and fulfill a
set of defined ethical obligations and appropriate behaviours when
conducting businesses and/or performing their duties. The Code of
Conduct also provides guidance on responsibility to the
Shareholders, customers and the community. Any member in breach
of the Code of Conduct is subject to disciplinary action. The Code
of Conduct is reviewed and updated, if necessary, taking into
account changes in the relevant legislation and the business

environment.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of the Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. In response to specific enquiries made by the
Company, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
Securities Code throughout the year 2020.

Inside information

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the Group has been implementing the proper internal
control procedures including written pre-clearance from the
designated director prior to any dealing in the Company’s securities
by the Director in accordance with the Security Code, the Directors
and the relevant employees being subject to the blackout period
prior to the release of the Company’s financial results, identification
of project by code name and dissemination of information to stated
purpose and on a need-to-know basis to guard against the possible
mishandling of inside information which may constitute inside
dealing or breach of any other statutory obligations.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential to enable them to have a clear assessment
of the Group’s performance as well as accountability of the Board.
Major means of communication with Shareholders are as follows:

Information Disclosure on Corporate Website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about
the Group to all interested parties on a timely basis. The Company
maintains a corporate website (www.bison.com.hk) where important
corporate information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information such as annual reports and interim reports, notices and
announcements, circulars and other information are available for
review by Shareholders and other stakeholders.

General Mcctings with Shareholders

The Company’s AGM and special general meeting (“SGM”) provide
a useful platform for direct communication between the Board and
Shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each substantially
separate issue at the General Meetings.
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In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company would arrange
for the notice to Shareholders to be sent in the case of AGMs at
least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at
least 10 clear business days before in the case of all other General
Meetings. Under the Bye-laws, all Shareholders have 21 clear days’
notice of the AGM and SGM for the passing of a special resolution,
and 14 clear days’ notice of all other General Meetings at which the
Directors and Committee chairmen or members are available to
answer their questions. A representative (usually the engagement
partner) of the External Auditor also attends the AGM and will take
questions from Shareholders relating their audit of the Company’s
financial statements.

The 2020 AGM was held on 16 June 2020. The poll results of the
2020 AGM were published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange on the same day.

Voting by Poll

Resolutions put to vote at the General Meetings (other than on
procedural and administrative matters) are taken by poll. The results
of any voting by poll are announced and published as soon as
possible, but in any event no later than 30 minutes before the
earlier of the commencement of the morning trading session or any
pre-opening session on the business day following the meeting, on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirement under Paragraph O of the CG Code:

Convening of SGM on requisition by
Shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at General
Meetings shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board to convene a SGM for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. The request must be in written form
with the purpose of the meeting stated therein, duly signed by the
Sharcholders concerned and deposited at our principal place of
business in Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.
Upon receipt of the confirmation by the Company’s share registrars
that the request is valid, the Company Secretary will arrange to
convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws and the statutory requirements to all the
registered Shareholders.
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Procedures for pulting forward proposals at

General Mee 111105 by Shareholders

Sharcholders holding not less than one-tenth of the total voting
rights of those Sharcholders having the right to vote at the General
Meetings may submit a written request to move a resolution at
General Meetings. The procedures for putting forward proposals at
General Meetings is available on the website of the Company.

Procedures for dirccling Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting cither the Company
Secretary through (852) 2165 3000 or e-mail at cosec(@bison.com.hk
or directly by questions at an AGM or a SGM. Questions on the
procedure for convening or putting forward proposals at an AGM or
a SGM may also be put to the Company Secretary at the same

means.

Dividend Policy

Subject to the laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws, the Board may
from time to time declare dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified by the profits of the Company in any currency and amount
to be paid to the Sharcholders. Any dividend for a financial year
shall be subject to Sharcholders’ approval.

The Board may from time to time pay to the Sharcholders interim
dividends or special dividends as appear to the Board to be justified
by the profits of the Company.

In addition to cash, dividends may be satisfied wholly or in part by
the distribution of specific assets of any kind and in particular of
paid-up shares credited as fully paid up, debentures or warrants to
subscribe securities of the Company or any other company, or in
any one or more of such ways, with or without offering any rights
to the Shareholders to elect to receive such dividend in cash. In case
of dividends to be satisfied wholly or in part in the form of an
allotment of shares credited as fully paid up, the Sharcholders
entitled thereto will be entitled to elect to receive such dividend (or
part thereof) in cash in lieu of such allotment.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
amount and form of any dividend in any financial year/period, the
Board shall take into account the following factors:

. financial results of the Group

. Shareholders’ interests

. the current and future operations and future prospect of the
Group
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. the current and future capital and investment requirements of
the Group
. any other factors that the Board may deem relevant

There can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any given financial year.
Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there is no change in

the memorandum of association of the Company and Bye-laws.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) of Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”). This
report provides performance and information on the environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) issues of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).

The Group disposed 100% of equity interests of its insurance
brokerage business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in
April 2020 (the “Disposal”). Given the relative immaterial
environmental footprint of such business, this report continues to
cover our major operations in Hong Kong including the Financial
Services Business (as defined hereinunder) and the Media Business
(as defined hereinunder) and excludes the environmental data of our
insurance brokerage business in the PRC during the Reporting
Period, which is consistent with the reporting boundary of our ESG
Report for the year ended 31 December 2019. For more details of
our businesses, please refer to the Operational Review on pages 6
to 11 of this Annual Report.

This report should be read in conjunction with the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 42 to 61 of this Annual Report.

Reporting Standards

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Company has complied with the
“comply or explain” provisions contained in the ESG Reporting
Guide throughout the Reporting Period.

The Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has provided
the overall direction on management of sustainability issues and ESG
risks with the ESG initiatives implemented by management of
various businesses of the Group. In addition, the Board is
responsible for evaluating and determining the ESG related risks of
the Group, and ensuring that appropriate and effective ESG risk
management is in place. This report has been reviewed and

approved by the Board.

The ESG Guide Content Index for reference with the relevant
information contained in this report is set out in the Appendix to
this report on pages 79 to 36.
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ENVIRONMENTAL,

MATERIAILITY ASSESSMENT

Our Fundamental Principles

This report is one of the communication channels through which the
Group can connect with our stakeholders in our community. We
believe that the ESG information as disclosed is important and
meaningful to our stakeholders’ decision making. This report is
prepared with reference to the fundamental principles as set out in

the ESG Reporting Guide:

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Materiality HEP

Quantitative /A

We performed a materiality review based on the discussions
with the stakeholders which is regarded as material ESG
aspects to the Group and determined the materiality of
different ESG risks and that guided the focus of this report.
FRAMAR 45 B 003 38 A9 W S HEA T B BB > AR
FASE AL G - BRI R 0 H O 1 AN
BREE - AL e KO R R B Y A > I AR A R Y
o

We collected the ESG metrics through the active responses
to our data collection questionnaires by our various business
units and kept track of our performance from time to time.
We compared year-to-year data and discussed with each

business unit the relevant implications to them.
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Consistency —Z

To provide an unbiased performance of the Group, we
provide our achievement and performance in material ESG
aspects during the Reporting Period in this report.
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This report adopted consistent methodologies to allow our
stakeholders for a fair view of our performance over time.
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Our Material Issues
The following are the key ESG aspects of the Group which we will

focus on managing in the short- and medium-term:

Issues

£

ESG Aspects
BUE ~ b & KB wE
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Products and Services .

FE it e R 5

Product/Service quality
FE i IR

* Customer service

% 5 kw5

* Supply chain management

13t JE i A5 2

* Anti-corruption practices
S5 TR

* Protection of consumer data and privacy
U AEE-E- B¢ W N

* Protection of intellectual property rights

R s 0 ik 7

Labour standard
o5 T HER
* Workforce

(5!

Our Employees .

A g 2

* Occupational health and safety
Tk 3 fidt R B 42 &>
* Development and training
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Our Community .

FAM AL

Community investments

A I 1%

Our Environment .
?‘2 ﬁ"ﬂ £5)] by i% initiatives
5% B ) A S e Uk JBE A it

* Material use and efficiency

BB S 3 g

Waste management and reduction °

Energy consumption and efficiency
initiatives

AE VAT #6 L (o 24wt i)

COMPANY INTRODUCTION
Our Business

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange since 28 June 2001.
During the Reporting Period, the Group principally engaged in the
provision of financial services of licensed activities in Hong Kong
(the “Financial Services Business”) and the provision of media
sales, design services and production of advertisements for transit
vehicle exteriors and interiors, shelters, outdoor signage advertising
business and the provision of integrated marketing services covering
these advertising platforms in Hong Kong (the “Media Business”).

ESG Stratcgy and Policy

The Group is dedicated to maintain a high standard of corporate
social responsibility (“CSR”). Our long term vision in CSR is
focusing on minimising the impact of our operations on the
environment and cultivating environmental awareness among
employees and the public. We believe that the Group can play a
constructive role in the development of local communities through
our community investments. We treat all employees with fairness

and respect, and strive to facilitate their career development.
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The following ESG policies guide the Group’s business and
operational decisions, and deliver our commitments:

. complying with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements
on CSR matters

. pursuing good CSR practices in our operations

. minimising the Group’s adverse impact on the environment

. cultivating environmental awareness among employees and the
public

. minimising the Group’s carbon footprints through efficient use

of resources and engaging green office initiatives

. providing a safe and healthy working environment for
employees
. collaborating with non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”)

and charitable organisations to help the underprivileged

. engaging our stakeholders and taking into account their
interests to achieve sustainable business growth

ESG Prospects

The Group continues to improve its CSR performance and actively
pursue environmental sustainability. In particular, we adopt various
measures in handling material issues concerned by our stakeholders,
including waste recycling and combat against the novel coronavirus

(the “COVID-19).

We carry on with our work to give back to the society, and
continue supporting our collaborating NGOs and charitable
organisations to help the underprivileged. Moreover, we understand
the importance of communication throughout our approach towards
sustainability. We will keep leveraging our business edge to
promote social and environmental awareness.

ESG HIGHLIGHTS IN 2020

Environmental Initiatives and Awards

. participated in World Green Organisation (“WGO”)’s United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals — Green Office and
Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards Labelling Scheme Autumn 2020

. participated in Greeners Action’s Lai See Reuse and Recycle
Program
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BRBE A LB

Social Initiatives and Awards

. participated in Cross-generational Volunteering as organised by
Agency for Volunteer Service

. promoted social initiatives of Orbis World Sight Day 2020

. promoted social initiatives of The Community Chest Dress
Causal Day 2020

OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Governance Structure

The Group recognises the importance of good corporate governance
practices in directing and guiding the Group using professional and
ethical business practices. Our Board’s management, through our
effective risk management and internal control systems, policies and
procedures, together with our dedication to accountability and
transparency in communicating with our sharcholders are core
pillars of our corporate governance. We aim at achieving sustainable
business development by taking into account the interests of our
stakeholders while ensuring that our business is conducted in
compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Our Board is responsible for leading the Group to develop a
successful and sustainable business. The Board provides direction and
approves on matters concerning the Company’s business strategies,
policies and plans, while the day-to-day business operations are
delegated to the executive directors of the Company.

In order to oversee various aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established three Board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination

committee.

For details of the Board and the Board committees, please refer to
the Corporate Governance Report as set out on pages 42 to 61 of
this Annual Report.

Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct and Staff Handbook
which set out the guidelines, rules and policies on different aspects
such as conflicts of interest, procurement and tendering procedures,
privacy of customer data, anti-bribery and corruption practices,
anti-money laundering practices and equal employment opportunity.
All staff of the Group including the Directors and employees are
required to comply with the Code of Conduct and Staff Handbook.
Any violations without appropriate reasons will be subject to
disciplinary actions.

Anti—corruption Measures

The Group is committed to provide a working environment for all
our employees free from corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.
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All our employees are required to adhere to the Code of Conduct,
Staff Handbook and Internal Control and Compliance Manual during
their employment with the Group. We abide by the relevant laws
and regulations in Hong Kong including, amongst others, the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, United Nations (Anti-Terrorism
Measures) Ordinance, Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance and Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance. During the Reporting Period, the Group has organized a
training courses in relation to Anti-corruption (Bribery, Extortion
and Money Laundering), Counter Terrorist Financing and
compliance with notification requirement for 16 employees to keep
abreast of the latest financial industry trends and enrich their

professional skills and knowledge.

The Group also has a Whistleblowing Policy which provides a
communication channel for employees to report concerns on the
occurrence (either actual or suspicious) of any incidents regarding
corruption or criminal activity, non-compliance of legal and
regulatory requirements, a miscarriage of justice, action which
endangers the health and safety of any individuals, and existing and
possible improprieties relating to financial reporting, internal control
and other matters. The Whistleblowing Policy also assures
protection to the whistleblowers (which includes maintaining
confidentiality of the identity and personal information) against
retaliation for having reported matters in good faith.

The Group has adopted policies and procedures applicable to the
Financial Services Business in order to ensure compliance to, in
addition to the aforesaid laws and regulations, the Foreign Account
Tax Compliance Act, Common Reporting Standard, Securities and
Futures Ordinance. These policies and procedures include the Code
of Conduct and Ethical Standards,
Commissions’” Fund Manager Code of Conduct, Policy on

Securities and Futures

Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing, Code of
Conduct for Persons Licensed by or Registered with the Securities
and Futures Commission, Policy on Client Account Operation,
Securities and Futures Commission’s Fit and Proper Guidelines,
Securities and Futures Commission’s Corporate Finance Advisor
Code of Conduct, Compliance Incident Reporting Mechanism and
the Internal Control and Compliance Manual. Our responsible
officers, licensed representatives and our employees are required to
adhere to these policies and procedures while carrying out their
work duties in relation to the Financial Services Business.

During the Reporting Period and prior year ended 31 December
2019, there was no report of incident of non-compliance with
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering within
the Group.

OUR EMPLOYEES

We take pride in treating our employees with respect, fairness and
care. The Group has established policies and procedures to cultivate
our employees’ skills, realise their potentials and uphold a healthy

and safe working environment with equal opportunities.
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People

We have an established Equal Employment Opportunity Policy
which applies across the Group and was reviewed regularly when
necessary. It is strictly followed to ensure each employee within the
Group is treated with equality and fairly under all circumstances.
This policy promotes equal employment opportunities where
employment, recruitment, training, terms of employment, benefits
and promotions are offered to each employee regardless of his/her
race, sex, marital status, pregnancy, disability or family status.

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with the relevant
laws and regulations including, amongst others, Employment
Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance, Mandatory Provident Fund
Disability
Discrimination Ordinance, Family Status Discrimination and Race

Schemes Ordinance, Sex Discrimination Ordinance,
Discrimination Ordinance, relating to, compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest days, equal

other benefits and
Our employees are encouraged to report any

opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination,
welfare.
non-compliance matters to the designated person in the Group.
Investigations will be conducted and remedial actions will be taken,

where appropriate.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 103 full-time employees
(2019: 128 full-time employees) in Hong Kong.

Statistic of workforce in Hong Kong
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The Board recognises that employees are important and valuable
assets to the Group. Due to the outbreak of the COVID-19
affecting operation of businesses locally and globally, the operation
and financial performance of the Media Business have unfortunately
been adversely impacted, and the Group, although reluctantly, has
to streamline the Media Business. In order to minimise the impact
on the Group’s business posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, the
executive directors and senior management of the Group have
voluntarily taken a permanent pay cut, whilst certain departments in
the Financial Services Business have also accepted a salary cut. The
overall employee turnover rate, net of replacement and
recruitment, in the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately 19.5%.

Employee turnover rates by gender and age
group In Hong Kong
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The Group has minimised the impacts of the streamline of the
Media Business by realigning employees within the Group. In
addition, the Group will continue to explore ways to lower the
employee turnover rate, by enhancing employee benefits and
strengthening communication with employees.

Pursuant to the policy and manual in force and in compliance with
the Employment of Children Regulations made under the
Employment Ordinance, the use of child or forced labour are
strictly prohibited within the Group. During the recruitment
process, we conducted the employee background check through
inspection of identification documents prior to offering of the
employment contract in order to the compliance with the relevant
rules and regulations.

In 2020, no case of child or forced labour has been discovered
under the Group (2019: Nil).

Keeping Our People Healthy and Safe
Occupational Health and Saibt/v

We are committed to ensure our employees’ health and safety as
they are integral to our smooth operation. As part of our
commitment, we strive to provide a safe working environment for
our employees and to comply with the relevant occupational and
health and safety legislations in Hong Kong including the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and Employees’
Compensation Ordinance. The Group has arranged employees’
compensation insurance coverage and medical insurance for our

employees.
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In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group is highly concerned
with the potential health and safety impacts brought to our
employees and other stakeholders. Having prioritised the health and
safety of our employees, customers and every community member
as top priority, we immediately implement all necessary
precautions. In addition to performing intensified cleaning and
disinfection works at our offices and keeping our customers updated
on the latest situation regarding the impact on our business, we
have also implemented the following precautions to keep our

employees safe:

. flexible work arrangements including work from home and

work shift arrangements
. mandatory body temperature checks before entering our offices

. ensuring sufficient disinfection supplies like face masks and

hand sanitisers in our offices

. using online video conferencing tools and other technologies

to avoid non-compulsory face-to-face contacts

In 2020, no work-related fatality or lost day due to work injuries
has been recorded (2019 and 2018: Nil).

Sexual Harassment

We provide a working environment for all our employees free from
harassment with an equal opportunity and treatment under our
sexual harassment policy and the Sex Discrimination Ordinance. In
case of complain or report of workplace harassment, the responsible
officer of the Group will initiate investigations and conduct

follow-up actions, if any, in strict confidence.

Keeping Our People Happy
Compensa tion and Benefits

We take care of our employees by ensuring that our employees can
achieve a work-life balance. Our employees are entitled to the
statutory holiday, annual leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, sick
leave and so on. During some special occasions such as Mid-Autumn
Festival, Winter Solstice, Christmas Eve and Chinese New Year Eve,
our employees are allowed to leave work earlier to celebrate the

festivals with their families and friends.
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Remuneration

We have established a systematic payroll process that allows
employees to receive salary payment in a timely manner. The
Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration and
benefits package to its employees. The Group also offers a
performance bonus scheme to its senior employees based on
achievement of business objectives and individual performance.
Competitive sales commission schemes are also set up for the sales
teams of our Media Business and Financial Services Business based
on achievement of advertising revenue and financial transactions’
volume and amount targets. The Group has adopted a provident
fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as required under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Such scheme
enables our employees to make their own investment choices and
directly benefit from the funds after retirement (after turning the
age of 65 or retiring after the age of 60).

To increase employee involvement and incentive, we have adopted
the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme since 2018,
providing our employees with incentives to strive for the long-term
growth of the Group and aligning their interests directly with the
sharcholders of the Company through ownership of Shares.

Development and Training

Nurturing and retaining talents are vital to maintain the Group’s
competitiveness and productivity. We provide our employees with a
good career prospect and opportunity for personal development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has:

(i)  organised certain internal training courses to the licensed
persons as registered with Securities and Futures Commission
relating to Anti-Money Laundering & Counter-Financing of
Terrorism, Anti-corruption (Bribery, Extortion and Money
Laundering), and the relevant regulatory requirements relating

to compliance with notification requirement;

(ii)  organized other internal training courses to our senior
management and managers based on the needs of their roles
and responsibilities; and

(i) provided external training courses organized by third-party
consultants.

To encourage our employees to further enrich their knowledge and
skills, the Group provided subsidies to our employees for attending
pre-approved training courses and certified professional seminars.
Our employees were also entitled to paid examination leave on

examination date.
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In 2020, 29 employees, representing 28.1% of our total employees,
who have received 130 training hours in total through attending
both internal and external training courses.

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Gender
il
Female

Ltk

Male

1

Total number of employees receiving

2 550 e 2 A8 %

training 9 20
Percentage of employees receiving EEZEJNEER

training 8.7% 19.4%
Average number of training hours T8 L Rm

Completed per employee S ¥y B g 8 1.21 1.32

Employee categories

Senior
Management Manager General Staff
= AR B kil —HRAET
Total number of training hours 3 91 44 e 33.5 79.5 17
Percentage of employees BZEIMEBE A
receiving training 100% 40% 10%
Average number of training AL B 58 F
hours completed per 3 91 8
employee 3.35 3.18 0.25

A significant decrease of such training hours to 130 hours in 2020
was mainly due to postponement or cancellation of training courses
caused by the implementation of social distancing measures among
participants to prevent COVID-19 pandemic.

OUR COMMUNITY

Being a responsible corporate citizen is important to us and we
make every endeavour to provide resources to the underprivileged
within our community through continuous support to various
activities organised by NGOs and charities. In 2020, the Group
participated the social initiatives of Orbis World Sight Day 2020
and the Community Chest Dress Casual Day 2020. The Group also
sponsored Greeners Action and an activity organised by the Agency
for Volunteer Service by sponsoring advertisement placement of
their social events on Bus-Exterior, Bus-Shelter and Digital Panels.
In 2020,
Bus-Exterior and 30 Digital Panels.

the Group sponsored advertisement placement on 30

The Company has been awarded “15 Years Plus Caring Company
Logo 2020/21” by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service in
recognition of its continued commitment in caring for the

community, the employees and the environment.

BT RHE

caringcompany

Awarded by The Fiong Kong Councl of Socil Service
FEMSRBHEREE
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OUR PRODUCT AND SERVICES
Supply Chain Management

We have a well-established, efficient, effective and transparent
procurement process. With an objective to minimize the carbon
emission, we mainly sourced our materials, products and services

locally in Hong Kong.

In 2020, the Group had engaged a total of 138 suppliers (2019:
262 suppliers) in relation to the Media Business, which were mainly
located in Hong Kong. Carbon emissions resulted from the
transportation have been minimised by way of local sourcing
accordingly. During the Reporting Period, we continued to adopt
our established Billboard Services Procurement Procedure and Policy
and Contractor Performance Evaluation Guideline for the Media
Business, which set out the standards and requirement of the quality
of services and products to be provided by our contractors,
suppliers and employees. We seek to maintain optimal operational
efficiency while controlling the environmental and social risk
exposure of our supply chain.

The general business suppliers of the Group include, amongst
others, legal and other business services and we do not consider
these suppliers to pose significant environmental and social risks in
our supply chain management due to the nature and size of
business.

In order to maintain the quality of goods and services procured, the
list of approved vendors is reviewed regularly and those vendors
will be replaced if their performance and quality are below the
agreed standard.

Product Responsibility

We are committed to continuously satisfy our customers’
expectations while maintaining our compliance with the relevant

laws and regulations.

To ensure the provision of high quality advertising services, the
Media Business has established comprehensive operating procedures
to ensure our employees meeting the requirements of the Group.
For compliance with applicable regulations such as Trade
Descriptions Ordinances, the Group understands that it is vital in
the advertising industry practice to present true and fair messages
and contents in the advertisements. We pay attention to all the
advertisements placed by customers, where examination and
assessment would be carried out to prevent any legal issues or
violation of the laws and regulations. We would follow our
procedures strictly. Any advertisements with suspected violation of
laws and regulations would be withdrawn in pre-vetting stage.

Further, we persevere in protecting intellectual property rights. For
instance, we ensure licensed software is used for our business
operations. We also work carefully on each advertisement and
securities order in preventing any infringement of copyrights.
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With regard to the financial services, Internal Control and
Compliance Manual as well as Company Policy Manual (Anti-Money
Laundering and Terrorist Financing) have been established to ensure
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Code of Conduct for Persons
Licensed by or Registered with the Securities and Futures
Commission and Product Codes and Fund Manager Code of
Conduct are strictly complied with. We always strive to preserve
the transparency, accuracy and integrity of all information provided
by us during our services.

In addition, the Internal Control and Compliance Manual also
outline standards and principles of the Group to ensure all product
details, terms of service and internal procedures to be provided by
our employees do not violate any applicable laws and regulations.

Apart from performing due diligence for all types of products and
services to our customers, we also make sure all employees
involved are aware of the characteristics and risks associated with
the financial products and services presented to them so that they
can recommend suitable products and services to our customers,
thereby earning our customer’s trust and building a long-term
strategic relationship with them.

Customer Satisfaction

Customer satisfaction is of paramount importance to us. Our
management believes that delivering top quality service and
providing timely feedbacks can improve our customers’ satisfaction.
Therefore, we actively collect customer feedback and if any
complaints are received, we handle them expeditiously with due
care. According to established procedures, all complaints received
have to be responded within 24 hours of receipt. On-going
communications and conversations with customers are also
encouraged by our management to enhance the quality of our
services. In both 2020 and 2019, there were no record of complaint
received or recalled products due to safety and health reasons.

Customer Privacy

Protection of personal data and privacy is critical in building a
trusting relationship between our customers and us. The Group
complies with the relevant regulations such as Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance and the guidelines issued by the Office of the
Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data. All employees are
required to safeguard the security of the customer data.

All employees are obligated to keep personal data of our customers
confidential. Under no circumstance will we use or provide
personal data to any person for the purpose of direct marketing
without an expressed consent in writing by the data subject.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incident nor
substantiated complaint concerning breaches of customer privacy or
losses of customer data (2019: Nil).
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OUR ENVIRONMENT
Environment and Natural Resources

The Group understands the implications of the global climate change
and the indirect impact on the environment through the Group’s
products provided and services rendered. It has been the practice of
the Group to persist in reducing the impact of its operations to the
environment and cultivating environmental awareness among
employees and the public. The Group strives to avoid, reduce and
control environmental pollution arising from its day-to-day
operations, and to encourage our employees to fulfil the CSR
standard.

Emissions and Waste
Emissions

During the Reporting Period, the Group has no direct gaseous fuel
consumption and there is no relevant law and regulation, that
significantly affect the Group, relating to greenhouse gas (‘GHG”)
emissions, discharges to water and land and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.

During the Reporting Period, the corresponding carbon emission
from the use of vehicles is approximately 18.50 tonnes tCO_e
(2019: 18.57 tonnes). As our main businesses are the Financial
Services Business and the Media Business, there is no other direct
emission of GHG, air pollutants and other discharges into water and

land.

The indirect GHG emission from energy usage is mainly attributed
to the consumption of electricity. During the Reporting Period, the
conversion of the amount of GHG emissions from the use of
electricity is approximately 115 tonnes' (2019: 185 tonnes) in total
and 1.11 tonnes per employee (2019: 1.45 tonnes), respectively.

The Group manages to reduce its production of GHGs through
continuous implementation of green office initiatives and efficient
use of the resources. The Group proactively explores different ways
in reducing carbon emissions. The Group implemented various
measures including, improving office environment to facilitate
conservation of energy, using of more energy-efficient LED lights to
reduce electricity consumption and reducing the need for
air-conditioning during the Reporting Period.

Remark:
! Greenhouse gases emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and
was based on the carbon emission factor for electricity purchased references
information released by CLP Holdings Limited and The Hongkong Electric

Co., Ltd.
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Hazardous Waste

In view of our business nature, the Group’s hazardous wastes during
the Reporting Period and in prior year are mainly attributable to
fluorescent light tubes and toner cartridges used in office, with the
quantities used in 2020 and 2019 summarised in the table below:

A HFBEEY

BN > RNIRE AN KR AEEE
% ) B N T I SO GRS K bk
&> EF CBER - JUEM SRR T
KMt

Usage 2020 2019
& "R ORA —E U
Fluorescent light tubes R 6 pcs 14 pes
6% 1432

Toner cartridges Tk & 29 pcs 35 pcs
29% 3532

There was no other hazardous waste generated by the Group during
the Reporting Period and in prior year. These kinds of wastes were
collected and recycled as set out under the section headed

“Recycling Our Waste”.

Non-Hazardous Waste

The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group during the
Reporting Period and in prior year are mainly the advertising
stickers used on Bus-Body, Bus-Interior and Billboards as well as the
paper consumed for producing posters for the Bus Shelter
Advertising used in the Media Business. In 2020, the total usage of
advertising stickers is approximately 97.2 tonnes (2019:

approximately 114.0 tonnes) and paper consumption for bus shelter

T A B AR A B TSI e e 4R A A
JESEW) o BN T [l WS BE S | — BT > %S
W f B 5 B [ ii -

EFEEY

RS A B A AN SR T A W I E R Y
TR EH G B R A e R S AR R
HARAG > DL R A E R R
TR FERARER o A T B4R IR AACA
B4 B o7 20M (T —JLAF - #9114.0M8) >
0 2 i B 22 i i AT FE A A 13 8 M (&
— LA B4 sWE) > SR CRAE R T — U

poster is approximately 13.8 tonnes (2019: approximately 14.5 o FH A B0 A T SR AR
tonnes), with the quantities used in 2020 and 2019 summarised in
the table below:
Type of waste 2020 2019
& ZEF R —F L
Sticker for Bus-Body, Bus-Interior and Billboards EEES - B & 97.2 tonnes 114.0 tonnes
JEE 755 AR A9 97.2M 114.0M8
Paper for Bus-Shelter Poster B i B g FR AR 13.8 tonnes 14.5 tonnes
13.8 M 14.5 M

The Group has been continuously investing resources to our Media
Business in digital panels as 4-dimension interactive advertising
platform at Bus Shelters and maintain exposures to estimated time
of arrival bus-shelter digital panel in Hong Kong during the
Reporting Period. The digital panels bring appealing and attractive
motions to the public and also reduce the use of papers for Bus
Shelter posters.
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Recycling Our Waste

The Group actively recycles paper, plastic bottles, aluminium cans,
fluorescent light tubes and toner cartridges in order to lessen the
environmental impact created by our produced waste. The amount
of recycled waste in 2020 and 2019 were as below:

Type of Recycled
Jia] W 2 Y

BB A R

I W JE

A AR B RS ML [ SRR ~ TR - SR - SOLKE
B RERM G DA B E A Y R S B BRI
MR o R & AR e & JUAR > BT lig
JEE Y BRI

2020
g

2019

SE U

B B ARR

Paper waste
Fluorescent light tube waste
% S I
Ji% S i
O SER A
SR £33/

Plastic waste
Aluminium waste
Toner cartridge waste

Electronic waste

JBE T OB

1,312 kg 1,374 kg
1,328 7 1,374 T
6 pes 14 pc
63% 1432

359 pes 654 pcs
3594 6541F

— 386 pcs

— 3861F

29 pes 35 pcs

293% 354
1 computer —
15 &M —

Use of Resources

Other than the advertising stickers and paper usage as mentioned
above, the main resources consumed by the Group are electricity
and water. In view of our business nature, no packaging materials

for finished products were produced during the Reporting Period.

The Group is committed to raising the public awareness of
environmental conservation and at the same time reducing our own
carbon footprint. We are constantly seeking creative ways to
demonstrate the consequences of climate change, while continuously
repeating some of our successful initiatives as a reminder to public.
We are also constantly looking into ways to implement more
sustainable practices in our offices to further reduce our overall

environmental impact.

The Group also encourages efficient use of resources through
internal campaigns and initiatives such as double-side printing, less
color printing, embrace use of technology to reduce paper
consumption, milk carton recycling campaign and recycling used
stationery and envelops. The concept of “Reduce”, “Reuse” and
“Recycle” are heavily promoted. Employees are also encouraged to
treasure food and water, and minimise waste and noise as stated in

the general policy.
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Electricity Consumption

The Group has actively engaged in projects for energy conservation
such as the usage of more energy-efficient LED lights. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was awarded the label for Green
Office & Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards Labelling Scheme Autumn
2020 organised by WGO in recognition of its devotion in energy

conservation.

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by typ

ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%&/i?ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁa
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2020
g

2019

—& LA

Total electricity consumption (MWh) HFeE = JE L) 250.05 280.03
Total electricity consumption (MWh) per AR EMEER
employee (JEFLIRF) 2.41 2.18
Number of principal places of businesses/offices I%%%iﬂgﬁ/
b NEE 1§ 2 2

During the Reporting Period, we continue to manage our electricity
consumption and achieve reductions. Our total electricity
consumption per employee remained at a stable level despite a
streamlining of our employee population (details of which are set
out on pages 68 to 69 of this Annual Report) while maintaining our
operation in the principal places of business and offices throughout
the Reporting Period. With the continuous efforts, the Group

believes the energy saving performance will continue to improve.

Water Consumption

Our motivation in environmental sustainability has driven us to
continuously improve water efficiency and pay close attention to our
water consumption. During the Reporting Period, our total water
consumption has inevitably increased due to the needs for intensified
cleaning and disinfection works at our offices following the outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic.

employee has also increased due to a combined effect of the

Our total water consumption per

abovementioned and a decreased our employee population (details of
which are set out on pages 68 to 69 of this Annual Report) while
maintaining operation in the principal places of business and offices.
Sticker notes are used in our offices to promote the awareness of
employees on water saving in the offices. There is no issue in

sourcing water in the Reporting Period.

Water consumption in total and intensity
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2020
Ry

2019

CE U

Total water consumption (cubic metre) HFEK &= (LK) 163.00 149.63
Total water consumption (cubic metre) per 4R B RFEKE
employee (3277 K) 1.58 1.17
Number of principal places of businesses/offices I%’%’%iﬁ%ﬁ/
G NEY Gy 2 2
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APPENDIX
ESG Guide Content Index

Section A — Environmental

Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

JE v~ — 48 o B B B AU AR AR

it ¢

BB g ERERBSIINT RS

AR — R

Descriptions

i 7t

This report

i

Aspect Al: Emission

JEmiAL : BE

General Disclosure

— M

KPI A1.1
PR 8 A AR B A L

KPI A1.2
BH 8 A AR B A L2

KPI A1.3
P o S AR AL

KPI Al.4
PR Bt A AR B A L4

KPI A1.5
BH B A AR B A LS

KPI Al.6
P ot S AR B A LG

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

AR JBE SR B = R k> K Bt
MR BETS ~ A E R E R R E A
Eny

(a) B 5 ]

(by EESPEBEAT A E R BRI AN
eGSRl
B KL -

The types of emissions and respective

emissions data.

Pty TR B AR B R %

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity.

T 5 SRUHE A DR R (W) L (g ) o
J_‘EA o

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity.

Jir AR A B S AR (R e (T
) e

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity.

7 7 A 90 5 B ) 4 ) % (I
) ¥ -

Description of measures to mitigate

emissions and results achieved.

ot 20 o AR PR 1) e L P A5 R o

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
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Company Introduction:

ESG Strategy and Policy;

Our Environment: Emissions
and Waste; Use of Resources
AT B AL e RE
AR S BUR
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5 &R A

Our Environment: Emissions

A BRI - PR

Our Environment: Emissions

A ERST - PR

Our Environment: Hazardous
Waste

RIMM RS - A EREEY

Our Environment:
Non-Hazardous Waste

M BRTE - M E Y

Our Environment: Emission and
Waste
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Our Environment: Recycling
Our Waste
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Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Jo Ui~ — 4 o % B A AR
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Descriptions

i

This report

A e

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

JEmiA2 : B VA

General Disclosure

— i B =

KPI A2.1
[ B A IR B A1

KPI A2.2
BH 8 A AR B A2

KPI A2.3
P o S AR R A3

KPI A2.4
BH B A AR A4

KPI A2.5
BH 8 A AR B A5

Policies on efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.

AR E IR (A5 RE
B B BUR o

TR~ 7K B HA i

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption
by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(MWh) and intensity
T’“#ﬁﬁ”iﬁ}ﬂ’]ﬁﬁ&/jﬁﬁ?ﬁ L (1
WTE )~ RARSEA ) 4 %%E KR
) I FE o

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BFEK B REE o

Description of energy use efficiency

1n1t1at1\ es and results achieved.

il e G YR8 PR 258wt ) B B A5 R o

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

Al 2L SR O A K IR b AT A AT AR R
DA KR T K 8t w3 e i A5 R

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

SR T LR ALY R (D) B (A
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Company Introduction:

ESG Strategy and Policy;

Our Environment: Emissions
and Waste; Use of Resources
KRS BRI AL R
7RI S BUR

FAM A B4 - Pk Mg 5
Yy 5 B

Our Environment: Emissions;
Electr1c1ty Consumption
?ﬂf‘ﬁ IR - i‘iﬁﬁﬁl% FEE

E

Our Environment: Water
Consumption

A ERBT - FEIKE

Our Environment: Use of

Resources

A B - B IR A

Our Environment: Water
Consumption

A BR BT« FEKE

Our Environment: Hazardous
Waste; Non-Hazardous Waste
AR - A EREEY
I K g SEY)
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Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Descriptions This report

Jo Ui~ — 4 o % B A AR i A e

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

JEIA3 : BRE L RARE R

General Disclosure

— i B =

KPI A3.1
BH B A AR AL

Aspect A4: Climate Change
JoE T A4 - SRR B2 AL

General Disclosure

— i B =

KPI A4.1
BH B A AR I A4.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant

impact on the environment and natural

resources.

A BE AT NS BR BT B K IR R il
FERHUR o

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

il 0l SEH5 08 B W BR AR e KRR K IR ) &
K2 K B PR B M B 20T ) -

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.

i Fll B U0 S8 AT N AR B T R RE R
e ORI A B B RE R BOR - K B
PRICE AT B S B AT E) -

Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken
to manage them.

il B AT N B e T R B
KSR AR B R S PR B A B
HEBNATE) o

Company Introduction: ESG
Strategy and Policy;

Our Environment: Environment
and Natural Resources
AT B AL e RE
1B R S BUR

MM B BRET - BRI M KR IRE

Our Environment: Environment
and Natural Resources;
Emission and Waste; Use of
Resources; Recycling Our
Waste

AT BRI - BRI A RINE
U85 PR K B B 5 B IR
A 5 [l BE JE W

Company Introduction: ESG
Strategy and Policy; Our
Environment

ARG B AL RE
TR RIS JHOR 5 AR BREE

Materiality Assessment: Our
Material Issues

Note: There are no material
climate-related issue identified
in the Group’s operations.
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Section B — Social

Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Jo Ui~ — 4 o M B A AR R

Bil# — &

Descriptions

i ke

This report

A e

Aspect Bl: Employment
JEHEB1 ¢ 18K

General disclosure

— i B =

KPI B1.1
R B A AR B 1.1

KPI B1.2
BH 8 A AR AR B2

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
JE B2 ¢ it 3 B4 &

General disclosure

— M P R

Information on

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,

anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.
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Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical region.
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Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.

FEVERI - A 1% AH 0 B e ) 23 7Y 48 B
MR -

Information on

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.
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Company Introduction: ESG
Strategy and Policy;

Our Employees: Keeping Our
People Healthy and Safe;
Keeping Our People Happy;
Development and Training
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Our Employees: People
KMEE - L

Our Employees: People

FMeEE : BT

Company Introduction: ESG
Strategy and Policy;

Our Employees: Keeping Our
Pcople Healthy and Safe:
Occupational Health and Safety
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Descriptions

i

This report

A e

KPI B2.1
FH 8 4 AR B B 2.1

KPI B2.2
P o S5 % 4R i B2.2

KPI B2.3
BH B A AR B2.3

Aspect B3: Development and Training

JE B3 ¢ B K I

General Disclosure

— i B =

KPI B3.1
R B A R R B3.1

KPI B3.2
FH 8 A AR AL B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
JEHIB4 : 55 THEHI

General Disclosure

— M P R

Number and rate of work-related fatalities
occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.

i 2 = (L4 A ) 4R B D
T N B o

Lost days due to work injury.
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Description of occupational health and safety

measures adopted; how they are

implemented and monitored.
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Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.

Descrlptlon of tralnlng activities.

ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ T AR B Ak B
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The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category
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The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
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Information on:
(@)
(b)

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced

labour.
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Our Employees: Keeping Our
People Healthy and Safe
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Our Employees: Keeping Our
People Healthy and Safe
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Our Employees: Keeping Our
People Healthy and Safe
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Our Employees: Development

and Trainin

Ao B 5 S s

Our Employees: Development

and Trainin
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Our Employees: Development
and Trainin
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Our Employees: People
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Descriptions

i

This report

A e

KPI B4.1
FH 8 45 A 4R B B4.1

KPI B4.2
P o 55 3 4R i B4.2

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
JE B ¢ b RE 5 4 P

General Disclosure

— M P R

KPI B5.1
P 4 55 3 4R B B 5.1

KPI B5.2
BH 8 A AR A B5.2

KPI B5.3
FH 8t A AR AR B5.3

KPI B5.4
P o S5 3 4R B B 5.4

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.
20 o vt 4 AR 9] Y i it DA Ak A B T
o il 55 L e

Description of steps taken to eliminate such

practices when discovered.

it 70 A 8 B A AT DLIRE I BR A B 1 UL
JIr SR HRA A B -

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.

B LI R &ﬁ@ﬂ%%ﬂﬁ

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
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Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they

are implemented and monitored.
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Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain and how they are implemented
and monitored.

20 A T sk A R A I 3R T ) BR B
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1T R EEE T -

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how

they are implemented and monitored.
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Our Employees: People

*MeEE : B

Our Employees: People
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Company Introduction: ESG
Strategy and Policy;

Our Products and Services:
Supply Chain Management
AT B AR e RE
1B KX BUR
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Our Products and Services:

Supply Chain Management
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Our Products and Services:
Supply Chain Management
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Our Products and Services:
upply Chain Management

&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ?uu&ﬂﬁﬂ’% i
(=gl

Our Products and Services:

pply Chain Management
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Descriptions

i

This report

A e

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
JE i B6 : EE fh H AT

General Disclosure

— i B =

KPI Bé6.1
BH 8 4 X R Be. 1

KPI B6.2
B # 45 2046 B B6.2

KPI B6.3
P o 55 3 45 B Be.3

KPI B6.4
BH B 4 2 HE 1 B6.4

KPI B6.5
FH 8 45 238 B B6.5

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods

of redress.

A T T SRR o R IS 1 it R B 2 4
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Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.
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Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

FEHE TR i BB 1 R S E DL &
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Description of practices relating to observing

and protectlng intellectual property rights.

1 BAL A e e R i R ik 2 HE AT B 9 1
ﬂ

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.

i Bl B o A R R PR R RR R o

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored.
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Our Product and Services:

Product Responsibility
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(55

Our Product and Services:
Customer Satisfaction

FRAM B 2 b SRS K P
B

Our Product and Services:
Customer Satisfaction

FRAM 0 2 i SRS - B
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Our Product and Services:

Product Responsibility
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Our Product and Services:
Product Responsibility;
Customer Satisfaction
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Our Product and Services:
Customer Privacy
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i

This report

A e

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
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General Disclosure

— i B =

KPI B7.1
R 8 A AR B7.1

KPI B7.2
FH 8 A AR B B7.2

KPI B7.3
P o 5 S 4R B B3

Aspect B8: Community Investment

JEmiBs ¢ Akl &

General Disclosure
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KPI BS.1
A 42 5 3% 45 B BS.1

KPI BS.2
BH B 4 X R A BS.2

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.
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Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.
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Description of preventive measures and

whistleblowing procedures, how they are

implemented and monitored.

i 7t iy 60 45 i e SRR F > DA KA B
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Description of anti-corruption training

provided to directors and staff.

fitadt 1) 3 = e Al B ER A0 S B H R

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its
take

communities’ interests.
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activities into consideration the

Focus areas of contribution.

TECTE B R A

Resources contributed to the focus area.
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Our Corporate Governance:
Anti-corruption Measures
AT A EE R - RETGH
Jite

Our Corporate Governance:
Anti-corruption Measures
AT AR B - RE TS
Jit

Our Corporate Governance:
Anti—corruption Measures
A AR - AT
Jite

Our Corporate Governance:
Anti-corruption Measures
AT A EER - RETGH
Jite

Our Community
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Our Community
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Our Community
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Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

e
EY:

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bison
Finance Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 95 to 209, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

Bison Finance Group Limited

LK EHETE SR Tel E5E: +852 2846 9888

EEFIR Fax {EE.: +852 2868 4432
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

section of our report,

including in relation to these matters.

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures

designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.

our audit procedures,

including the procedures performed to

address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment of
goodwill

As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had goodwill amounting
to HK$178.4 million before
of HK$99.9
million, which is related to the

impairment

“Investment advisory services
business and fund management
business”
(‘(CGU”).

cash»generating unit

Management engaged an
independent professional valuer
to determine the valuation
for the

assessment.

models impairment

The

recoverable amounts, being the

determination of the

value-in-use, requires significant
management judgement and
estimates of variables such as
expected growth in revenue and
discount rates.

Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3 and 17
to the consolidated financial

statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included
assessing the competence and
objectivity of the independent
professional valuer engaged
by management; reviewing
management’s assessment of the
recoverable amounts; examining
and recalculating management’s
discounted cash flow projections
for the determination of value-
in-use; assessing key assumptions
by comparison to the historical
CGU;

performing sensitivity analyses

performance of the

on the assumptions used in the
cash flow projections; involving
our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in the assessment
of the methodology and the
discount rates used to determine
the recoverable amounts of the
CGU.

The results of
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Key audit matter

Impairment of accounts
receivable

As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had accounts receivable
amounting to HK$79.8 million
before impairment of HKS$2.2
million. The Group’s accounting
for impairment on accounts
receivable was based on a
lifetime expected credit loss
(“ECL”) under the simplified
approach, and the measurement
on the Group’s accounts
receivable under such approach
was estimated by management
through an application of
judgement and use of highly
subjective assumptions. The
impact of economic factors, both
current and future, and forward-
looking factors specific to the
debtors were also considered
in management’s assessment of

the likelihood of recovery from

customers.
Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3 and 21

to the consolidated financial

statements.

Bison Finance Group Limited

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included
assessing the controls over
the monitoring of accounts
receivable; assessing the inputs
and historical loss patterns used
by the Group in calculating the
ECL impairment allowance by
agreeing details with respective
transaction records, checking the
ageing classification, historical
default data and forward-looking
assumptions involved; involving
our internal valuation specialist
to assist us in evaluating the
methodologies and assumptions
used in the calculation of ECL;
and examining the working
files and modelling documents
to understand the procedures
and assumptions involved and
evaluating these documents
against HKFRS 9 requirements.
We also evaluated whether
the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on
the current economic conditions
and forward-looking information
and reviewed the subsequent
settlements after the year
end to assess the adequacy of

impairment allowance.
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Key audit matter

Impairment of loans
receivable

As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had loans receivable
HK$87.1
million before impairment of
HK$0.4 million. The Group’s

accounting for impairment

amounting to

on loans receivable was based
12-month ECL under
the general approach, and the

on a

measurement on the Group’s

loans receivable under such
approach was estimated by
management through an
application of judgement and use
of highly subjective assumptions
including the identification of loss
stages, estimates of probability
of default, loss given default,
exposures at default and discount
rate, adjustments for forward
looking information and other
adjustment factors. Management
judgement is involved in the
selection of those parameters

and the application of the

assumptions.
Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3 and 22

to the consolidated financial

statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included
assessing the controls over the
monitoring of loans receivable;
assessing the inputs used by the
Group in the calculation of ECL
by agreeing the details with the
loan agreements and checking the
contractual due date, assessing
loss stage, recovery rate by
reference to financial information
of the debtors and their credit
rating, if available, and checking
forward-looking assumptions
involved; involving our internal
valuation specialist to assist us in
evaluating the methodologies and
assumptions used in calculating
the ECL impairment allowance;
understanding and discussing
with management for judgements
used under the ECL approach;
and examining the working
files and modelling documents
to evaluate the procedures and
assumption during the calculation
of ECL and staging allocation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
3 37 A% BB e

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thercon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if],
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

0 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chau Suet Fung, Dilys.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2021

Bison Finance Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

S fH A R
Year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4F+ _H =+—H IL4FE
2020 2019
—B=BE  —FUF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
1 # W Tou T
(Restated)
(K8 & 51))
REVENUE A 5 298,230 513,646
Other income and gains/ (losses), HoAt Y A Bl #5,
net (5 1) 34 6 (82,704) 77,671
Royalty, licence and management HAE - 5 E L
fees 2 (169,882) (191,779)
Cost of production R LA (63,995) (73,723)
Cost of services e 5 B A (27,905) (31,222)
Staff expenditure B (80,713) (134,282)
Depreciation and amortisation P18 KAk 6 7 (30,816) (32,925)
Provision for impairment losses, net 9 e 1R A 1 R 7 (126,656) (16,496)
Loss on deregistration of a Gk Rl i 7 /A
subsidiary i 18 7 - (2,527)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H e w%/é}ﬁj I 4 7 7,879 —
Other operating expenses HoAth 58 5 2 F 8 (49,994) (60,932)
Finance costs il AR 9 (18,837) (15,377)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX  FRBLRT (M 1H) & H 7 (345,393) 32,054
Income tax credit/(expense) PSR %, (B 52) 12 1,420 (11,288)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE A 2w B N RE A AR
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO R Ol R), B
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (343,973) 20,766
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE A2 w] B A HE 4
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS % /it (5 R),
OF THE COMPANY #aA
Basic HoR
— For (loss)/profit for the year — R (5HR) HK(30.17) cents HK1.81 cents
Rl 14 (30.17) # fil 1.81 Al
Diluted Jie vy
— For (loss)/profit for the year — R (5HR) HK(30.17) cents HK1.81 cents
£ A 14 (30.17) # fil 1.81#E Il

2020 4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e Al &3
Year ended 31 December 2020 #% & “F4E+ " H =+ —H IL4EF

2020 2019
SECRE CF LR
Note HK$°000 HK$’000

Bt &1 W T T T

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ALEEE (B H), B A (343,973) 20,766

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME . fils 2 i Ug 25
Other comprehensive income that may be WMEEN B EEEN

reclassified to profit or loss in HoAth 4 T R £
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences: [ifE 5, 25 %A
Exchange differences on translation of 550 A0 SE T Y e
foreign operations, net of tax ZH O FIRBLIER - (21)
Reclassification adjustment for a A& ER
foreign operation disposed of during ) BT o A o
the year 34 289 2,527

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  ZS4F ¥ Hfib 2wt 25 » 40
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX b B8 JE 1% 289 2,506

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ A2 w] B A\ ME 4% A< 48 B
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2T (5 4H) /e ik 483
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY (343,684) 23,272
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
% 13 B 5K Dt 2K

31 December 2020 A —ZF _EF+_H=+—H

2020 2019
“EROFRE CF N
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5E #EW T U T
(Restated)
(K H )
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JF it By ¥
Property, plant and equipment and right- Y~ WE B DA
of-use assets i FIREE 15 22,783 61,330
Goodwill PR 17 78,554 178,444
Intangible assets Y G E 18 49,644 58,919
Prepayments, deposits and other TEATRIH ~ 1 4 I HoAth E
receivables Wi R 3k 19 13,881 5,135
Financial assets at fair value through HAREEFTABEZ
profit or loss &g 20 95,043 167,452
Loans receivable JRE Wi B K 22 - 42,869
Deferred tax assets I JIE Bl T 30 — 1,265
Total non-current assets FE B & E A 259,905 515,414
CURRENT ASSETS i B &
Accounts receivable JFEE iz B 2K 21 77,586 144,497
Loans receivable B Wi B 3K 22 86,716 130,810
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary JE Wi ] 2 Bf JE8 /> W] 3k IE — 7
Amount due from a related company JFEE i B 78 2 ] R TE 23 206 —
Prepayments, deposits and other TEAT IR ~ ¥ 4 K HoAth e
receivables Wi Rk 19 5,153 18,452
Financial assets at fair value A REEF ARG Z
through profit or loss S RE E 20 6,333 9,779
Tax recoverable JFEE Wi Ao TH - 1,670
Cash held on behalf of clients REFF A 1,007 900
Pledged deposits [SEELI e 24 32,175 98,698
Cash and cash equivalents Bl BB & EEY 25 151,939 80,722
361,115 485,535
Assets of a disposal group classified as SEAFERENHE
held for sale AP & 33 — 95,218
Total current assets i) A AR 361,115 580,753
CURRENT LIABILITIES B fA
Accounts payable JREAF B K 26 7,340 8,112
Other payables and accruals HCAth, AT R R % E T 27 41,023 38,618
Contract liabilities GHAME 27 7,136 38,691
Lease liabilities & A fH 16(b) 14,405 18,613
Promissory notes AR R 28 143,553 185,000
Bond payable JEAH 1 75 29(a) - 7,000
Tax payable JEA 4 TH 5,097 3,933
218,554 299,967
Liabilities of a disposal group classified as SEERERENHEA
held for sale il 4 1 33 — 3,790
Total current liabilities TE) A E 218,554 303,757

i ABRemERARA A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
A o B 5K Ol 3% (48)

31 December 2020 A —~F _FHF+_H =+—H

2020 2019
e
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
i W Tou BT
(Restated)
(K H )
NET CURRENT ASSETS B & A 142,561 276,996
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 7 A0 IO B AL AR
LIABILITIES 402,466 792,410
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I ¥ B £1 {5
Interest-bearing borrowings FHE K 29(b) - 39,608
Lease liabilities EN-S=Kisi 16(b) 7,773 15,904
Deferred tax liabilities R A A TE 1 30 7,459 15,043
Total non-current liabilities B A EARE 15,232 70,555
NET ASSETS & e 387,234 721,855
EQUITY BE £
Equity attributable to owners AN T A N RE AL 4
of the Company
Share capital il 31 118,487 118,487
Reserves fith A 2 268,747 603,368
Total Equity HE 7 JA A 387,234 721,855
Sun Lei Zhu Dong
" KA
Executive Director Executive Director
HITHEFHE HATHFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
13 B A A ) R
Year ended 31 December 2020 # % & ~F4E+ —H =+ —H IL4EF

Attributable to owners of the Company

EYAE 2N 11
Shares
held for Share
Share Share  share award option  Contributed Exchange  Accumulated Total
capital premium scheme reserve surplus  Other reserve reserve losses equity
e
B8t
Bk RbEE REZRG  BRERE  ESEE  RREE  MERE  EER ERAH
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT EBFr kETx BT T BRFx EEfx BT wWTR
At January 2019 REF-NE—R—H 118,487 250,824 (29.498) - 531,569 (605) G488 (140245 7,09
Profit for the year REERA - = = = = = = 20,766 20,766
Other comprehensive income for the year: AR M2 ERE :
Exchange differences on translation of BRI T IE
foreign operations £ - - - - - - 2,506 - 2,506
Total comprehensive income for the year REERT 4% - - - - - - 2,506 20,766 87
Purchase of shares for share award scheme BB I E R
(Note 32/a)) (Wit2) = = (44,064) = = = = = (44,064)
Vesting of shares of share award scheme Tt B B (55
(Note 32(3)) (Hizts20)) = = 20,553 = = = = = 20,553
At 31 December 2019 RZEN
F2AZ 4R 118,487 250,824 (53,009) - 531,569 (605) (593 (1947 71,855
At January 200 e e 3 R 18,487 B8 (33,009) - 531,569 (605) BBy (1947) 721,85
Loss for the year AEEGHR - - - - - - - p8Im) (8IB)
Other comprehensive income for the year: RAEEI 2
Reclassification of exchange differences EFAEE BRI
for a foreign operation disposed of EHMERZH - - - - - - 289 - 289
Total comprehensive income for the year REE2EEAH - - - - - - 29 (3391) (343,684)
Purchase of shares for share award scheme By T HIBE R
(Note 32/2)) (Wzt32m) - - (367) - - - - - (3679)
Vesting of shares of share award scheme Tt 42 B B e 55
(Note 32(3) (Hit320)) - - 3450 - - - - - 3450
Vesting of shares of share option scheme L G
(Note 32(4)) (it - - - 9,292 - - - - 9,292
Transfer of share option reserve upon the I R i
forfeiture or expiry of share options BWRER
(Note 32(b)) (Hst3) - - - (3,937 - - - 3,937 -
At 31 December 2020 REBZRE
+ZA=+-H 118,487 250,824% (53,238)* 5,355+ 531,569% (605) (5,643) (459,515) 387,34

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$268,747,000

(2019: HK$603,368,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

I ¥ TR 60 3 £ B B SR DL 3R 04 £ B R A S
268,747,0007C ( & — JLAF : i1 603,368,0007C) °

el
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Year ended 31 December 2020 # %2 —F ~F4F -+ H =+ —H ILFF

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Depreciation and amortisation
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary
Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
Write-off of property, plant and
equipment
Impairment loss on goodwill
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Provision for impairment loss on
prepayments, deposits and other
receivables
Provision for impairment loss on
accounts receivable
(Reversal)/provision for impairment
loss on loans receivable
Net realised and unrealised losses/
(gains) on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses
Exchange gain

Decrease/ (increase) in accounts
receivable

Decrease/ (increase) in loans receivable

Decrease/ (increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Decrease/ (increase) in amount due from
a fellow subsidiary

Increase in amount due from a related
company

Increase in cash held on behalf of clients

Decrease in pledged deposits

(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable

Decrease in other payables and accruals

Bison Finance Group Limited

Notes
R 5E
KEKEGEBHBHES R R
FRBLET (E518) & A
FHEE
Rl A 9
FLE WA 5,6
P8 K 4 £ 7
8 B A ml A 7
WY - RE A
THH (ktk) k518 6(b)

Al #H — [H] Bf a8 2> ] s 18 7
Wy ~ s Kkt Ll

5 0 el (LA 1 7
Wr3E ~ W K A i s

8
7R 2 8 M 4R 7
TV B (E R 1R 7

FE AT 3RTE ~ $e 4 K HoAth

JRE o B K Dk {1 s

# 7
I W R R ok {1 M L 938 A

JREE i B B M e 1R

(B [E]) 13 7
WA REEF ARG

SREENE BB K

F s Bl 18 (lkcss)

el 6(b)
DA HE &5 53 DA I Ay £y B2

B 1) A5 K Bl =2 32
e 0, £

JRE WS IR 2 (H )

JRE Wi B D (K )
TEATRIH ~ e I HoAth 18
IR D (K )
JE Wi [7] 2% S g 2 ] sk T ik

b/ ()
JE 5 3] gt 2 ) T4
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CAR 7 30
HERTIRSE (5
SCME A 232
5

2020
CRORY
HK$°000

W T

(345,393)
18,837

(11,583)
30,816

(7,879)

(14)

25,334

99,890
35
1,989
1,427

(2,019)

85,855

12,742
(89,963)

66,809
47,880

38,245
7

(206)

(107)
66,248

(772)

(22,267)

2019

—F U
HK$’000
BT
(Restated)
(KEH 51

32,054
15,377

(11,957)
32,925

2,527

1,254
9,195

279
1,515

205

5,302

(74,298)

20,553
(23)

34,915

(4,198)
(116,400)

(16,464)

O

(900)

4,069

(26,536)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (C()ntinued)
GaBleRaR (H)

Year ended 31 December 2020 #%E —F “R4FEF —H =+ —H IL4F

2020 2019
S A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &1 #EH T T T
(Restated)
(REHE )
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BAETEB TR, ()
4 105,874 (125,521)
Interest received JIT A5 ]S 8,802 3,505
Hong Kong profits tax paid E A5 7 s R A5 B (2,065) (195)
The People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”)  E (NRE PNESEE
income tax paid (TR ) B A58t (168) (1,341)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating mETEE AR, ()
activities BT SR/ TR ] 112,443 (123,552)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 2 A $ B B R
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, plant and WA - BB Bk
equipment HH (2,272) (11,369)
Proceeds from disposals of items of HEWE - W KA IE
property, plant and equipment H Z B 5% 5 IH 5,552 -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value A A REEF A B
through profit or loss Z e MEE (10,000) (102,938)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERA REEFIAER
at fair value through profit or loss 2 G Rl E P S
P — 29,655
Proceeds from refund of a deposit paid SATEEE Y - WE &
for purchase of property, plant and B AR K T AR
equipment KIH - 1,600
Interest received S &IPsS 2,138 1,072
Proceeds from refund of non-pledged 15 A FRR SR 2 1A H AR
time deposits with original maturity of A H Z I E
more than three months when A7 R 3K BT 15 3K TE
acquired 5,033 10,715
New non-pledged time deposits with I RE R B 1 H
original maturity of more than three B =8 H 2 W
months when acquired FEHE A E A7 K (5,047) (5,029)
Disposal of subsidiaries & Bﬁ% /NI 34 28,705 —
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing KBRS &S B
activities ReFH 24,109 (76,294)

202
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (C()ntinued)

o Bl I B R (A

Year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “FF+ " H =+ —H IL4F &

2020 2019
S A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 BT T
(Restated)
(REHE )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 2% A il B R B R
ACTIVITIES
Principal portion of lease payments AR A e 35(c) (17,403) (15,571)
Interest element of lease payments H & A5 32 AR (773) (942)
Issue of promissory notes TR LR 28 20,000 90,000
Redemption of promissory notes I m] 7K b8 SR 28 (61,447) (5,000)
Purchases of shares for Share Award 77 I A9y 5% b =t ) s A
Scheme 32(a) (3,679) (44,064)
Issue of bonds BITES — 17,400
Repayment of bonds ERE S — (10,400)
New bank loans B ERAT B 4,000 39,120
Repayment of bank loans B BT B (4,000) —
Decrease in pledged deposits L HE H A7 D 275 —
Interest paid E A AR (18,678) (13,670)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing R’ E/(FH ) RlE S B
activities B 4 U 2 (81,705) 56,873
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN BReRBEEFEMBEmMm
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (W) 38 54,847 (142,973)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FE B e KBS EY
year 92,054 235,027
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERBRERBREEHED
AT END OF YEAR 146,901 92,054
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH B & RBEFEHMERH S
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Br
Cash and bank balances B4 R SRAT &5 B 25 146,901 72,629
Non-pledged time deposits FEHCH E AR 3k 25 5,038 8,093
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the #E A IS SR U 2 B 51 81 4
consolidated statement of financial KB &EEY
position 151,939 80,722
Non-pledged time deposits with original [N e = o
maturity of more than three months H Z A E W47 3K
when acquired (5,038) (5,024)
Cash and cash equivalents included in B B 5 R AE Y
assets of disposal group classified as WEARNYERE B4
held for sale KB EEEY 33 — 16,356
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the HAEBER BRI &
consolidated statement of cash flows KB &EEY 146,901 92,054

Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
company, incorporated in Bermuda and has its registered
office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
6th Floor, 18 King Wah Road, North Point, Hong Kong.
During the year, the Group was principally engaged in (i) the
provision of financial services; and (ii) the provision of media
sales, design and management services and production of
advertisements.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company are Bliss Chance
Global Limited and Bison Capital Financial Holdings Limited,
respectively. Bliss Chance Global Limited and Bison Capital
Financial Holdings Limited are incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries

The class of shares held is ordinary shares unless otherwise
specified. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

Issued and

paid-up

$4 785 i % B ik

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H
2 6l E B

AfecmERmAGRAR (XA &—
KA A FEF ML ABRA R > HiE
it 2¥ 25 g {37 1A Clarendon  House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda ° AT
TR E MR A AL A U E 18
o AR > AHE ] AR ) SR R IR
15 B iy B2 AL I 0 60 B~ dRt B B B BS
DA JoE 45 A -

R0 AR o m A A ) B A
NADHBEERRARAR L EKRE
AEMERARAA - FERRARA
A e 2 AR B A 4 i A BR 2 w3 R
Ja& i L s RE S

A5 TR i 2 ) B R

B 55 A 48 AL, B R 1 4 SR 249 7% 3 78
JBe o ARy w] BB A R RERE AT

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company

Effective FEAf A 2 7] B HE i 23 b

Name of Company operation share capital interest Direct Indirect  Principal activities
C#iTRk iy
AR CRUPRVE-E 38 B A i 42 HE M FEER
888 Lab Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 — 100  Provision of integrated
FiR3 w1 marketing services
SRS A T 5 T s
Acton Eagle Limited The British Virgin Islands/ uss1 100 100 —  Investment holding
Hong Kong 1370 RGP R
B LTS ik
AdSociety Advertising Agency Hong Kong HK$2 100 — 100  Investment holding
Limited i ik BT BB R
RIS ) 5 45 4 R A
Bison Corporate Finance Hong Kong HK$3,000,001 100 — 100  Provision of advisory services
Limited e bieS PFri‘é}ES,OOO,OOI JG on corporate finance
HAxSmAERRAH 12 1 0 A T D R

2020 4
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 2% e A B i (#60)

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AEER @)

INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

A TR B 2 ) B R (%)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Issued and Company
Place of incorporation/ paid-up  Effective JRE A A% 2 i) B HE 4 be
Name of Company operation share capital interest Direct Indirect  Principal activities
C#1iT & iy
AR G RE-E 3t B A R £ B M FEER
Bison Financial (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$1 100 — 100 Investment holding
Limited e W Eid gl
Bison (HK) Management Hong Kong HK$1 100 - 100 Provision of management
Services Limited %‘ FE % ilﬁtlf[l services
B A 2 RS
BTS Investment Limited Cayman Islands Uss0.03 100 — 100 Provision of fund management
BH 2 B 0.03% T services
2k 4 A S R S
BTY Investment Limited Cayman Islands Uss0.02 100 — 100 Provision of fund management
BH 2 B 0.02% T services
2k 4 A S R S
Bus Power Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100 — 100 Provision of media sales
%(FE %l#}lf[l service for advertising on
transit vehicle exteriors
and interiors
$R Ak 2 138 HU I 5 A1 I
T30 B 4% i 4 6
I s
Cityway Resources Limited The British Virgin Islands uss1 100 100 —  Investment holding
I JB AR 1%£70 BOE HE Mk
Creative Time Global Limited The British Virgin Islands uss1 100 100 —  Investment holding
IR LR 1%£70 BE IR
Initial Glory Limited The British Virgin Islands uss1 100 100 —  Investment holding
e JB AR 1£70 BE MR
Leader Force Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 — 100  Provision of media sales
?PE {%llglfﬁ service for advertising on
transit vehicle shelters and
billboards
888 75 4 £ 5
5 AL 6
&7
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 — 100  Investment holding
i iy T BB
NanTai Investment Limited Cayman Islands uss0.03 100 — 100 Provision of fund management
BH 2 B 0.03% T services

Bison Finance Group Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

v\ & B ()

1. A

7[5 B ) 2> W) B B R (7))

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Issued and Company
Place of incorporation/ paid-up  Effective JRE A A% 2 i) B HE 4 be
Name of Company operation share capital interest Direct Indirect  Principal activities
C#iT R iy
AR G RE-E 3t B A R £ B M FEER
Plenty Prestige Management The British Virgin Islands uss1 100 100 — Investment holding
Limited i L B 13270 Eid gl
Premier Future Limited The British Virgin Islands uss1 100 100 —  Investment holding
R IR LR (B BOE HE Mk
RoadShow Media Group The British Virgin Islands/ uss1 100 100 —  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong i BE
eI IR LB SR
RoadShow Media Holdings The British Virgin Islands uss1 100 — 100 Investment holding
Limited ﬁ%ﬁﬁ}’(ﬁ?% 13£70 BE
RoadShow Media Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 — 100  Provision of media sales and
s kot management services for
bus information panels
PR O A5 R 5 07 Y I
B 8 A LR
RoadShow Productions The British Virgin Islands uss1 100 — 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited I L 1%E7T Eid e
RoadShow Productions Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 — 100 Events production and
s T management services for
transit vehicle shelters and
transit vehicle interior and
exterior advertising
% 1 BT o H 5 S A
B TR e N A
TE H RAE R B R B
RoadVision (Beijing) Limited The British Virgin Islands uss1 100 - 100 Investment holding
R IR LR (B BOE HE Mk
RoadVision Holdings (China) The British Virgin Islands usst 100 — 100 Investment holding
Limited ﬁ%ﬁﬁ}’(ﬁ?% 13£70 BE i
RoadVision Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands uss?2 100 — 100  Investment holding
e JB AR Ve BE MR

2020 4 ¥
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 2% e A B i (#60)

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. »~dl&E a0
INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) A B B R 2w i R (4

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Issued and Company
Place of incorporation/ paid-up  Effective JRE A A% 2 i) B HE 4 be
Name of Company operation share capital interest Direct Indirect  Principal activities
C#iT R iy
AR G RE-E 3t B A R £ B M FEER
RoadVision (Shanghai) Limited The British Virgin Islands ussi1 100 — 100 Investment holding
I B R 1% BOE M
RSG Resources Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 — 100 Provision of employment
% % % % 2 fl: agency services
AL A RS
Shanghai Asset Management Cayman Islands uss0.02 100 — 100 Provision of fund management
Limited B = i3 :% 0.02% 70 services
2k 4 A S R S
Silver Sea Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100 — 100 Investment holding
il kT BOE HE Mk
Target Capital Management Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100 - 100 Provision of investment
Limited il el advisory, fund advisory and
TR G A PR ) 30,000,0007C other consultancy services
i N
T A 1] MR
Top Treasure Enterprises The British Virgin Islands uss1 100 100 — Investment holding
Limited i L B 13270 Eid gl
R BAREWEEENE  The PRC (Note (i) UsS$700,000 100 — 100 Investment holding
FRA H B () 700,0003% JG RGP
Note: MFE -
(i) It is registered as a limited liability company (Taiwan, Hong Kong or @) HEaMAEREEAR (EHEEABE) o

Macao’s sole proprietorship of legal person).
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These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which includes all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss which have been measured at fair values. Disposal group
held for sale was stated at the lower of its carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell as further explained in note
2.4. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(¢)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

31 December 2020 —F “FF+ " =+—H
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Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related

assets or liabilities.

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

Bison Finance Group Limited
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The adoption of the above revised standards has no financial

effect on these financial statements.

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

@

(b)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting
and standard setting, and provides guidance for
preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities,
and updated definitions and recognition criteria for
assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of
stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in
financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a
standard, and none of the concepts contained therein
override the concepts or requirements in any standard.
The Conceptual Framework did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the

Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it must
include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs. The amendments have also
narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods or
services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions or
other events that occurred on or after 1 January 2020.
The amendments did not have any impact on the

financial position and performance of the Group.
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(d)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the period
before the replacement of an existing interest rate
benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
(“RFR”). The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the
period of uncertainty before the introduction of the
alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to
investors about their hedging relationships which are
directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group

does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information, or
both. The amendments did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the

Group.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)
Ko 5 ik 2 Bt RE (48)
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2.3 LA AL 1% o 2 00 (7
Bt s 2 1 O )

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKERSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

AL S 5% 4 T s i R I R L LN
LA AEL 18 R A AR T M AR AE BT (i B

these financial statements.

B it HERI) o

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual S s B 755 S A B ) 3| s HE S
Framework’® 32 AEFT
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform S s B 75 S A 1 ) T 2 2 o e —
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS — Phase 2° Hout ~ (E g EHE BB
4 and HKFRS 16 A #5395% ~ (s B 5
A UEHD 5798 - (F
TS U i At U ) 55 4558
e (i Wl B g A T )
165 L MERT
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent S s B 75 S A 1 ) B 78 e AR v 2 A B
Concessions' F1e9E 2 BE FH 4 T I
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets CF s B 25 Sl A B ) & B 7 R 2 A
HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its 51058 M G & wt i EH L FEZ Y
Associate or Joint Venture® e BI) 26 28 5% B B A
(—F——14F) Z &5
HKEFRS 17 Insurance Contracts* S Vs B 55 s A B ) R G A7
H175%
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®’ S s B 55 S A VB ) REE A9
F179R 2 NEwT
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as (S G RHERID 281598 2 A E 1 7 i B 2
Current or Non-current® © &5 FE T E) o
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: (CHHBEFHEND 16582 VENY -0 ¢y i
Proceeds before Intended &5 TEHEE 4 FT 2 Pr
Use’® 172
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of (CHHGFHEND 537982 FIEHGH — BITH
Fulfilling a Contract® 5T 22 A
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, (75 16 T R 5 A ) CF s A TS S A M J) )
HKFRSs 2018-2020 HKEFRS 9, Illustrative ZENEFEF Sk - (CHB T
Examples accompanying AR 2 AF G R 5 o5k
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41° CF s A 75 i s M
B 56 1698 M (R it
&t HE R S 4197
A ] S 60 31
(LHIE
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 ! AT EANH — H B2 AR BG4
H] A= 2%
? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 ’ A AR — A — H 2 1% B O 1 AR
A 2
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 } AT A A — H B2 AR B E
H] A= 2%
+ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 * A F T =AE— A — Bz A5 B O 1 AR
A 2

2 o il A 2 A e AR R o fHL T (3t bR A

: HIA CRE EHERD S8 1 SR 2 3T - (Rt
T 56 s URAS B FR A 1Y B — 15 KN B WA 1%
TR BRI E AT A O =% =
AR A FAEATAE T LA AT i i PR — 2

7 H R A = % AR AR A T A 9 R s B
w17 2 B R K HE B s
HIY 554 SRR 5T AR W I 4 - AU RTAR B
AFIA ZF T =4 H o BB AR B AR
S i R ) < o o 2 U ) 5F 30 9% i A
B 5 ot D) 2 0 5%

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

R & m M A RS A 111
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2.3

2.4

112

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for
The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer

classifying liabilities as current or non-current.

settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if
it complies with those conditions at tat date. Classification of
a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability, The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in
the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
All other

components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair

share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to ecach of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
a subsequent period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

114

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its listed equity investment and private
equity fund at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairmenl of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets and non-current assets/a
disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the nature of
the impaired assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill and certain financial assets is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

(ii)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) ~ the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third

entity;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When an
item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held
for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Non-current assets and disposal
groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Leaschold improvements Over the remaining lease

term

Audio and visual equipment 5-7 years

Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years

Hardware and software 5 years

Motor vehicle 5 years

Panels Over the remaining lease
term

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on
a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held
for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sales transaction rather than through continuing use.
For this to be the case, the asset or disposal group must be
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of
such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly
probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a
disposal group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of
whether the Group retains a non-controlling interest in its
former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than financial
assets) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of
their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified
as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives represent customer
relationship, fund contracts and website and mobile apps
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 5 to 10 years.

Intangible asset with indefinite useful lives represent licence
and is tested for impairment annually either individually or at
the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible asset is not
amortised.  The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

GI‘OU[) as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

120

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost or valuation, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows:

Buildings Over the remaining lease term
Billboards Over the remaining lease term
Panels Over the remaining lease term

Motor vehicle 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment

occurs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office equipment
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases that are considered to be of low value. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. No leases of low-value assets
were noted for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of accounts receivable that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Su bS(‘(I uent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has necither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit

enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to
be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for accounts
receivable which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1~ — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial 1'0('ogniti0n and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include lease liabilities,
accounts payable, other payables, certain accruals, interest-
bearing borrowings, promissory notes and bond payable.

Su bS(‘(] uent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans
and borro wings )

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through

the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the

statement of profit or loss.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Dcrccognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsctting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted as
to use.

Cash held on behalf of clients

The Group maintains segregated clients’ accounts with
licensed banks to hold clients” monies arising from normal
business in connection with the Group’s brokerage activities.
The cash held on behalf of clients is restricted and governed
by the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules (Chapter
571I) of the laws of Hong Kong under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. The Group has recognised the
corresponding clients’ accounts payable to respective clients.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions (continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and

unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or

recovered.
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Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or

services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i)  Income from production of advertisements for transit
vehicle exteriors and interiors, shelters and outdoor
signages is recognised when (a) the production of
advertisements services are rendered at the point in
time and (b) the related advertisements are telecast or
commercials appear before the public over the
advertising period of the related advertisements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Fee income from media sales, design and management
services, production of advertisements and advertising
agency services is recognised when the related services
are rendered.

Insurance brokerage income is satisfied at the point when
the terms of the insurance policy have been agreed
contractually by the insurer and policyholder, and the
insurer has a present right to payment from the

policyholder.

Commission income for brokerage business is recognised
when the transaction is executed.

Underwriting and placing commission income is
recognised when the transaction is executed.

Fund management service income is recognised over
time on a time-proportion basis as services are
provided. Management fee is calculated either at a
percentage of client’s committed contribution or at a
percentage of the net asset value of each fund and
performance fee is calculated based on a fixed
percentage of the increment in net asset value during
the relevant performance period. Fund advisory service
income is recognised over time on a time-proportion
basis as services are provided. Advisory fee is calculated
based on committed contribution or the net asset value

of the investment funds.

External asset management advisory commission income
is recognised at the point in time when the Group
refers individuals to the third party financial institutions
for account opening. Commission is calculated based on
certain percentage of the brokerage commission earned
by the third party financial institutions from the
individuals. Hence, the commission gives rises to
variable consideration which is constrained until the
individuals trade.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend

on an index or a rate are recognised in the accounting period

in which they are incurred.

bt 265 e 7 B ik (%)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

132

ACCOUNTING POLICIES ¢ (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources (continued)

Interest income from loan financing is recognised on an
accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.c., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share award scheme and a share
option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value of the share award is
determined based on the closing market price of the
Company’s shares that were publicly traded on the Stock
Exchange, while the fair value of share option is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details
of which are given in note 32 to the financial statements.
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The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service
and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. When awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings/ (loss)
per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific
amount for the employees in Mainland China, pursuant to the
local municipal government regulations. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of PRC subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign

operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncerlainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2020 was HK$78,554,000 (2019: HK$178,444,000). Further

details are given in note 17.

Provision for expected credit losses on
accounts receivable and loans receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for

accounts receivable.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults, the historical default rates
are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking

estimates are analysed.

Loans receivable were based on probability of default
approach to estimate the ECLs under general approach, and
the measurement of the Group’s loans receivable under such
approach was estimated by management through an
application of judgement and use of highly subjective
assumptions including the identification of loss stages,
estimation of probability of defaults based on their credit
ratings; loss given default based on recovery rate, explosures
at default rate, adjustment for forward-looking information

and other adjustment factors.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s accounts receivable and loans
receivable is disclosed in note 21 and note 22 to the financial

statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Leases — Estima ting the incremental
borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for
subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or
when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at
other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
information about the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets and intangible assets is disclosed in note 15
and note 18, respectively.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
amortisation charges for its intangible assets. This estimate is
based on the existing longevity of licence and fund contracts
and the life cycle of the industry in which the Group
operates. Management reassesses the useful lives at each
reporting date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value of private equity fund

The private equity fund has been valued based on the net
asset value which considers the fair values of the underlying
investments. The Group classifies the fair value of these
investments as Level 3 (2019: Level 2) as the private equity
fund invested in two (2019: nil) unlisted investments during
the year. The fair value of the private equity fund at 31
December 2020 was HK$95,043,000 (2019:
HK$167,452,000). Further details are included in note 20 to
the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by business line (products
and services) and has reportable operating segments as

follows:

(a)  Financial services — licensed businesses including
provision of investment advisory services, securities
brokerage services, securities margin financing services,
external asset management services, securities
underwriting and placing services, fund management
services and loan financing services, and provision of
insurance brokerage services in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”); and

(b) Media —

management services and production of advertisements

provision of media sales, design and

for transit vehicle exteriors and interiors, shelters,
outdoor signages advertising businesses and the
provision of integrated marketing services covering
these advertising platforms in Hong Kong.

3.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

EBITDA/LBITDA is a non-HKFRS measure used by
management for monitoring business performance. The
Group’s EBITDA/LBITDA is defined as the Group’s profit/
loss before finance costs (other than interest on lease
liabilities),
Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating

income tax, depreciation and amortisation.
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before
interest (other than interest on lease liabilities),
depreciation and amortisation (adjusted EBITDA/LBITDA).

The adjusted profit/loss is measured consistently with the

taxes,

Group’s profit/loss before tax except that certain income and
gains/losses, as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets and liabilities include all current and
non-current assets and liabilities, respectively, which are
directly managed by the segments, excluding unallocated head
office and corporate assets and liabilities as these assets and

liabilities are managed on a group basis.
There are no sales between the reportable segments.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with the current period’s presentation.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is set out
below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue, results, assets and

$t 755 ¥ 2 Bk (4E)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

05 4 B VE R

srabe N ~ EE - HE KA

liabilities:
Financial services Media Total
4 il R 5 8 k.
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
SR ST UF SES8F “2F SES%F 2 F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T W% Tc  ®¥Tx W Tc  #B%Tx  B%Tx
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(K& 5]) (K& 5]) (K& 5])
Segment revenue (Note 5) B (B ats)
Revenue from contracts with customers EFAAA 68,599 119,355 219,253 384,194 287,852 503,549
Revenue from other sources A AR /1
Interest income on loans receivable }El&ﬁ‘ o S 10,378 10,097 - - 10,378 10,097
Sales to external customers AN & g 78,977 129,452 219,253 384,194 298,230 513,646
Segment results (adjusted LBITDA/ 3 Vi S A (A
EBITDA) LBITDA /EBITDA) 42,672 54,480 (101,472) 25,719 (58,800) 80,199
Reconciliation: 2 -
Finance costs (other than interest on lease & A (L & AR S
liabilities) Fx4M) (18,064) (14,435)
Depreciation and amortisation 8 K 6 (30,816) (32,925)
Unallocated other income and gains/ (losses), AR H M A K
net Yiedd,/ (ks 4R) 14 (84,120) 77,348
Unallocated head office and corporate R0 T A8 0 i 3
expenses B % (153,593) (78,133)
(Loss)/profit before taxation WAL T (i) /2 A (345,393) 32,054
Other segment information HoAb 43 3 & R
Capital expenditure* A B S x 173 8,783 3,139 2,586 3,312 11,369
Depreciation and amortisation Y il (10,264) (10,933) (7,270) (13,088) (17,534) (24,021)
Depreciation and amortisation ﬂiﬁ’ EE%%&&M#
— unallocated (13,282) (8,904)
(Provision)/reversal of provision for 4% TR e 4R
impairment losses on: (ﬁﬂ%)/@ﬁﬁ%@ :
— intangible assets — )y & — = (35) (279) (35) (279)
— goodwill (Note 17) — BE (Wit (99,890) (9,195) — = (99,890) (9,195)
— accounts reccivable — Rk (1,180) — (247) (205) (1,427) (205)
— loans receivable — R 2,019 (5,302) — = 2,019 (5,302)
— prepayments, deposits and — BMHE - e K
other receivables HABRE IR (573) (1,439) (1,416) — (1,989) (1,439)
~ prepayments, deposits and - fﬁﬁ?f\lﬁ NEIE9)4
other receivables il i R K
— unallocated — KA - (76)
— property, plant and equipment and e/ EN S
right-of-use assets AR G
— owned assets — HEHE — — (13,549) — (13,549) =
— right-of-use assets — HREEE — — (11,785) — (11,785) —
Write-off of items of property, plant and WEWE - BE K kA
equipment - (1,060) - - - (1,060)
Write-off of items of property, plant and WEE - BRE KA
equipment
— unallocated — KO - (194)
Segment assets pigiheg: 279,158 612,094 99,679 281,592 378,837 893,686
Reconciliation: HHE -
Corporate and other unallocated assets i3 T H At R 4 il 242,183 202,481
Total assets G S 621,020 1,096,167
Segment liabilities iRt 18,088 72,082 45,190 78,880 63,278 150,962
Reconciliation: Ef
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities i3 B H R Ay il A £ 170,508 223,350
Total liabilitics BERE 233,786 374,312
. o AWML EREE R R -

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment.
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Pl v L
OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BEZWER w0
INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenue, results, assets and ﬁ’l% B ~ 688 - B R AfE -
liabilities: (continued) (45)
For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from BEZ-FFE LA =T—HIEFE
external customers derived from customers in Hong Kong R H NIRRT R W AR B A K R
amounting to approximately HK$296,038,000 (2019: KREEFF > 73 Al 7 % ¥ 1 296,038,000 70
approximately HK$490,876,000) and Mainland China (ZF—5F: %’Jiﬁﬁ?wo 876,0007C) M %)
amounting to approximately HK$2,192,000 (2019: He 952,192,000 75 (= % — JUAF ¢ 40 ¥ W
approximately HK$22,770,000). 22,770,0007[1)
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had non-current assets MZFZFETZA =+ —H > AEH
amounting to approximately HKs$150,981,000 (2019: T A 9 JF LB 2 4% 205 150,981,000
approximately HK$299,659,000) located in Hong Kong. As at TC (ZFE—JUAE - £ % 299,659,00070) °
31 December 2019, the Group had non-current assets NE—NFEtT H=1T—H > A4EH
amounting to approximately HK$778,000 located in Mainland A AR K FE R JE R B O S A
China. The non-current asset information above is based on 778,000 7T ° bl I O B W E R TR
the locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments BEEREME > BAEES/ THE
and deferred tax assets. N AR SE B TH o
Information about major customers i EE IR
Since there was no customer to which the Group’s sales FH A A TA) A 45 (8] Sl e 6 65 A AL A 4E 130k
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue during the A10%3 L ERF > Bl R FEE
year, no major customer information is presented. }5 ﬁ:ﬂq °
REVENUE 5. WA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA AT R
2020 2019
—RoBE T UE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
EW T o T
(Restated)
KE )
Revenue from contracts with customers KF & #URA 287,852 503,549
Revenue from other sources Al A PR g g A
Interest income on loans receivable J@L&E RISV PN 10,378 10,097
298,230 513,646
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5.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

bt 265 e 7 B ik (%)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

5. WA (
EBPEHKA
() #IFMATEH

Jks
e
Ii=1 )

2020 2019
“F2FE T NF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
W Tou BT T
(Restated)

(KEE 41)

Types of services
Income from media sales, design and

management services, production of

Jike 75 28 7Y
AE PR S - B
e 5 A % i AR Y

advertisements A 219,253 384,194
Fund management service income and %ﬁ%}ﬂﬂ&%% e A K

performance fee income (“Fund BB ([

management service income”)* MRS WA ) 32,540 54,290
External asset management advisory AR A P AR 4

commission income A 35,152 39,641
Insurance brokerage service income ’f% Fﬁﬁs@ A%EEE ﬁﬁ ll&)\ 112 20,583
Others HAh 795 4,841
Total revenue from contracts with KFE&#IRA

customers YR 287,852 503,549

Fund management service income was carned by subsidiaries
of the Group acting as either general partners, investment
advisors or investment managers in investment funds which
hold equity and/or debt securities as underlying investments
in companies. The investment funds invest in various
companies including third party companies and companies in
which Mr. Xu Peixin, an executive director of the Company,
or his close associate holds shareholdings, either direct or
indirect, or is a director of such companies which were not
consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Certain investments funds have committed
contribution by group companies of the preferred shareholder
of the Company’s holding company as limited partner or
shareholder which would not be involved in the management

or control of the funds.

* 4 B TR A WA R 43 R AT
TR A 1R R R S KR
A A1 [ ) 2 WSO - % S B
FEA O TR RE it B R AR T 2 4 A
LG5 = J7 A Rl BRAS N BUAT AR
ok e A B CEL B g BN R B
RSB R RN AR > M5 A
A 8 7 A 4B B AR A S R AR A
AR o 7 TG G T i A A R A
B S P B A1) 4 T A R (FF 7 N9
T P B ) AT PR 5 8 N B
R AR
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REVENUE (continued)

. zﬁla
Revenue from contracts with customers P8R A (8)
(continued)

()

Disaggregated revenue information

(continued)

The fund management service income was calculated
cither at a percentage of the committed contribution of

5. WA

(i) BIKRAEH ()

HeEHRRBRALZBEERES
Z R A M Bl 4

the investors in the funds or at a percentage of the net ZHWEE o

asset value of the funds.

Set out below are the book values of the investment

T RIN R BOE R BAR S R

portfolios of the funds that have invested in, inter alia, HAHBEBRMWARMESHEH
companies related to Mr. Xu and/or his close family A2 RmEE -
member:
2020 2019
SRR XU
HKS$’000 HK$’000

W T T T

Book values of the related funds’

SRS KB E R

investments in companies related to BB AR A 2 F) Y AH B
Mr. Xu and/or his close family HEREZIREHE
member with management fee BB DL A HW
calculated at a percentage of B lEHE
— committed contribution of — EEMRGEHE
Toe Fmdks 320,355 213,568
— net asset value of the fund — EEEEFE 1,434,353 1,145,664
1,754,708 1,359,232
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

5. WA (s
P8R A (8)

REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information
(continued)

In addition, set out below are the management fee and
performance fee of the funds in which group companies
of preferred sharcholder of the Company’s holding

company have invested (as limited partner or

() #IFMA B ()

BEAL > R SRBI R A N F R
SRR R B A R BCE (AW
T A PR B ) 2 e O A BR 58 N B
SR BB 2 A I - AR K H

shareholder which would not be involved in the HEMAHFHEE
management or control of the funds) and their
committed contribution in the funds:
2020 2019
SRR XU
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T
Management fee and performance fee LR PG I 31,329 52,846
Committed contribution Rt E 7,129,039 7,129,039
(i) Timing of revenue recognition (i1) W A HE 78 I
Segments Financial services Media Total
Vg SRR B 18] Lk
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
CRORE CERUE ZRORE CTNE ZF0RE CTZNE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
wHTLE  E%TT  wETxE B%Tx W%t B%Tr
(Restated) (Restated)
(A 5) (A2 51)
Services transferred at a point in RS 7 e ] 2 25
fime 36,034 64,959 96,499 214346 132,533 279,305
Services transferred over time RS I o e 55 32,565 54,396 122,754 169,848 155,319 204,044
Total revenue from contracts with 2/ A AT A 4%
customers 68,599 119,355 219,253 384,194 287,852 503,549
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REVENUE (continued) 5. WA )
Revenue from contracts with customers ERPaRHWA (4)
(continued)
(i) Timing of revenue recognition (i1) WA i 28 IF [ (48)
(continued)
The following table shows the amount of revenue TR FEARE AL AER
recognised in the current reporting period that was A5 BT HERR AR A &
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:
2020 2019
ZERCERE X UF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T i BT
Fund management business e EWEY 2,641 2,657
Media sales and production of I O K R 5 RUAE
advertisement 34,790 49,627
37,431 52,284

(iii ) Performance obliga tions

Information about the Group’s performance obligation
is summarised in the revenue recognition paragraph of
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”.

The performance obligations are satisfied upon services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to

90 days from the date of billings.

Except for fund management service, the Group has
applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of
HKEFRS 15 and does not disclose information about the
remaining performance obligations that have original
expected durations of one year or less.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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5. REVENUE (continued) 5. ll&]\ (%8)

Revenue from contracts with customers wRaHWA ()

(continued)

(iii) Performance obligations (continued) (iii) JE A& AT (FE)
The amounts of transaction prices (excluding the R H=1+—H  #&EEHEHE
variable considerations) allocated to the remaining HWERDWFE R ERESEH
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially MRS U AR T B A AT 22 5 1] (BR
unsatisfied) for fund management service income which RIEAAESN) R

is calculated at a percentage of the committed
contribution of the funds as at 31 December are as
follows:

2020 2019
SROBE F K
HK$°000 HK$’000

T ou T T

Amounts expected to be recognised as TERHERE AU A B & 58

Within (;ne year —4ERN 12,794 17,984

After one year —4EfE 6,259 19,045

19,053 37,029

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/ 6. H AW A KW (FEH)
(LOSSES), NET el

(a) Other income (a) H i A

2020 2019

“ROFE XN

HKS$’000 HK$’000

T T T

(Restated)

(R A1)

Interest income from bank K H SRAT IR B A 1,111 1,773

Other interest income HoAth A B e A 94 87

Rental income from a related company A& B B\ A A A 206 —

Government grant BT 6 Bl 50 —

Sundry revenue HoAb g A 489 837

1,950 2,697
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
W0 5 R W R (7))

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/ 6.
(LOSSES), NET (continued)

Vl/

SLILHA Bl )

(b) Other gains/(loss), net (b) H H_"q&ﬁﬁ/(f&fﬁﬁ) ]
2020 2019
SEoBE —F
HKS$’000 HK$’000

T U T T

Foreign exchange gains, net [ifE 52, Wi £ 1,187 683
Net realised and unrealised (losses)/ A REEF ARG Z &
gains on financial assets at fair value Pl 7 1Y) A B RO B

through profit or loss (note 20) B (ks 18) W ts 73 4
(Wit 20) (85,855) 74,298

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEYE - B Kk
plant and equipment Wi %Ai/ (E18) 14 (7)

Total other income and gains/(loss), Ho At e A B HoAth e 4
net (e 18) ¥ A0 8 (84,654) 74,974

Other income and gains/(losses), net HAthde A R 25, (E548)
{3 A (82,704) 77,671
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B % e it sk (#)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE 7. BRBERTEAOER)
TAXATION
The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after 4 M bR BT &A1) BEEEAL(F0
charging/ (crediting): BR)
2020 2019
e A .
HKS$’000 HK$’000
#W T BT
(Restated)
(REHE5))
Depreciation charge (note 15) e (Matis)
— property, plant and equipment — W B X 6,468 9,526
— right-of-use assets — S E 15,108 14,072
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 18) WG Y (M At18) 9,240 9,327
30,816 32,925
Provision/ (reversal) for impairment Vo1 s PR B A, (4% D)
losses, net FHH
— property, plant and equipment and — W - WE A L &
right-of-use assets (note 15) ARG RE (HfiL15) 25,334 —
— goodwill (note 17) — TR (Mit17) 99,890 9,195
— intangible assets (note 18) — LG E (M it18) 35 279
— prepayments, deposits and — FEATEIE ~ 24 K H A
other receivables (note 19) JRE WO B FK (Mf 7 19) 1,989 1,515
— accounts receivable (note 21) — MEMHREK (Mt 7t21) 1,427 205
— loans receivable (note 22) — REACEE K (Mt it 22) (2,019) 5,302
126,656 16,496
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
o 5 e 2 B 5 (48
31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7. BRBEwiZ A (E#) )

(continued)

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after 2 45 T 9 R Bl A (s 18) 28 R &8 40 Bk
charging/ (crediting): (continued) (FtA) TS HEEZZES - (F])
2020 2019
e .
HK$°000 HK$’000

T ou T T

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) H B BB 2 R U A
(Wt 34) (7,879) —
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary o8 — B B A Rl s 1R - 2,527
Foreign exchange differences, net e b, 25 HH 13 #H (1,187) (683)
Auditor’s remuneration % S Fifi 357 1 3,811 3,690
Employee benefit expenses & & 48 A BH 2 O~ 45 #
(excluding directors” and chief HEREATEAN B
executive’s remuneration): ) -
Wages and salaries T&E K4 69,269 101,596
Equity-settled share-based payments DA R &5 55 DL R Ay 2
(Note 32) FERE I AL 3K (Kt 7E32) 7,828 10,795
Pension scheme contributions BIREFIE K (R E
(defined contribution scheme) e EEE)) 2,205 4,635
Less: Government grants™® W B A B (6,821) —
72,481 117,026
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these * %ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂt*ﬁ 9 P A 2 AR 1 B B AR
grants. IH o
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9.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B % e it sk (#)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 8. Hing=#H
An analysis of other operating expenses is as follows: HoA i%_@'%' % AR
2020 2019
A .
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
(Restated)
(R 4))
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S Rl P 4 3,811 3,690
Bank charges RATE A 925 721
Building management fee and air—conditioning K E %Eﬁ% FAn 7z 3 % F
charge 1,981 1,691
Electricity, water and other utility B~ KR A
HIH 929 2,186
Entertainment JREE T 5% 4 1,966 3,208
Government rent and rates o AH % 2= iR 2,268 2,396
Repairs and maintenance R CYAES 1,882 919
Information and technology expenses Bl K BB S 2,378 3,648
Insurance 14 B 1,018 1,525
Lease charges for short-term leases HMHEMHEEEH 406 2,535
Legal and professional fee EELEEER 11,575 9,577
Write-off of items of property, plant and WY > ME B
equipment - 1,254
Marketing expenses 5 & & A 1,973 2,794
Postage, telephone and fax W~ EE AR 486 584
Poster installation, cleaning and other MRS~ TE R K H A
expenses #H 5,848 6,586
Commission expense 1 4 BH 7 (185) 5,248
Share-based payment — others DA Ay 25 BE R 1) 15 3k
— HAth 2,901 —
Transportation and travelling 29 [ 72 iR B S 675 2,807
Miscellaneous HETE 9,157 9,563
49,994 60,932
FINANCE COSTS 9. ¥ A
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: ilE A TR
2020 2019
—FFE _FNF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
#H T T T
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 16(c)) HER F2 FIE
(BtiF16(c)) 773 942
Interest on promissory notes AL 2 FE 16,863 12,547
Other interest expense HoAth A2 B S 1,201 1,888
18,837 15,377

2020 4 ¥
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)
S % e 3% Pt R (7))

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

10.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

10. 5 = 37 I

4% BT A R ~ 75 W KA | k1) 56
383(1)(a) * (b) * (o) X (O S KA w) (R #
FF] 4 Bk LB B2 TR KL E AR AR B
#H MR ATBON BB R T

2020 2019

A .

HK$’000 HK$’000

L33 T T

Fees 4 1,500 1,500

Other emoluments: HoAth T 4

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e B REY S 4,655 5,934
Equity-settled share option expense DA S HEE 45 B 1) B S

PH 32 2,013 9,758

Pension scheme contributions FER VN [ 64 64

8,232 17,256

During the year and in prior years, share options were
granted to directors in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures in note
32 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’

remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

AR BB AR > I S
7 A 1 i R MR e O S A L RETE A
TP BA 5 SR B 5 32 RO 4R R o TR i A U FRT
15 4t 7 W R 1Y) 5% SF R P O o (RIS
£ H R o §HAAS 4R BT BB R SR 0
S RO b SO S I Y B R

(a) B IR
A N AN S R AT A

during the year were as follows: o
2020 2019
A .
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Dr QI Daqing R B 1 300 300
Mr CHEN Yigong BN L5E A 150 150
Mr FENG Zhonghua 5 2 SR 150 150
600 600

There were no other emoluments

payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the year

(2019: Nil).

No
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 205 2 B i (460)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. = 3 5 ()
(continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive (b) HiTEFLIEHITES
director
2020
“ERORE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme Share-based
fees in kind  contributions Sub-Total payments Total
e
M R VAT 7
HHE EmEA R kGBI At BEBERA AR At
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
bid B i ST BT il i ST BT
(Note 32)
(Wiit32)
Executive Directors iTESR
Mr XU Peixin RS 200 1,703 18 1,921 — 1,921
Mr SUN Lei RERE 200 1,536 28 1,764 2,013 3,777
Mr ZHU Dong KA 200 1,416 18 1,634 — 1,634
Non-executive FHTHESE
Director
Dr MA Weihua BRI+ 300 — — 300 — 300
900 4,655 64 5,619 2,013 7,632
2019
“F-NE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme Share-based
fees in kind contributions Sub-Total payments Total
1D/ R0 £
HEE EOEA R EIE R Mg SERER £ R Mgt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
BT BT T BT BT T
(Note 32)
(Htits2)
Executive Directors WiTESR
Mr XU Peixin RS 200 2,211 18 2,429 — 2,429
Mr SUN Lei BRERE 200 1,890 28 2,118 9,758 11,876
Mr ZHU Dong REGHE 200 1,833 18 2,051 = 2,051
Non-executive FEHfTHE S
Director
Dr MA Weihua BRI L 300 = = 300 = 300
900 5,934 64 6,898 9,758 16,656
There was no arrangement under which a director T% ﬁl‘f/{\ E'E A %‘TTL ﬁ ] S $ 7:75( ﬁ E?‘ [A]
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the BECEF M ZHE (T — L
year (2019: Nil). ) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 2% e A B i (#60)

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11. LA 5 e B

The five highest paid employees during the year included FRN A RETMEERE = AES
three directors (2019: two directors), details of whose (ZF—JUFE - MAEF) G S =R
remuneration are set out in note 10 above; and two B EE0) s A A FEEFRER (F
non-director employees (2019: three non-director employees). —NE =X/ FEFEREB) - FEFER
Details of the remuneration of the non-director highest paid FMEES R

employees are as follows:

2020 2019
SROBE F R
HK$°000 HK$’000

W T T T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind B B B AR A 4,165 12,927
Pension scheme contributions RARETF LR 36 54

4,201 12,981

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest I 4 A Y N 2 A 2 S e i JF B
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following ERFHEFEITHEANEREHBWT :

bands is as follows:

Number of individuals

AN#

2020 2019
ZERIFHE T OF

HK 2,000,001 HK$2,500,000 #:#2 000,001 7T 2

#H2 500,000 7C 2 —
HK 3,000,001 HKS$ 3,500,000 #: %3,000,001 7T &

%5 3.500,000 70 — 1
HK 3,500,001 HK$4,000,000 #:H3500,001 TT &

% 4.,000,000 7T — 1
HK$6,000,001HK$6,500,000 # %6,000,001 7T &

# % 6,500,000 70 — 1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

12. INCOME TAX

bt 265 e 7 B ik (%)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

12. Fr 5 B
4% 30 T ) 75 98 L7530 408 05 T LA

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2019:
arising in Hong Kong during the year. The PRC corporate

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits

income tax (“CIT”) is applicable to subsidiaries located in
Mainland China. All of these subsidiaries were subject to the
applicable CIT rate of 25% (2019: 25%) during the year
ended 31 December 2020. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in

ARBL A AN 16.5% (T — L4 -
B A E AR ((EER]) #

FH A AL A H B R R 1) B B S T\ o R E
?#?ﬁz—f‘ H —I— HJJ:EE’EZ%TF
R} & 2N 7 2 R $25% (T — JLAF ¢
() Al 3 T 15 Bl R 400 -
B 9 B TE 4% A 48 (5] 4 98 BT A B K

25%)

16.5%) #f

At 3 75 B R

the countries in which the Group operates. AT BLREE -
2020 2019
“ERORE —FNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT

Current — Hong Kong A — FH

Charge for the year CRNEiI]7S — 3,311

Over-provision in prior years o A B A (198) (769)
Current — the PRC AR —

Charge for the year CNEiI] S 6,042 1,273

Over-provision in prior years R A R (945) —
Deferred (note 30) IRAE (Jff 7t 30) (6,319) 7,473
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year ENBLIE (K5)

BH 2 A8 AR (1,420) 11,288

A reconciliation of the tax (credit)/expense applicable to
(loss)/profit before tax at applicable tax rates are as follows:

Fie 0 B S A B IE (FE A ) B S B
BRBUAT (R 1R) /&L BB RN T

2020 2019
—FFE CFNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
#W T BT T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrBL T (B54R) 2L A (345,393) 32,054
Tax at the statutory tax rate Foe i € Bl R FH A R BLIE (56,990) 5,289
Different tax rates for specific jurisdictions R F]E RE [ A B R 22 R 1,065 (5,174)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of o8 1 1 ] AR I
previous periods kS (1,143) (769)
Temporary difference recognised regarding Bt w% N T RERR Y
disposal of a subsidiary R 2 R — 6,042
Expenses not deductible for tax AN AT FFd BH 32 35,026 3,706
Income not subject to tax SBLIA (796) (12,520)
Tax effect of tax losses utilised from previous A8 7 1 [R5 PR 0 B S T R
periods 4 o JEL R 2 (678) (457)
Tax losses not recognised AR ﬁi?f% E? i} 22,215 15,630
Others oAty (119) (459)
Total tax (credit)/charge at the Group’s AL EERE 0.41%
effective rate of —0.41% (2019: 35.22%) (ZF— L4 : 35.22%)
‘1‘%? B E (HK %)
BH =& A8 AH (1,420) 11,288

0 AZecmMERARAA



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)
S % e 3% Pt R (7))

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

13.

14.

156

DIVIDENDS

No proposed final dividend is payable for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

No final dividend in respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2019 was approved and paid during the year
(2019: Nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share amounts is
based on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of loss of approximately HK$343,973,000
(2019: profit of approximately HK$20,766,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,140,093,026 (2019: 1,149,635,650) in issue during the
year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares is
arrived at after deducting the shares held for the share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) (see note 32(a)).

No adjustment has been made to the basic (loss)/earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 in respect of dilution as the impact of the
share options had an anti-dilution effect in the basic earnings
per share amounts presented.
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14.
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ML 70 A N U UE IR SR E —F — JLAF
T H=1+—HIEMBUEEZ R R ER
(ZF— e - ) o

A o\l BiE AN REAS B I O
") &

BEREEEA (B548) B A T AR B8 A 2 7 e
A NMEAL A AEBE (B518) /2R s 18 40
¥5343,973,0007C (—F — JLAF : B A4
¥520,766,00070) B AR TR £ 54738 40 B A9
HE - 15 #1,140,093,026 B (— & — JL4E -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

15.

Wb 5 e % B RE ()
31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

Yok ~ Wbs Bt fhi DA B £
HEE

Owned assets Right-of-use assets
HERE i djil 3 {4
Audio and  Hardware  Furniture
Leasehold visual and and Motor
improvements equipment software fixtures Panels  Subtotal  Buildings  Billboards Panels vehicle  Subtotal Total
Vi [4y3
R AR R KR OREER At s WER REER i it f-Eil
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000  HK$000  HKS$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000  HKS'000
e wETo WWTo E%Tx E%Tx WWTx #WTx wRTx #RTo #%Ta #%Tx E%Tx
31 December 2020 REBZREFZAZT-R
At 31 December 2019 and REZ-NEFZAZT-HR
1 January 2020 ZZIFE-A-A
Cost A 17,102 2476 16,564 3863 16593 56,598 41,69 1,839 7917 813 52,263 108,861
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2t BB G149 M) (BAS) Q1T (600)  (33215)  (11,633) M9 (1639) (26)  (14316)  (47,331)
Net carrying amount T 1 (. 7953 32 3,149 168 10563 23383 30,061 1,120 6,279 87T 6130
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated RZZZZF-A—H
depreciation and impairment 1B 25 R 7,953 2 3,149 1,686 10,563 3383 30,061 1,120 6,279 487 3947 61,330
Additions (note 16) RE (Wit 140 - 524 17 2,631 3312 5,389 — - - 5,389 9,201
Lease modification (note 16) HEBT Hitie) - - - - - - (825) - - - (825) (825)
Disposal of a subsidiary A - = ) - = ) - - - - - )
Depreciation provided during the year A 4T 2 e (3,146) (4 (934) (“06)  (1978)  (6468)  (13374) (152 (819) (163) (15108 (21,576)
Impairment W ©s1) @) (1,154 (200)  (11206)  (13,549) (5957) (363)  (5,460) = (1785)  (5334)
At 31 December 2020 net of accumulated REFZREF-A=ZA—H
depreciation and impairment B 2 R 3,99 — 1572 1,097 — 6,665 15,794 — — 2 16118 078
At 31 December 2020 REFZFEFZA=+—H
Cost A 17,42 2472 15,768 3158 1924 57864 40,003 - 7917 813 4873 106597
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2t BB (1346) (2470 (1409%)  (2061)  (19224)  (5L199)  (24,209) - ) (#89) (32615 (33814
Net carrying amount (A 3,99 — 1,572 1,097 — 6,665 15,794 - — 34 16,118 2,783

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s management
considered that the Media business has continued to be
adversely affected by the unfavourable market situation and
estimated the corresponding recoverable amounts of their
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. Based
on these estimates, an impairment loss of HK$25,334,000
(2019: nil) was recognised to write down the carrying
amounts of these items of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to their recoverable amounts of
approximately zero. The recoverable amounts of the items of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a period of the
remaining licence period of the Bus-body licence agreement
with Citybus Limited and New World First Bus Services
Limited. The pre-tax discount rate applied for the cash flow
projection was 15.66%.

R oE_ZEFT A=+ —H > AEH
HEHRER A ERBERFEZIANDY
MR L2 > BUhEHIE ~ B Bkt
DA K A5 P A 7 1 A R T g E] A2 RE o AR
PERZSEAG T W E S 1895 ¥ 25,334,000 7T
(ZF—JLF  F) B R EEZEY
¥ WE KU REHEEEHEE N
W T (B 2 LT i Bl B BR AU EE - W
W55 B s DA B ofF R RE O TEL 14 M i
Ml &R Ty IR EER A
15 (B0 5B T A 9 90 B A PR ) L A
FELREERARTIME LEHS
R T SR A B T KRR I AY B BT A
HeRemilad  -HaemEmilligA
F) IR A5 T B B 2R £ 15.66% o

AHREMERARAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

S 25 e o Wi ik (460)

31 December 2020 —“F _FFE+_H=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE
ASSETS (continued)

Owned assets

15. W36 ~ W s B i A B i

HEE & ()

Right-of-use assets

AR%E HEREYE
Audio and
Leaschold visual Hardware Furniture Motor
improvements cquipment  and software and fixtures Panels Vehicle Subtotal Buildings Billboards Panels  Motor vehicle Subtotal Total
g%
¥ BEME EERESE BERER  REEA gt it BE OWER REEE it it it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'O00  HKS'000
wHTT  wkTr  B%Tr  EETr BETo wkTr e%Tr  B%Tr BN BRI e%Tx % Te  EkTx
31 December 2019 REB-AEFZAZH
At 1 January 2019 REZZ-NF-A—H
Cost A 12,600 247 25,551 2757 13,826 47 57,683 11,006 50 8,190 813 20,089 m
Accumulated depreciation and and FaHir R
impairment (6,640) 087 (12,07 (1,840) (2,434 ) (549 - 80) o) (164) G (26005
Net carrying amount TR 5,960 35 13,475 917 11,392 406 3,185 11,006 - 7917 649 19,572 51,757
At1 January 2019, net of accumulated  REF—fE—A—H
depreciation and impairment IBR BaH B Rk 5,960 35 13475 917 11,392 406 3,185 11,006 = 7917 649 19,572 51,757
Additions (note 16) R E (Witie) 6415 1,285 1,171 2494 - 11,369 30,826 1,759 - - 30,585 895
Lease modification (note /6) HEBT Wit1s) = = = = = = = (138) = = = (138) (138)
Disposals it - - 3) 0 - U] - - - - - U]
Wite-off ik (1,254) - - - - - (1,254) - - - - - (1,254)
Depreciaion provided during the year R T &R (3,168) ) (2,612 (362) (330) 4 ©052%) (11,63 (639) (1,63%) (16)  (407)  (35%)
Assets included in a disposal group BIIANE RS ER
classfed as held for sale (aote 33) BRI B (i) - - (8.997) (3) - 35) (9,385) - — — — - 9,385)
Exchange realignment Bk - - 1 - - - 1 - - - - - 1
At 31 December 2019 net of accumulated  REF—JEFZAZF—H
depreciation and impairment BR BaH B Rk 7,953 3 3,150 1,687 10,559 = 23,383 30,061 1,120 6,079 47 37,947 61,330
At 31 December 2019 REF-EHZA=1-0
Cost HiA 17,102 1476 16,564 3,863 16,593 - 56,598 4,6 1,839 7917 813 500 108361
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Rt 74 R (8 9,149) Q44 (13415 @1m) (6,030) = 33215 (11,63 M9 (1,638) 0%) (4316 @81
Net carring amount IR A 7953 3 3,149 1,636 10,563 - 338 30,061 1,120 6,79 w7 37,47 61,330

16. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for buildings, billboards,
panels, a motor vehicle and equipment used in its operations.
Certain equipment and others generally have lease terms of 12
months or less and/or are individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are further set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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16. LEASES (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

(©)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

bt 265 e 7 B ik (%)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

E

16. L& ()
(b) BIEEA M

4. R BEL B 2 O M T 6 S

2020 2019
—2=®E T F
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
Carrying amount at 1 January w—H—H R E 34,517 17,641
New leases (note 15) B (B iE1s) 5,889 32,585
Lease modification (note 15) HEAEHT (K7t 15) (825) (138)
Accretion of interest recognised during AN B fERE S KSR
the year 773 942
Payments (RE (18,176) (16,513)
Carrying amount at 31 December AT H=1+—HW
HR 1 22,178 34,517
Analysed into: AT -
Current portion i B 4y 14,405 18,613
Non-current portion FE it B FH 7,773 15,904

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in

note 41 to the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

leases are as follows:

(¢

MG B 2 B B 2 A i B 5 3k

B k41 B 5% o

TP 1 £ e ) REL AR B K TE 0 T

2020 2019

A .

HKS$’000 HK$’000

BT BT

Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 773 942
Depreciation charge of right-of-use o A T B B S

assets (note 15) (KtiE1s) 15,108 14,072
Expenses relating to short-term leases A B S 2 B S

(note 7) (Bt #E7) 406 2,535

Impairment of right-of-use assets ot A e (E 11,785 —

Total amount recognised in profit or i 8 B R AN AR R
loss 28,072 17,549

2020 4 ¥

R & m M A RS A 159



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 2% e A B i (#60)

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

16. LEASES (continued)

160

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain of its buildings in Hong Kong under
operating lease arrangement. The terms of the leases generally
require a related company to pay a security deposit and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was HK$206,000 (2019: Nil), details
of which are included in note 38 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

16. HE ()

A58 A 2 AL

AR AR EEHE LRSS
FHEF o FH B M FOE W ZoR B A 7 X
A5} 1 4 81 AR IR R AT T UL B o R R
& o AEE B NME N R A S Uk A B T
¥206,0007C (—F — JLAF + &) » FEIE &
A S R B 38 e

RoB_BEL A=t —H o A%H
A B A7 5L 22 % A1 i 54 A2 AEL B
2 R A 39 ] e 5 AL 5 SO 0

2020 2019
SROBE F K
HK$°000 HK$’000

W T T T

Within one year — R

206 —

206 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Wb 5 ik 3 B s ()
31 December 2020 —~F “F4FE+"H=+—H
17. GOODWILL 17. H &
HK$’000
T
At 1 January 2019: R-F—-NE—-HA—H:
Cost AR 217,176
Accumulated impairment EETHE —
Net carrying amount Eﬁﬁ{%ﬁ 217,176
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated impairment N _FE—-NFE—H—HH
A > FBR 2 FHRE 217,176
Impairment during the year A B AE (9,195)
Reclassified to a disposal group classified as held for sale BB ARFELENEE
(note 33) R (KAt 33) (29,537)
At 31 December 2019 AE—NAFE+_H=+—H 178,444
At 31 December 2019: N_FE-NFE+A=+—H:
Cost AR 178,444
Accumulated impairment EET I E —
Net carrying amount % T (B 178,444
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated impairment N_FE _EFE—H—HK
WA fnBR 2 FHEE 178,444
Impairment during the year A AF BE S (E (99,890)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2020 WoEZFEFH=1T—H
4 A K B T 48 78,554
At 31 December 2020: RoECFREF A= —H
Cost A 178,444
Accumulated impairment 25t E (99,890)
Net carrying amount % T 3 78,554

2020 4
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Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(CGUs), where are the investment advisory services business

and fund management business.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs of the investment
advisory services business and fund management business
amounting to HK$143,528,000 (2019: HK$311,697,000) is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on historical data
and financial budgets approved by board of directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) covering an ecight-year (2019:
five-year) period. Cash flows beyond the eight-year (2019:
five-year) period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate. The growth rates used do not exceed the
long-term average growth rates for the businesses in which
the CGU of the investment advisory services business and
fund management business operates. The Directors adopted a
financial budget of an eight-year (2019: five-year) period to
demonstrate a more appropriate change in free cash flows
before applying the terminal value in the value-in-use
calculation. The cash flows are discounted using a discount
rate which is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant CGU.

For the investment advisory services business and fund
management business, the key assumptions used in the
value-in-use calculations in 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

% of revenue growth

Long term growth rate

Pre-tax discount rate

An independent valuation was performed by an external
valuer for the 2020 and 2019 impairment assessment.

As at 31 December 2020, based on value-in-use calculation, it
was determined that the carrying value of the CGUs of the
investment advisory services business and fund management
business was greater than its recoverable amount, resulting in

an impairment loss of approximately HK$99,890,000.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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WEBBREEERESEFHERNWE
G A 7 BT A AT A (] 4 A s T 143,528,000
JC (= FE—JUAF : #%311,697,00070) % f
FEEFEEE - Zat 8 o A B4
WETEN > KRR B AN A E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

S

As at 31 December 2019, in view of the disposal of a
subsidiary as disclosed in note 33, the recoverable amount of
the CGU of the insurance brokerage business was determined
based on its fair value less costs of disposal of the subsidiary
with reference to the price quote obtained from the potential
buyers at the end of the reporting period. For the year ended
31 December 2019, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$9,195,000 had been charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss
amount of the goodwill allocated to this CGU of the
insurance brokerage business to the lower of its carrying

to write down the carrying

17.

Wb 5 e % B RE ()
31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

2 ()
T2 A ) (A

WoZE—NETFA=+—H &K
FE3IFT I ER A — M E A F] > RBRAS
A BB 1) B 4 A 7 A0 Y AT i e 4 AR AR
P8 5N A AR W BB A R A (T
S22 i R B A EH KBS R AE)
EE #B#E_F—NWFE+_HA=1+—H
AR > Sl (E R A0 59,195,000 TC A 45
AR RINBR - DA 5 B 3 R B 48 AL
¥BHSEERMYHEERHEZER
{8 B 2N o s (8 B AR (DA 5 5

i) -

amount and its fair value less costs to sell.

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. H-th fiE JE & 2
Fund Customer ~ Website and
Licence contracts  relationship  mobile apps Total
Y ER
i HEEH %P & U EEE At
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$000
T BT T T BT
31 December 2020 “RIRE
P E
COST: JA
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of R-FZFE—A—H
accumulated amortisation and i ENEE] R 3
impairment Tl 4472 22,959 31,447 # 58,919
Amortisation provided during AF R S A
the year — (5,740) (3,494) ) (9,240)
Impairment during the year AE 1 3ok (E - - - (35) (35)
At 31 December 2020 I S 212
+=A=+—H 4472 17,219 27,953 - 49,644
At 31 December 2020: S
TZH=+—H
Cost A 4472 28,699 34,941 468 68,580
Accumulated amortisation and 2 RO
impairment - (11,480) (6,988) (468) (18,936)
Net carrying amount HR T E 4,472 17,219 27,953 — 49,644
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2020

SECFFF A=A

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

164

18. H {th B & & (%)

existing longevity of licence, the life cycle of the industry in which

the Group operates and the renewal barriers of licence in the future.

In light of these considerations, no factor could be identified that

would result in the licence having a finite useful life and accordingly

the licence has been assessed as having an indefinite useful life which

there is no foresecable limit to the period over which the licence is

expected to generate economic benefits for the Group.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Fund Customer Website and
Licence contracts relationship mobile apps Total
FER
ik B8 BEAH % F B JE AR Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T i T T T T
31 December 2019 “FhETZA
=t-n
COST: A ¢
At 1 January 2019 REF-NE—-A—H
Cost A 4472 28,699 34,941 468 68,580
Accumulated amortisation 25t - - - (55) (55)
Net carrying amount HR T 447 28,699 34,941 413 68,525
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of RZF—RE—H—H
accumulated amortisation AR > 41 BR 25T 8 4,472 28,699 34,941 413 68,525
Amortisation provided during AF S
the year — (5,740) (3,494) 93) 9,327)
Impairment during the year A R f - - - (279) (279)
At 31 December 2019 RZF— LA
+ZH=+—H 4,472 22,959 31,447 41 58,919
At 31 December 2019: WL
ToHAZE+—H:
Cost A 4472 28,699 34,941 468 68,580
Accumulated amortisation and ZGT Y RO E
impairment - (5,740) (3,494) (427) (9,661)
Net carrying amount R T 35 (H 4,472 22,959 31,447 41 58,919
Note: In assessing the useful life of licence, due consideration is given to the M]LEEE : ﬁi‘%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ E’Jﬂﬁﬁﬁ E'E/ﬁ)ﬂﬂ% > E@ﬁ?%%

JELRE B B A R ~ AS SR I R P 1472
{19 A= i 4 ) e H A% 29 30 R R 119 e B
S ZEF 5 I o HOI IR B AT AR BN R
HAA R AERER > kgD
TERTAG 2y EL AT SRR AT (8 AR ) SR IR
S 05y A% A1 [ 2 2 468 07 ) 4 9 A [ St e

TR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES

9. AT X IH

bt 265 e 7 B ik (%)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

~ $% 4 M Hth BE WK

%%ﬂ

2020 2019

Y

HKS$’000 HK$’000

BT BT

(Restated)

(REEF))

Prepayments TE A5 3 E 3,290 6,729

Deposits and other receivables Fig 4 Ko At BB AT B 3K 17,733 18,373

21,023 25,102

Impairment allowance U8B 735 A

— prepayments — FAT A (1,416) (1,439)
— other receivables — JHL A B Wi B 3K (573) (76)
(1,989) (1,515)

19,034 23,587
Portion classified as non-current assets 805 I B SR (13,881) (5,135)

Current portion i B 5B 43 5,153 18,452

As at 31 December 2020, the prepayments included a
prepayment made for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment for the Media Business of HK$1,416,000. Since the
Media Business continued to be adversely affected by the
unfavourable market situation, the estimated recoverable
amount for this balance is approximated to zero based on
management’s assessment. The recoverable amount of the
prepayment is determined based on value-in-use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a period of the remaining license period of the Bus-
body license agreement with Citybus Limited and New World
First Bus Services Limited. The pre-tax discount rate applied
for the cash flow projection was 15.66%.

At at 31 December 2019, the prepayments included a
prepayment made for acquisition of an online platform for the
Financial Services Business of HK$1,439,000. Since the Group
had disputes with the supplier for the specification of the
online platform, the development of the online platform was
on hold and the prepayment was therefore impaired in the
prior year. During the year, the prepayment was written off
due to irrecoverability upon discontinuance of the online
platform development.

AR RS H = — H B TEA K

TH LTS 2 I B U 3 - W E Mk

5 10 FE A SR IR 1,416,000 78 © HH IR B
VR Z B AR TGRS 2
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%Tﬁﬂéﬁﬁioﬁ
ASF R TE AT i ] 4 AE > R 3 R AR (E T
A T ol P (R AR R B R A FR A A
Rt o — B IR A BR A A 5T 52 By
B - B A B o R Bk A A 0 B T
BEB 4 TE W 7 o B 4 U TE B BT BR
FH A9 B B HTRE B2 2 15.66%

—NE+F A=+ — HWHEM K
E@%ﬁéﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ&%%i?“%
T A R TE s 51,439,000 7T o H A AS 45 ] B
b 1 7 AE 47 7 & WO B O T A A A
47 1 & B8 2 Wﬁ?ﬁﬁ%‘—ilﬁ
IR E—4EEEWAE © FN > HNER EOF A
ﬁi%% FAATFRIECR Al [m] > R E
B
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19. Tﬁh‘%k |

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND ~ %4 B Ath g Wi

166

OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent work
deposits, rental deposits and utility deposits. Where
applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default. In the
situation where no credit ratings can be identified, expected
credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach
with reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The
loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. As at
31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group assessed the loss
allowance under the application of HKFRS 9 was
insignificant.

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

H‘% (48)

i 4 Fe FAh B U B K B FE T AR R 4
HEHkE R ARFERE - RN&HREH
10198 4R 5 8 IR A 0 AT R MR AT I M
(M) - M dEvs sk AIlE SRR - TG
7 s 48 40 8 2 25 AN 4 R A s 4R A Bk
F B B R IE AT A B o s 48 R0 R 1
I fi 5 % DA Fz e BB SR 0 % TR R A 4%
FIRDL o A B _FF R _F—LF+
“HZ=4—H > AL AR GRS
s MR 28 o SR 1 s R s b R EE K -

AT ARIH ~ 5 4 2 F At B A R K B
e R A 2 E Iy

Expected credit losses

TEHIE R

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

10 B ol B 3B ik

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

TIT Tt Tt TIT

At 1 January 2019 R_F—HF—H—H = = = =

Impairment losses AN Fic - - 76 76
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 EA‘?i—jL$+—H =T—HR

“EERE—H—H = = 76 76

Impairment losses WAE 1B 45 — 528 573

Amount written off as uncollectible S 7 AR T i ] 455 B - - (76) (76)

At 31 December 2020 R-ZF_FE+-A=+—H 45 = 528 573

The financial assets included in the above balances classified as
stage 1 relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31 December
2020 and 2019, the loss allowance for balances classified as
stage 3 was assessed by the probability of default ranging
from 50% to 100% and loss given default at 45%.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Fh A bl & R B 4 5 1 B B Y 4 il A
FEWSCEKIE A B > 5% 55 L IEL%‘HJHE
HiR Al sk AR - R F _FFER
“E - JUEFTFZH=1—H > 5 A3
B0 e TR A 422 40 7T BEME 50% 2 100% &
KRR R 45% 5 A o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. f“ %oy R ET A B 45 2 2 Rl

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS = L2

2020 2019
“ERORE —EFNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
#EW T T T

Listed equity investment, at fair value wAREMEFRZ Bl
R 1% 6,333 9,779

Private equity fund, at fair value A REMEFTRZ

FL 5 B 95,043 167,452
101,376 177,231

Listed equity investment, at fair value

During the year ended 31 December 2020, net unrealised loss
on the listed equity security investment in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$3,446,000 (2019: net unrealised loss of
HK$155,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Private equity fund, at fair value

On 22 February 2019, Premier Future Limited (“Premier
Future”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
BeiTai Investment Limited (the “General Partner”), an
independent third party of the Company and its connected
person (as defined under the Listing Rules) (“independent
third party(ies)”), entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which Premier Future agreed to subscribe for
limited partner interests in BeiTai Investment LP (the
“Investment Fund”). As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s
capital contribution amounted to HK$103,000,000 (2019:
HK$93,000,000), representing 71% (2019: 75%) of the
aggregated capital contributed by all partners in the
Investment Fund. The remaining capital contributions to the
Investment Fund were contributed as limited partner interests
(a) as to HK$31,000,000 (2019: HK$31,000,000) by Fullbest
Star Limited, a company wholly owned by a close family
member of a director of the Company’s subsidiary, which
represents approximately 21% (2019: 25%) of the total
capital contributions; and (b) as to HK$11,000,000 (2019:
nil) by a private equity fund managed by the Company’s
subsidiary, which represents approximately 8% (2019: nil) of
the total capital contributions. The Investment Fund is not
consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

"o RBEEF Rz B RERE

&E#?#?E—I_ H —I— EIJJZEF"Q’
Fis LR SR EZ RSB ER T
FHA) B 53,446,000 (F—JUEE © K
IR 155,00070) BREE AR E
FERR o

1% U fE A RE & 2 FA 58 I hE 3 &
ﬁ/{\:g_‘ﬂxiﬁ:ﬂ :"I": H > Premier

Future Limited ([ Premier Future ] > _‘%:{$/A.\
| E’J"gﬁh‘%/\:] ) BlBeiTai Investment
Limited |— BB N] > B K H B
ﬁs"ﬁk:t ﬁ@:ﬁifﬁﬁw 1) 48 37 5 =
H%I%—ﬁj BEAT R MR R - RUL
Premier Futurel—J = wu E%BelTal Investment LP
((HEREED) VARG EHES R _F
ZEREFZA=Z—H AEENEE
HH B Y 5103,000,0007C (- F — JUAE @
#93,000,0007C) > 1T A &8 NIR & HE
SEERFENT1% (ZF—JLE © 75%)
HEEEEMBRTEERIEAARS
W4 & > H P (a) Fullbest Star
Limited (A A A RIMHE AR — R HERNE
%%ﬁ%ﬂ‘:g%ﬁﬂﬁ/\ﬂ W
31,000,000 JC ( — L& R
31,000,0007T) 1£{£§%”‘E%’321% =%
— LA 25%) 5 B by AR AN AR B JE 2
%iﬁﬂ@ﬂ%ﬂi%%éﬁ&%%Hﬁ‘é‘ll,ooo,ooo
T (ZF—JUFE %) - (EiEEREL 8%
:5;5 JUEE - F) Tﬁ%‘ﬁ 7 4 7 A £
B %R M R AR A
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The Investment Fund is a close-end private equity fund
structured as a limited partnership in the Cayman Islands with
an investment objective to achieve long-term capital
appreciation through investments in convertible bonds and
other investments. Under the partnership agreement, none of
the limited partners may take any part in the conduct of the
business of the Investment Fund or be involved in the making
of any investment decision of the Investment Fund, and
subject to the Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of
the Cayman Islands. Subject to certain kick-out conditions,
the General Partner may determine to invest in debt
securities or equity securities of both private and listed
companies in Hong Kong or elsewhere or by investing in such
other financial instruments, and shall act at all times in good
faith. The Board of Directors considered the Group has
neither significant influence nor joint control over the
Investment Fund and therefore it is classified as financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with the
requirements under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Details of
the transaction have been disclosed in the Company’s

announcement dated 22 February 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, there was no unpaid capital
commitment on investment in the Investment Fund (2019:

Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, net unrealised loss
on the private equity fund of approximately HK$82,409,000
(2019: net unrealised gain of HK$74,453,000) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the
underlying investments of the Investment Fund which is
determined based on equity securities listed in Hong Kong
and the United States and bonds issued by a corporation listed
in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately
HK$47,942,000 as at 31 December 2020. An executive
director of the Company, Mr. Xu Peixin, has less than 30%
indirect beneficial interest in the listed corporation. In the
prior year, the underlying investments of the Investment Fund

represented equity securities listed in Hong Kong.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Bk 25 e % Bt (%)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

1. W K

2020 2019
SECRE CF K
HK$°000 HK$’000

W T ou T T

Accounts receivable JRE WA i 3K 79,783 145,534
Impairment CRIED (2,197) (1,037)
77,586 144,497

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally 30 to 90
days from the date of billings. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivable and has a credit control department
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s accounts
receivable relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its accounts receivable balances. Accounts receivable are

non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had an accounts
receivable amounted to HKS$1,200,000 (2019:
HK$1,200,000) before impairment of HK$540,000 (2019: nil)
that was due from a company in which Mr. Xu Peixin, an
executive director of the Company, acquired less than 30%
indirect beneficial interest in April 2020. Such accounts
receivable was repayable on credit terms similar to those
offered to major customers of the Group. During the year
ended 31 December 2019 and prior to April 2020, Mr. Xu
does not have any beneficial interest, either direct or indirect,
in the company.

AEEMBHEFNE SRR EEAFEE
WHEF —RREERMERRI - FE
H— B A RE AR 30290 H - BHEF
YR fem s PR AE - A 4E 8 R FE
B EEHRMERERRIE XA RE
A 2 il 0 P 2 R B R o =R
N B A 7% B B R 3K o o bl 3
&AL EE 7 BICIRRE K E AR F
FAHER > SOl #EE G EE R - A%
151 NIf e ot L ) R AR K A R R A AT AT
?gz e B L Ath A5 B2 T 9 15 AR o 1B AT IR 3K

AEBEPR _FE_FF+_H=1+—HM
JRE Wi B 3K Ay v 51,200,000 00 (—F — JL
A ¥1,200,0007T) > A 11 BR HE i — [
8 A (AN R BATE FARE RSB R =&
TR DY H AR LA R DR 30% 1 R B
i M £5) B 2K JE I (E 540,000 0T (T F
— U HE) o %S5 MEUCIR R 15 B B
HRETAEHFBEEFEME - HEZ
F—NFE+_HA=+—HIFEIR_
Z_EEMHW>@%¢IME§ﬁﬁ
WA % AT E M S o
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21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

170

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

1. JE WOk (40

TR R o B MR R (0 B s 4R 8 )
HHE TR H OB AR A AT RS AR

2020 2019
ZERCERE X UF

HKS$’000 HK$’000

L33 T T

Within 1 month Dk | A 67,653 128,699
1 to 2 months 12218 H 2,934 6,340
2 to 3 months PEEY (T DE| 1,404 3,611
3 to 12 months 321218 A 2,825 4,702
Over 1 year R A — 4F 2,770 1,145
77,586 144,497

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
accounts receivable are as follows:

JRE WS 0 Bk (L s PR AR R PO S B

2020 2019

e

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

#WT U BT T

At beginning of year A 1,037 7,506

Impairment losses £ il 52 ok L s 15 1,427 205
Amounts written off as uncollectible L A B AN AT i [m] < B (267) (6,674)

At end of year R 2,197 1,037

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geographical region, service type, and customer type and
rating). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, accounts receivable are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) ~ 21. MEWCHR KX (40)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk T B A S 18] B ) 488 A R B R T 1Y) R AT BR
exposure on the Group’s accounts receivable using a provision A BB GRS R
matrix:
Media Business I 18 3£ 7%
As at 31 December 2020 W _F_EZHE+-H=1+—H
Past due
g 1]
Within 1to2 2to3 Over
Current 1 month months months 3 months Total

wE  AREA  1FaMA 2E3EA @EEA At

Expected credit loss rate L UIERSY RS 0.03% 0.21% 0.71% 1.13% 37.52% 2.07%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) HR T A8 F (T o0) 32,608 5,362 2,955 1,419 2,556 44,900
Expected credit loss (HKS'000) T R % T o) 10 1 21 16 959 1,017
As at 31 December 2019 wW_E—NHE+_H=+—H
Past due
Within Over
Current 1 month 1 to 2 months 2 to 3 months 3 months Total
nE o OMER 1 ZAA 2 F3EA BEEA st
Expected credit loss rate I S EH % 0.05% 0.14% 0.49% 131% 13.23% 0.97%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) MR 48 8 (T 70,541 19,959 6,370 3,659 6,740 107,269
Expected credit loss (HK$'000) HHfE R 6% T ) 38 28 31 48 892 1,037
Financial Services Business 4 1l e 5 2B %5
As at 31 December 2020 W_-Z_ZFZHE+_H=+—H
Past due
g 1]
Within 1to2 2to3 Over
Current 1 month months months 3 months Total

wWE  AREA 1 FaMA 2EEA @A At

Expected credit loss rate I SR 0.09% 0.00% — — 2.41% 3.38%

Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) HR T 42 (7T ) 26,784 2,945 - - 5,154 34,883

Expected credit loss (HK$’000) T fE SR BT o) 25 - - - 1,155 1,180
As at 31 December 2019, the gross accounts receivable of ATE—JUFEFTH=Z1+—H &tk
financial services business amounted to HK$38,265,000, for 5 S T E Wi R K AR A 5 s l‘;|51K51t38,265 ,000
which the expected credit losses effect was considered oG HEMGEEEBEEMA EE -
minimal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

S XA,
22. LOANS RECEIVABLE 22. FEW B 5K
2020 2019
“EROFE _F
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
(Restated)
(R 1)
Secured A AT 13,543 59,774
Unsecured 4 HE 73,562 119,207
Impairment allowance T AE A (389) (5,302)
86,716 173,679
Non-current E | - 42,869
Current it B 86,716 130,810
86,716 173,679
The loans were made to four (2019: five) independent third AERNKCRETHZABILE = (X
parties with effective interest rates ranging from 5% to 12% — LA BA) > ARERRE5%E12%
(2019: 5% to 12%) per annum and repayable within one year (T FE—IHFE 5% F 12%) > Wik —FRNE
(2019: two years). B (CE—JUE W) -
During the year, reversal for expected credit losses of ER RN EEEGRERENGSER
approximately HK$2,019,000 was recognised (2019: provision 1% 7] %%WZ,OW,OOOJTD (ZF—JLF B
of HK$5,302,000) (note 7) in the consolidated statement of 1 s P%5,302,000775) (B &E7)
profit or loss.
Movement in expected credit losses is as follows: HHGEEEEZEHWT -

Expected credit losses

FE SR

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

1% B 52 Bt 3B Mt

$7000 $7000 $7000 $7000

Tt T Tt Tt

At 1 January 2019 R-F—FE—H—H = = = =

Impairment losses i (L e 48, 2,771 2,531 - 5,302
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 ﬁ‘/{\:z*ﬂﬁ‘:‘l‘:ﬂ =+—H Kk

“ECEE-H—H 2,771 2,531 - 5,302

Reversal of impairment losses, net i (L 4 438 [ ¥ A (2,019) — — (2,019)

Disposal of subsidiaries 5 B 8 (363) (2,531) — (2,894)

At 31 December 2020 REFZ_ZHE+ZA=1—H 389 — — 389
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B % e it sk (#)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

22. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continucd) 22, FEWCE K (5
Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December by Fe ARy \) N ERAE B R AR A R o B
the Company’s internal credit rating and year-end “H=+— AR EE T TR

classification is as follows:

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

12-month not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

RERBMER  FERRER
128 AT R f2 AN R A £ AN I
5 R FN G R FON G R

CEiRB) G2k (€ %119 Hat
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZZREF-H=+—H T L ST W T T
Internal rating gTade VoS Eﬁ ?77'7 5913
BB BB 17,963 — — 17,963
B B 13,543 — — 13,543
B- B- 55,599 — — 55,599
87,105 — — 87,105
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
RERBMEN  FRWRER
1 A YT B AF AR R AR A Y
fFREHE EEREE EESER
(5B 1B (55 2P BY) (5 3PEB) Mgt
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
As at 31 December 2019 WEFE—NE+ZA=+—H BT T T BT
Internal rating grade A EB G BT
BB BB 58,325 - - 58,325
B B 59,773 — — 59,773
B- B 54,065 — — 54,065
c C — 6,818 — 6,818
172,163 6,818 — 178,981
BB: Obligations rated BB are judged to be speculative and are subject BB: BB%&%%E%&%‘@%%Ek{%E@% °
to substantial credit risk.
B and B—: Obligations rated B and B— are considered speculative and are BMB-: B# &Bﬂgﬁélﬁj %&%‘ﬁﬁﬁ%}{g EE&
subject to high credit risk. Fﬁ ®
Cs Obligations rated C are highly speculative and are likely in, or very Cs CH AT 25 Bt v » HLAR AT RE (s 9F %
near, default with some prospect of recovery of principal and FE AT ) ) > BAT ik [ AR 4 K R, o

interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)
S0 5 i 2 B RE (48

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

23.

24,

174

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED
COMPANY

Amount due from a related company controlled by a close
family member of Mr. Xu Peixin, an executive director of the
Company, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulations, is as follows:

3. JE W5 A 2 2

2 W]k IH

TA’M%FJ@(/\jflkfﬂ>%383(l)(d)ﬂk&<</\

A (4 5 25 5 R 4 R} L) BF 3 T Y Bk
s&E’JHHZIK"_JifL T SRR R AN E
ZR 0L 8 2 ) P R A B DR IE AN R

At 1 January
2019,
At Maximum amount 31 December 2019
31 December  outstanding during and
Name P 2020 the year 1 January 2020 Security held
B ZE U
—H—H"
SEJUE
+ZHA=t+—H
(e e <22 ERkE R OERCERE
+ZA=t+—H AR S —H—H Jfr R4
HK’$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T
Bison Finance and Credit Limited HEGEARA A 206 206 — None
RE
The amount due from a related company is interest free, JRE Wi B 2 N W) R TE B e B SRR K 2E

unsecured and repayable on demand.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Pursuant to certain licence agreements between subsidiaries of
the Company and independent third parties, bank guarantees
have been provided to independent third parties in respect of
the subsidiaries’ due performance and payment under the
respective licence agreements. At 31 December 2020, the
Company had pledged bank deposits of HK$31,000,000
(2019: approximately HK$97,248,000) to banks for the bank

guarantees issued.

As at 31 December 2020, the remaining deposits amounting
to HK$1,175,000 (2019: HK$1,450,000) were pledged for

the corporate credit cards issued to the Group.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2020

24,

JRE R MR

C 4K 41 17 5K

T2 NN 1 R/NETIEE R VA iy - IV
B A TR b ok "2 SE W B A B 2ot
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(T F—JLH : 4797,248,0007C) °

R oE_ZEFT A=+ —H W
A B1,175,00000 (= F — JL4F -
1,450,000 %) £ 4l A 48 B 28 %5 (1) 8 w45
RAE H KA -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)
Ko 5 ik 2 Bt RE (48)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  25. Bi& KB &S EHY

2020 2019
SECRE CF K
HK$°000 HK$’000

W T ou T T

Cash and bank balances B4 M SRAT & Bk 146,901 72,629
Non-pledged time deposits FE LR 2 HA A7 3K 5,038 8,093
Cash and cash equivalents Iﬁ(jz\&fﬁé%tg;% 151,939 80,722
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank Rl E R AEBUARKE(TAR
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) W 1) wHE B % & R AT 45 B ZE& e
amounted to HK$121,358,000 (2019: HK$16,464,000). The 121,358,0007C ( =& — JU4E : %
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, 16,464,00070) ° NG N Hﬂfﬁ:*@ﬁi;ﬁ\:
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control i &5 SR AR5 P 1B K e g O REE A 3
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and ) B (45 T ~ 85 0E A BEAS BEAR 2 ) >
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is A A5 [ AT AR 5 AT A RE SEHS Y R
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through 17318 N B vi 4t /o Hofth B2 % o
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks carns interest at floating rates based on daily fE T84 DLAE H AT KRR BE 1T B A R G
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for o I E M R BR— A —H i
varying periods of between one day and six months depending Vay ﬂﬁl HARE > 57 A 45 [ /9 B I PR 4
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn kﬁﬁ/?E > ﬂtf%%‘j A BAAF 2 *UK%EX
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The ) B, T &G R M ORI A SO O A
bank balances and deposits are deposited with creditworthy /ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ .ﬁ%&ﬂ{;%ﬁ KA1 ERAT ©
banks with no recent history of default.
N
26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 26. JE D) MRk
An ageing analysis of accounts payable as at the end of the R HIR > AR 3 5 B iR
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: B Hran R -
2020 2019
“EROFRE ENFE
HK$’000 HK$’000

T U T T

Within 1 month D@ A 7,265 7,544

1 to 2 months 12218 A - -
2 to 3 months 2% 318 A — 344
Over 3 months 3 A 75 224
7,340 8,112

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are REATBR RSB » — R —FRNEEH -

normally settled within one year.
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27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. H f{th J& -} BE 3k I W 51 & H

28. PROMISSORY NOTES

176

2020 2019
SECRE F R
HK$’000 HK$’000

W T ou T T

Other payables At BB A R R 30,931 23,701
Accruals e 2 10,092 14,917
41,023 38,618
Contract liabilities BHAEE 7,136 38,691
48,159 77,309
Notes: /%‘ 2
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) HHRARFEHIT
31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2019
SRo®E SFAE SFAR
+ZASt-H  toA=t—H —A—H
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
BT 7 i jiion
Fund management business: R EHER
— Receipts in advance — TE N E 2,242 2,700 2,717
Media sales and production of advertisement R ER G RIERH
arrangements:
— Billings in advance of performance — B 2 HilT R 4,748 35,698 50,875
Custodian fee received in advance A EEE 146 293 -
7,136 38,691 53,592

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
fund management, media and stock dealing services. The fluctuations
in contract liabilities in 2020 and 2019 were mainly due to the
decrease in short-term advances received from customers in relation

to the provision of these services at the end of the year.

(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average payment (b)

term of three months.

BH R B AR AR BE  BEHE  BCE
8 57 HR 5 BT MACHR B S TELA RO - B A B
Mo F = RER =R JUERE) T LR H R
B A BRI BEA 2 S IR B OROR A& P 2
AT SIEAE T -

FAbREAT AR AR B > T2 =0 A -

28. Hk b SRR

The movements of the promissory notes are set out below: O ZE A 2 S A S R
2020 2019
e
HKS$’000 HK$’000

W T T

At 1 January w—H—H 185,000 100,000
Redemption (Notes (i) & (iii)) HE m] (Bt At i) K (i) (61,447) (5,000)
Issues (Notes (ii) & (iii)) AT (B At (i) A (iii)) 20,000 90,000
At 31 December Rt _HA=+—H 143,553 185,000
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28. PROMISSORY NOTES

Notes:

()

(i)

(iif)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

(continued)

On 28 December 2018, the Company issued promissory note in the
principal amount of HK$100,000,000 to Kinetic Creation Global
Investments Limited (“Kinetic”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of CCB International (Holdings) Limited (“Kinetic
Promissory Note”). The Kinetic Promissory Note bore interest at a
rate of 9% per annum for a term of one calendar year, which was
subject to an extension for another one calendar year by the written

consent of Kinetic. During the year, the maturity date of Kinetic

Promissory Note was extended to 15 March 2021 with the consent of

Kinetic.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, principal amounts
totalling HK$41,447,000 (2019: HK$5,000,000) were redeemed.
The total interest charged to profit or loss amounted to
HK$ 16,863,000 (2019: HK$12,547,000). On 15 March 2021, the
outstanding balances and interests incurred were fully settled.

On 9 August 2019, the Company issued promissory note in the
principal amount of HK$90,000,000 (“Fullbest Promissory Note”)
to Fullbest Star Limited (“Fullbest”), a company beneficially owned
and ultimately controlled by a close family member of a director of a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Fullbest Promissory
Note bears interest at a rate of 10% per annum for a term of one
calendar year which is subject to an extension for another one
calendar year by the written consent of Fullbest. An arrangement fee
of HK$600,000 was made during the year ended 31 December 2020
to Fullbest to extend the maturity date of the Fullbest Promissory
Note from 8 August 2020 to 8 August 2021.

conditions of the Fullbest Promissory Note including the extension

The terms and

are conducted on normal commercial terms in the opinion of the
Directors and none of assets of the Group are secured for the

Fullbest Promissory Note.

On 13 March 2020, the Company issued promissory notes in the
principal amounts of HK$20,000,000 to independent third parties.
The promissory notes bear interest at a rate of 6% per annum for a
term of six calendar months.

September 2020.

The balances were fully repaid in

29. OTHER INTEREST-BEARING
BORROWINGS

()

Bond payable

In the prior year, a subsidiary of Nature Win Limited
(“Nature  Win”) which was disposed of during the
year issued a bond of HK$7,000,000 at an offer price
of 100% of its face value (the “Bond”). The Bond
was unsecured, bore interest at a fixed rate of 6% per
annum, with interests payable at maturity. The Bond
was due in September 2020 and was disposed upon the
disposal of Nature Win in April 2020 as mentioned in

note 34 to these financial statements.

3

28. 7K

B4 5 e 7 B R (
1 December 2020 —F _FH+_H =+—H

EETJJQ (#48)

(78)

it

()

(i)

(iii)

29.

(@)

Mo FE—NE+ A+ /NH o AN g
BB LI E A RA T (T8 - & B R R
(FE ) A R 7 2 [H B 2 B M B A /) 8847
7% 4 %E B ¥ 5100,000,000 7C Y 7K 6 B 4% ([ 22
EE%J‘% L4 1) o UK L SRR IR A R oo w T
B EE A — AR A8 A T A
T lBE o SFEN > REIFE - B BUK
EEMNFMAEERE T - —F=H+H
H o

BE-Z-FHF+T+ A =T—HIEFE &
[ [ A 4 4 AR S 0 41,447,00000 (- F —JL
AR ¥ 5,000,0000T) © FEA R 4 B FIE AL

5y 16,863,000 (& — JU4E
12,547,00070) » A —F _—HF=H+HH >
ﬂ%ﬁ&@ﬁ%&ﬂu BB -

s = FE—JUENH JLH > AN\ ) [ Fullbest Star

Limited ([ Fullbest ] > HM-‘/\T"‘%:W%’\jﬂ’J
— R AR P M AR Y
8 T BEAT 7R 4 HH S 1K 90,000,000 76 Y 7K 58 5%
% ([ Fullbest 7&K 7 =4 |) o Fullbest /K 5, 22 9 1
AR F10% T B > A 5 — i & 4w A
Fullbestﬁggﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ_1ﬁ,§ﬁz o WE F
ZEAEFZH=4+—HIF4EE > &[4 Fullbest
A2 P s 600,000 7T > {8 Fullbest 7K 5
EENFMACH ZFRE N NHER
:2:*@/\)% JNH o HHEFL > Fullbest 7K

SRR RS A (G AE B 5 4% — e ps
?E{P‘ KAEAT » 3 4 DL AL [ 2 FE Fullbest7K
SLEER IR o

REBCREZAFZH > AR B
=7 B AT AN & % HE 120,000,000 7T [ 7K b 22
P o R EIR I AE R Revowt B > WA N HE
JEH o N FERENA > FIRE BEAEE -

H At w5t 24 K

VE A 155 %7

N E B Nature Win Limited
(I'Nature Win ) 2 — [t J& A w1
— 4 B DU 25 TH 1B 1009 14 5% 65 (5 3%
7 ¥ 7,000,000 70 1 1 Z¢ ([ f&
Frl) o MBS B MAKR > [ E AR R
Fhev > FILEA B IR AT o B 55
TERCFENH BN HEWNZE
TP i 2% B 5 34 BTl A . AR
M0 H 4 Nature Winli 8 o

R & m M A RS A 1

~
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2020 —FE _FFEF_H=1+—H

29. OTHER INTEREST-BEARING
BORROWINGS (continued)

(b) Interest-bearing borrowings

In the prior year, a subsidiary of Nature Win had a loan
that bore interest at LIBOR plus 3.9% to 6.5% per
annum. The loan was unsecured and repayable on 22
July 2021. The loan was disposed as part of the
disposal of Nature Win as mentioned in note 34 to
these financial statements.

30. DEFERRED TAX

29.

(b)

'ﬂijt FIf JT iEil:'"jlik [{ﬁ)

it A%

= EE > Nature WinFJ— ] Bﬁ%/\
A 2 B A I A A ] FE AR R
3.9%E6.5%7 H o B Z ﬁ?ﬁﬁ#ﬁ]ﬁﬁ

[

—4HFEA T HEE

hﬂaﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%WEﬂﬁ
#lt (%) H S Nature Win i B ©

30. ¥E %t Fi JH

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the PEHE BT A R MG NME N B AR
year are as follows:
2020
“ECRE
Depreciation
allowances in Temporary
excess of differences
related arose from
accelerated Fund Customer disposal of
depreciation Tax losses contracts  relationship  subsidiaries Total
jé H R A
o 5 18y A - ]
G S Bid i RERH FRBGE WREER At
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
T i T T i T T BT T
At 1 January 2020 f/\# 2 3m 2i0
—A—H (871) 2,112 (3,788) (5,189) (6,042) (13,778)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the AR R TE A 5 %
statement of profit or loss during the ﬁ')\/ (41B)
year (note 12) I 4 SE % O
(Hat12) 866 (2,112 947 576 6,042 6,319
At 31 December 2020 REEZFE
+-A=+—H (5) — (2,841) (+,613) — (7,459)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

bt 265 e 7 B ik (%)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

30. & € B JH (%)

2019
“E-hE
Depreciation
allowances in Temporary
excess of differences
related arose from
accelerated Fund Customer disposal of
depreciation contracts relationship subsidiaries Total
& A i 5 B
R A 8 1 N E AR
Pt b HREH KFBGR  HRkER Mgt
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
T T T T i T T i
At 1 January 2019 WZF— U
—A—H (1,341) (#,735) (5,765) — (6,305)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the N %
statement of profit or loss during the ﬁ')\/ (41BR)
year (note 12) 19 458 AL B TE
(Hfit12) 470 (3,424) 947 576 (6,042) (7,473)
At 31 December 2019 REF-NE+Z
A=+—H (871) (3,788) (5,189) (6,042) (13,778)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

TE BB IR DL 2 B IR - o T IR I8 Bl 5 B
EMEE RS o DL RAE FA B
B FH R S B TE & B 0 A

2020 2019
“®oRE CF 0K
HK$°000 HK$’000

W T T T

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the TE 45 A IR UL 36 TR 1Y

consolidated statement of financial position 8 SE B TG A - 1,265
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the TE 45 A IR UL 36 TR 1Y

consolidated statement of financial position % AL 3l H B R TR A (7,459) (15,043)
Net deferred tax liabilities % 5 TE B Vg (E (7,459) (13,778)

At 31 December 2020, the Group had tax losses arising in
Hong Kong of HKS$455,193,000 (2019: approximately
HK324,666,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the

losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses and temporary differences as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses and temporary differences can be

utilised.

BEZ-ZF+_H=1+—H A%
B 1£ 7 s A Bl JE S 159 455,193,000 7T
(ZF— U A1 ¥324,666,0007T) > A
DA 4 [ HA A K 8 B B 1R 0 A Rl R AR
JRE SR U A o

Wi e 2~ m) i R — BelRe ) - HLRB 2% H AR
AT RE A R R i M) T S G A T s 18 %
R o B 5 B HL s 1R R B 2 R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

o 5 e 2 B 5 (48
31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

31. SHARE CAPITAL

31. AR

2020 2019
R R ZE—ILF
HKS$°000 HK$’000
W T T oo
Shares ik &l
Issued and fully paid: BT ROCEE
1,184,865,332 ordinary shares 1,184,865,332 it - 48 H% 118,487 118,487

32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

(a) Share Award scheme

180

On 24 August 2018, a share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) was approved and adopted
by the Board of Directors of the Company under which
shares of the Company may be awarded to selected
participants which include employees, directors
(including executive and non-executive directors),
officers, agents or consultants of the Group (the
“Selected Participants”). Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the Share Award Scheme will remain valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing
from the adoption date. Details of the Share Award
Scheme have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 24 August 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the trustee
of the Share Award Scheme purchased a total of
10,000,000 shares of the Company (2019: 38,356,000
shares of the Company) from the market at an
aggregate value of approximately HK$3,679,000 (2019:
HK$44,064,000) and total of 11,500,000 Shares (2019:
17,610,000 Shares) have been granted to the selected
participants pursuant to the terms of the Share Award
Scheme. The acquired shares were recognised and
accumulated in equity under the heading of “Shares held
for share award scheme”. As at 31 December 2020,
43,890,000 shares (2019: 45,390,000 shares) of the
Company were held by the trustee for the purpose of
the Share Award Scheme.
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32. B oy 5% W B Vi Jie B it
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B Ay 5 i w2

W FE—ENH FHUH s AR
) T E S PR A — TE Iy 58
whE ([ SEmat &) > PR AL
AR AT TSRS R (A%
HE S - o (OREPIT MIEITE
) TN B - A EE ) (1%
BESHE]) o BB A BUE &R
Gh s B SE B E I B PR AN B I
TAEHI I — B AR - By BE st
ZREE RN AN F B A
NENAZTHEHAZAR -

BE_E-EXF+_H=1+—HI
R B sE B A B M Z st AFETH
5 B\ BB A 15 853,679,000 70 (&
— JLEE ¢ ¥k 44, 064,00008) A 3L
10,000,000 & 4% 28 ] By (& —JL
4 2 38,356,000 A A F ) - HAR
PR RO BE B w1 B 2 M K 1) 8 2 L
F WA 311,500,000 B B (—F
— JL4E £ 17,610,000 B A7) o B Wik
JR AR T T Ay 38 B w5t 8 15 G 2 I A
HR 2t NER R BRE e RF
TEREFTTH=+—H > A
BEEEIT E > Z 5t AFEA 43,890,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME (continuc(l)

(a) Share Award scheme (continued)

Details of the share awards granted are set out below:

2020

Date of grant

i B M

Number of
shares awarded

5ty B H

Average fair
value per share
GIa ]

2 fufEAE

bt 265 e 7 B ik (%)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H
32. W% A 5 M B ik e RE ST ) ()

(a) Mty B s (49)
{52 1 BE Y B Oy R EAE BT

== =

Award price

% i 11

Vesting period

S & 390

10 June 2020

“ERFEAATH

10 June 2020

“ECEENA A

4,110,000

4,110,000

7,390,000

7,390,000

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

Nil

Nil

2020 4 ¥

Within 10
business
days after
the date of
acceptance
by the
Selected
Participants

WESHE
% 52 Ity
BE % 1018
BEHN

Within 10
business
days after
the date of
acceptance
by the
Selected
Participants

iz g
2 % 1By
4% J§h 1% 1011
BEHN

R & m M A RS A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)
S % e 3% Pt R (7))

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE

182

OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a) Share Award scheme (continued)
2019

Number of

Date of grant shares awarded

i B HE Jih 1A B H

32. Je oy 5 Wi B2 Vi Jie st 2 (sg0)

(2)

Average fair
value per share
JiF- 24

s A AE

Bt Ay B i wH # (%65)
—F

Award price

HE i) 5

Vesting period

S g 391 1)

1 April 2019 12,510,000

—E—JUFEMHA—H 12,510,000

16 April 2019 5,100,000

E
WA+ H

5,100,000

1.17

The fair value of the shares was determined based on

the closing market price of the Company’s shares that

were publicly traded on the Stock Exchange on the

respective grant date and adjusted by the fair value of

the dividends during the vesting periods as the grantees

are not entitled to dividends during the vesting periods.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, total expense

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss for shares granted under the Share Award Scheme

was

HK$20,553,000).
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approximately HK$3,450,000 (2019:

Nil Within
10 business
days after
the date of
acceptance by
the Selected
Participants

k2 HE
B2 By
B2 1018
BEAN

Nil Within

10 business

»

days after

the date of
acceptance by
the Selected
Participants

k2 mE
552 Bty
B2 1010
BEHN

P A7 B 2% FAB(EL T AR T B 52 i
B B 9 A 8 m B R A% B R H
$ ke i A 7 R SO R 45 B R 0 ] i
S BT - 2 0
] R % N\ SRS A IS, -

»

BE_ZF_ZRHEF_H=1+—HI
SRR MR 0 S 8 R B2 0 Ak
BT A7 48 o 32 HEE R 1 B S KRR A
95 153,450,000 ( —~F—JLIF : i
#20,553,0007C) °



The share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) of the Company was approved and adopted
by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2018.
The Company might grant options to the eligible
participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated
therein. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on the
adoption date of the Share Option Scheme on 8 June
2018.

On 27 March 2020, 118,020,000 options were granted
to the directors, employees, lenders and a consultant of
the Group pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise price of the options is HK$0.33 per ordinary
share of the Company (the “Share”), which is not less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of HK$0.315
per Share as stated in the daily quotations sheet of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant of the Options; (ii)
the average closing price of HK$0.308 per Share as
stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the Options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share, which is HK$0.1. The share
options vested immediately on the date of grant as
stated in grant letter and among which 64,220,000 will
be exercisable for a period of 5 years until 26 March
2025 while the remaining 53,800,000 share options
were exercisable until 12 September 2020.

The Company has rebutted the presumption in
paragraph 13 of HKFRS 2 for measuring the equity-
settled transaction with the lenders and consultant by
reference to the fair value of the share option rather
than the fair value of the related services as these
services or financial support received by the Group
cannot be measured reliably.

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

AN F) B RE ST B ([ B AR #1 ))
A\ R R —F— NN AN
H 847 2 AR08 A B RO 45 K& bt
HE AR o AN T Al [a] B B A% 2
BRI UREEFEEN
Ao R B A R A N ) 2 3 o
el FSE R 1516 19 R PRE R B A0 H 0
—EZ— )\ENH/NH) B EE—
BHAM -

Mo EEE=ZH +tEH A%
R A ME T B E S - R
A N K2 TR #% Hi 118,020,000 17 B
FRERRE o W PSR %) A (A 15 0 BRE A
A (T ) # #0330 > A
KA T3 2 e & 0 ) B0 i i g
MEFZ H HIAE H W A 25 5 T A R
oA (TBEsSfr ) & H 38 R a2
Wi T A s W 0.315 0T 5 i) B
SRR E B S EA
TE W 28 BT 5 H A8 R BTk 2 7 350k
71 B B %50.308 9T 5 K i) — IO
iy 2 T {E > R ¥0.17T o B BHE
5 Bk Ak i $2 T H O3 RO %) R
H 164,220,000 173 B % HE 119 R 47 {65 34
WRAsH > BE " Z_HFE=H_ 1+
7N H o HA% 53,800,000 B A% HE I A
TERCTAESLA T H AR AT o

A F B ¥ B R o B 5 ot TR )
B2 9REE 3 BUA B 25 IEIHER) 2 Ao
R (EL T JF AH Bl IR 25 7Y 28 Fofe () 2
SHLTRCARL N L o P HE AT A9 LA 2 &5 04
W22 5y 2 HEsE > R A B2 I B /Y
% S5 I 5 e A 5 SR AT T S

H o 7r & mh 4 B A R 2 A



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)
S % e 3% Pt R (7))

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE 32. Ay 5 I e Vi it BE w1 ) ()
OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) Jii e Rt A (7))
The following share options were outstanding under the 2 A I R ST v R AT R A
Share Option Scheme during the year: REWNR ¢
2020 2019
—x—%H —E U
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
B P 3 BEEHE Ry el JC HE
A7 8 #H AT fdifE #H
HKS$ per HKS$ per
share 000 share 000
5 I W T BRE T
At 1 January w—H—H - - — —
Granted during the year A AAE R 0.33 118,020 — —
Lapsed during the year A AR A BE AR BK 0.33 (57,800) — —
At 31 December w+—H
=+—H 0.33 60,220 — —
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share B AR o R AT Y B R
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting TR AT T
period are as follows:
2020 “ROFRE
Number of options Exercise price  Exercise period
e H rREME AT
000 HKS$ per share
5 Ik B
60,220 0.33 27 March 2020 to 26 March 2025

CREORFEZHAZHEHZE
“FRHAEZAZTAH

The fair value of the share options granted during the A B P57 M 1) B A R ) N e BB B
year was HK$9,292,000 (2019: Nil) which was fully s %9,292 ,0007C (=& — JL4F -
recognised as share option expense during the year ) A E - F FFET T H =+
ended 31 December 2020. — H 1E A B A AR R o W AR B S o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE

OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Wb 5 e % B RE ()
31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

32. Je oy 5 Wi B2 Vi Jie st 2 (sg0)

(b) A REGE# (50

TS A A JBE 452 1 A J MR A S J A 1Y
A AR ER B = IE R
(it B A i B B K S AR 1) 2
FrAbist o T REE T A0 A B

2020 2019
SRoBE 2

Dividend yield (%) B2 (%) 0.00%
Expected volatility (%) TEH I (%) 47.67%-84.35% —
Historical volatility (%) JRE S U5 Wi (o 84.35% —
Risk-free interest rate (%) ﬂﬂ%ﬂi@a 0.608%-0.651% —
Expected life of options (year) i TR HE BT A PR (4F) 0.462-4.995 —

Weighted average share price JIHET- 4 B8 (B s )

(HKS per share) 0.33 -

The expected life of the share options is based on the
historical data up to the past 10 years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

33. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

In late 2019,
prospective buyers to dispose 100% equity interest of China
Ltd.* (“CSIB”) which was

engaged in the provision of insurance brokerage services as

the Group entered into negotiations with
Sports Insurance Broker Co.,

part of the financial services segment of the Group. The
associated assets and liabilities were consequently presented as
held for sale in the 2019 financial statements.

On 18 February 2020, the Group entered into an agreement
(the “Disposal Agreement”) with an independent third party
in relation to the sale and purchase of 100% of the equity
interests of CSIB (the “Disposal”). Details of the Disposal
were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
18 February 2020. The Disposal was completed in April
2020.

S RE T R BR DA B 22 3 5 104F 1Y

JRE 52 o 2y FEHE > R REFE R AT fE
B A9 AT 18 T 2K o TE A D0 e R

bR AT R R A B 2 Rk - TR
ﬂi%‘%%@mﬂ%

L2 th 10 IR HE R A 3
AR -

ﬁh%&ﬁm&n»%
f18

R A

33. 7 R
ﬁﬁ%

B ZE— VR > A B B A B KO
?&ﬂU$%¢¥%@ﬁﬁﬁ@“ﬂ
([P B LR B D) A 100% BEHE o A B8 O B 11
H PR B AR AL RS > F AN 4E 18 4 il AR
Wi e) —For - BB E E XA EEE
R FE—IUFE M B HRURHE B RS

W FFAE T H A NH > A4 [
SEEE =k B A B AR B 1009 %
ME(THEFRE] Gk ([H &
wR) o A B R T TE TR B R A A A
HE A - ZE -FE_H+NBZA4% -
WERIEE RN A H SR -

B2k & fl 4 AR A 185
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

33. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS I

HELD FOR SALE (continued)

33. 7%
g

%%

KRR )

A AR

The following assets and liabilities were reclassified as held for R E—NLE+_H=+—H > F3H
sale in relation to the disposal group as at 31 December A A A B K B R
2019: BARELE
$’000
Tt
Assets classified as held for sale LR EWE E
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) W3~ R K (i ks) 9,385
Goodwill (note 17) PR (R 5 7) 29,537
Prepayments and deposits TE AT 3K A S % 27,360
Accounts receivable JFEE WA B 1,519
Other receivable and deposits A R WA B R M A 4 11,061
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KBS EY 16,356
Total assets of disposal group held for sale R 18 B 0 B A0 B i A AR 95,218
Liabilities directly associated with assets HoBLFEREEE LA M
classified as held for sale £ 1§
Other payables and accruals A R A R R K E ST 2 3,622
Tax payable JRE A} A5 TE 168
Total liabilities of disposal group held for sale FEAE B 0 B A N i £ Al 3,790

*  For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

34. DISPOSAL/DEREGISTRATION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

a) Details of net assets of the subsidiaries, CSIB and Nature
Win, disposed of during the current year and the

Wb 5 e % B RE ()
31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

34. HY B G 6 PR 4 )

Q) AR EE Y B 2w e R B
K Nature Win I & 2 15H(E B 55 5

financial impacts are summarised as follows: ) A0 ME R
Total
Mt
HK$’000
T T
Property, plant and equipment Y~ BB s 3,860
Goodwill i 29,537
Loans receivable JRE Wi B K 42,678
Accounts receivable JFEE Wiz B 2K 194
Prepayments and other receivables TEAST R TE e At BB A B 7K 767
Cash and cash equivalents BHe kBlE&%EEY 65,324
Receipt in advance, accruals and other payables TEUSCERIE ~ EREE ) M H
B AT HiR 3K (10,306)
Interest-bearing borrowing FhEfE K (39,193)
Bond payable JEEAH (5 75 (7,000)
85,861
Exchange fluctuation reserve A1 FEE 15k B £t g 289
86,150
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 7) t B R 2w A
(K17t 7) 7,879
94,029
Satisfied by 1 DAR 7 AT
Cash B4 94,029

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as
follows:

B 2 B B4 B 4%
A BT

HK$’000
T T
Cash consideration (notes (i) & (if)) B ARE (M FE ) & i) 94,029
Cash and bank balances disposed of e B B S ERAT A5 R (65,324)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of t B B B 2 m Y B K
disposal of subsidiaries WS EY A TR 28,705

2020 4
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

St 255 e 3 Bif k(A

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

34. DISPOSAL/DEREGISTRATION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

188

a) (continued)

Notes:

(i) On 18 February 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of its entire equity interest in a wholly-owned
subsidiary, CSIB, for a consideration of RMB80,500,000
(equivalent to HK$91,770,000). The gain on disposal before
tax amounted to approximately HK$2,164,000 and loss on
the disposal net of tax amounted to approximately
HK$2,933,000. The transaction was completed on 30 April
2020.

(ii) On 30 April 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a company wholly-owned by a close family
member of Mr. Xu Peixin, to dispose of its entire equity
interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Nature Win Limited,
for a consideration of HK$2,259,000. The gain on the
disposal (before and after tax) amounted to approximately
HK$5,715,000. The transaction was completed on the same
date.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a

cumulative foreign currency translation loss of

approximately HK$289,000 was recycled from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss.

b) Upon the deregistration of a subsidiary, EW SRR
M5 B RE s BRA A , which had been inactive and
did not have any material assets and liabilities at the
time of deregistration, the corresponding exchange
reserve in relation to this subsidiary of HK$2,527,000
was released and recognised in profit or loss in the
prior period.
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a)

b)
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G R ZFEZFEZHINH - AL R
— B = T S0 E ko DR
8 N B #580,500,0007C (FH & 7 i i
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W 12,164,00070 > BLAR & G IR A 75
#H52,933,0007C © i 5 B N E
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Gy MAIEFEZFENMA =TH > AL
RIS ONER £V K <e ZEROPN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$5,889,000
(2019: HK$32,585,000) note 15 16(b),

and

respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for b%‘32,585 ,00070) (B 5E15 &1 6(b)) (—
buildings (2019: Buildings and billboards). F— LA - T RE AR
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) e i B A A Y £ 5 52 B
financing activities
2020 - Jawe 22
Interests
payable
included in
Interest- other
Lease  Promissory Bond bearing payables and
liabilities notes payable  borrowings accruals
it A Al
JHE A+ e 3k B
JRE it ) i
R £ R LR & A i 57 st B K JE £ 8.
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T W T W T W T T
At 1 January 2020 /e e 25
— =g 34,517 185,000 7,000 39,608 199
Changes from financing cash il B4 T 2 S B
flows (18,176) (41,447) — (1,334) (17,344)
New leases A g 5,889 — — — —
Interest expense B B2 773 - — 919 17,145
Lease modification EEET (825) — — — —
Disposal of subsidiaries B BB 2 — — (7,000) (39,193) —
At 31 December 2020 i S i 5
+=A=+—H 22,178 143,553 — — —

S 785 ¥ 2 B (A

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

35. HF O Bl & W B R B

() EERBERS

R AN E TS E S
AEBRESREFAMEEAHEA
5 M5 5,889,000 (& — JL4E : f?

H)

2020 4
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
W0 5 R W R (7))

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)

190

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from

financing activities (continued)

2019

35. %6 Bl 4 B e Wk ()

(b)

E U

Interest-

?%;%iﬁiﬂ%%ﬂ@ﬁ%%ﬁ
=

Interests
payable

included in

Lease Promissory bearing  other payables
liabilities notes  Bond payable borrowings and accruals
F A H A
JOEA5F B R
JRE 52 F
T £ A 7R 5t SR JOE A5t i 25 Fh B JRE AT A1),
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W T i T BT T W T BT T
At 1 January 2019 B oE— LA

— =g 17,641 100,000 — — 99

Changes from financing cash Tl B 4 O R A )

v (16,513) 85,000 7,000 38,503 (13,053)
Interest expense B 32 942 - - 1,282 13,153
Exchange realignment e b, 4 4 — - - (177) —
New leases ke A 32,585 — — — —
Lease modification HEEFT (138) — — — —
At 31 December 2019 W E— U

+=A=+—H 34,517 185,000 7,000 39,608 199

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) & B &0 A
The total cash outflow for leases included in the AR SR ERERNHEHE SR
statement of cash flows is as follows: MEMT

2020 2019

“ERORE —EE

HKS$’000 HK$’000

BT T

Within operating activities ﬁi‘ A& ’%’ 4= 406 2,535

Within financing activities FEA R B A& 18,176 16,513

18,582 19,048

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a licence
agreement of the Media Business segment was early
terminated. A work deposit of HK$1,000,000 and a bank
guarantee of HK$31,000,000 were previously made in favor
of the licensor pursuant to this licence agreement which
entitled the licensor to forfeit or claim any outstanding
payable by the licensee. The work deposit of HK$1,000,000
was forfeited by the licensor as of 31 December 2020 and
subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in March
2021, the licensor had further claimed for outstanding payable
of approximately HK$18,866,000 under the bank guarantee.
Although no further claims have been received by the Group
and the bank guarantee was not yet released as of 31
December 2020 and up to the date of these financial
statements concerning the termination, in the opinion of the
directors, disclosure is made for the contingent liabilities, as
the licensor has reserved the rights to recover his losses from
the Group and the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

36.

Wb 5 e % B RE ()
31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

R AU

BE_F-FE+HA=Z+—HIHERE
— R R e R AL -
S0 AR 48 5% F R b o ) 7 AT AAE AR
5 35 4 ¥ 51,000,000 7T B 88 17 98 {5 7 W
31,000,0007C > #F A N 1 % Ui Bk 2 18 1
FF AL AT o] o 8 25 M A 3K IE - FF R R
SR CEBFF A=+ —HRKTER
75 4 ¥ 11,000,000 7T > 10 e I &5 R
%> BN F - —E=H HBRATER
o A8 3R AT 2K TE R E A 7 %518,866,000
JC o BERIN —F _FE+HA=+—H
KB E 2SR E AL B R A
Al L B R AE ELERATIE LR M R R
HESER L > BT AR ) A< 4 5
BEHE AR RER > HAEBRZ 25 Y A 5
YT EEFBEEENSHE - WILE ek

37. COMMITMENTS 37. TR
(a) The Group had the following capital commitments at the (2\) 7 45 3] A 5 A R AE R B B AR R
end of the reporting period: %
2020 2019
S
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T
(Restated)
(RE )
Contracted, but not provided for: SE HE(EE S et
Property, plant and equipment ERN Y& - 13,693
Investment in a subsidiary Mg~ Al E 41,234 41,234
41,234 54,927
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

37. COMMITMENTS

(b) Other commitments

(continued)

Under certain exclusive licences to (i) conduct media
sales agency and management business on selected bus
shelters, (ii) solicit advertising business in respect of the
interior and exterior panels of buses operated by The
Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited and Long
Win Bus Company Limited and (iii) solicit advertising
business on other advertising spaces owned by
independent third parties, the Group has committed to
pay licence fees at a pre-determined percentage of the
net advertising rental received, subject to a guaranteed
minimum amount, as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, for exclusive licences to
solicit advertising business in respect of the interior and
exterior panels of buses operated by Citybus Limited
and New World First Bus Services Limited, the Group
has committed to pay licence fees at a predetermined
percentage of the net advertising rental received,

subject to a guaranteed minimum amount.

37. R ()
(b) H &

W oFE—NEF+_HA=+—H
%$%@ﬁ§mﬁ%%ﬁiﬁ$?
P L A5 G AR R B SRR S i)
MILEEE £ (—JL==) ARAAA
HEEEDEARAFAMEESD LM
T A0 8 e B B A R o HE AT R A
*% &(m)/‘j’jﬂﬁﬁﬁkk A HE

b JBE 5 157 3 Ei%%%ﬁ$%%
FEEPHE > AN [ B R T U B
A 4 1R BRI TS B E A A He s
TERTE > WA B R AR A SRR o

RoB_BEL_A=+—H R
82 S A A L )

TH 55— B MRS A R R P
S —f %) B i A0 0 % B B AT 4 o

HEAT B SE 5 19 8 R R R AN
V) 7 42 P AR A AL TR ARG
TG E | o LA R R 2 > M2
3 b AR B < H TR o

2020 2019

e

HKS$’000 HK$’000

#WT T BT

Within 1 year — N 85,911 123,872
In the second to fifth years, inclusive B _RHFE(FHREME) 200,945 87,800
286,856 211,672

The above licences typically ran for an initial period of
6 to 78 months as at 31 December 2019 and 30
months as at 31 December 2020. In prior year, certain
of the licences contained an option to renew the
licences when all terms were renegotiated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances as set out in
notes 5, 6, 21, 23, 28 and 34 to these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions

with related parties during the year.

bt 265 e 7 B ik (%)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

38. AN LA S

(a) BRA B KM GEs ~ 6 210 23>
28 B34 JIT R A B 38 ) & BR AN > AR
A AF A DA BB A5 5

2020 2019

A .

Note HKS$’000 HK$’000

B 5E BT T T

Rental income received from a A B A R A A
related company e A @) 206 —
Note: Bt 5

(i) Rental fee was charged to a related company mentioned in (i) FEL 455 A H A5 SR 2 B G 6 B 23 Tk [ 7

notes 6 and 23 to the financial statements at a rate mutually

agreed between parties.

(b) Outstanding balances with related
parties

Apart from those mentioned in notes 21 and 28, the
balances with a fellow subsidiary and a related company

are interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

(C) Compensation of key management personnel of the

2 5 0 Ty SL IR 5 7 ) B AICR o

(b) A - i o B R 45 B

BB 5k 21 S os B it b > B[] 2 B
o8 ) N BEAE N B R &5 R B K
0 K ZE A B R R fE 2 o

(c) AEEEEEHABNME

Group:

2020 2019
S A
HK$’000 HK$’000
33 ST T oo
Salaries, allowances and benefit in kind e HA R E YA 10,320 20,361

Equity-settled share-based payments DU FREHE &% B DA RS A9y 15y FE Al
45 K 2,013 9,758
Pension scheme contributions FERY N R 100 118

Total compensation paid to key YA TEEEHAERN

management personnel P 4 A AE 12,433 30,237

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in

note 10 to the financial statements.

T 40— TR R B
FMEE10 ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

$u 255 3 BiF ik (4

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

Financial assets

2020

4 b B e

ittt 25
Financial
assets

at fair value
through profit

39. %R HI & 4 by & Bk T H

T e it AR - 4% 5 T L B i T (L
T

or loss —
Mandatorily  Financial assets
classified as at amortised
such cost Total
A R
=L N
HiZ i 8 B AR
4 A whEM
(5 i 43 28) 4 b At
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
¥ T oo BT T
Financial assets at fair e REER AR LRE
value through profit or 2 & RE E
loss 101,376 — 101,376
Accounts receivable JREE A B 3K — 77,586 77,586
Loans receivable JE Wi B 3K — 86,716 86,716
Amount due from a JFRE WA [ B 2 ) I
related company — 206 206
Financial assets included FEATEATOE - Ha
in prepayments, M ,ﬁ\: ’ﬁﬁ WEE ﬂ& Eﬁ ai‘k E'(J
deposits and other 4 &
receivables — 17,160 17,160
Cash held on behalf of — HERFFFEHHE
clients — 1,007 1,007
Pledged deposits CHEH A7 K — 32,175 32,175
Cash and cash BHe kB E&%EEY
equivalents — 151,939 151,939
101,376 366,789 468,165
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B % e it sk (#)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 39. %58 B & 43 1Y St T H )
CATEGORY (continued)
Financial liabilities 4 b £ 1R
2020 TR OB
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
e i B AR
otk
4 b £ 1K
HK$’000
T
Accounts payable Wégﬁ'ﬁﬁ%k ) 7,340
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals ﬁ]\/ﬁé'f&ﬂ%fj‘ M X I R BT
A 4 B R 35,167
Lease liabilities & A fE 22,178
Promissory notes R 143,553
208,238
Financial assets 4 il A
2019 —E—JLE
Financial
assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss— Financial
Mandatorily assets at
classified as amortised
such cost Total
AR
EEFA e £ B A
Riaz
G RlE EEMEE T NE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T oo T T

Financial assets at fair value e REEFAE R

through profit or loss 2 B REE 177,231 — 177,231
Accounts receivable JRE iz B 2K - 144,497 144,497
Loans receivable JEE Wi B 2K - 130,810 130,810
Amount due from a fellow J#E Wi [R] 2R Bt g 2 i

subsidiary HIE — 7 7
Financial assets included in FEATEATHRIA ~ i

prepayments, deposits and T S At B AT B K P

other receivables G A E — 18,297 18,297
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEFFH B & — 900 900
Pledged deposits L HEH A7 — 98,698 98,698
Cash and cash equivalents Ha RBleEEY - 80,722 80,722

177,231 473,931 651,162
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
W0 5 R W R (7))

31 December 2020 —F ~FEF+ - H=+—H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (continued)

39. $ZFE 3 0 0 4k T H (4)

Financial liabilities 4 1k 1 18
2019 —E—JLE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
A ERY
Rl & R
HK$’000
T
Accounts payables JRE AT B K 8,112
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals i A A R AT R ik R R T
2 Y 4 B 29,117
Lease liabilities HEAMRE 34,517
Promissory notes 7R b, 2R 185,000
Bond payable A& 25 7,000
Interest-bearing borrowings FrEE R 39,608
303,354

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

196

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

40. SR THMA REMALA
i g K

AL B T H OR G4 R (B S fof
(E& BEAE A B < b TR ) A HR 1 (B 2 Ao B

HWF :
Carrying amounts Fair values
W T A 2 fe AR
2020 2019 2020 2019

SROBE CFNE CRORE CFOLE
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
EWFE  WTou WML BT

Financial assets 4 il
Financial assets at fair value 1%/ fLfE{EHFI AR
through profit or loss i 2 4 Rl 101,376 177,231 101,376 177,231
Financial liabilities 4 AR
Interest-bearing borrowings 71 B ff 3 — 39,608 — 39,608
101,376 216,839 101,376 216,839
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Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, cash held on behalf of clients, pledged deposits,
accounts receivable, loans receivable, accounts payable,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from fellow subsidiary and a related
company, promissory notes, bond payable and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term

maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining

maturities.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the financial
controller is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to
the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with
the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual

financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,

other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair value of listed equity investment is based on quoted
share price. The fair value of the investment in Investment
Fund is based on the net asset value which represents the fair
values of the underlying assets and liabilities. As at 31
December 2020, the underlying assets of the Investment Fund
comprises listed equity securities and unlisted bonds (2019:

listed equity securities).

31 December 2020 —F “FF+ " =+—H

HHEC MBS kB e EY - R
EFERHRANBE - CHIMF 5 Bk
A R - B AT IR~ B AT AT 3K
A ~ R4 KR AR WO Sl - B
W ) 2% B Ja 2 i) S ) i 2 R KR R
SRR AR - REACHARE A R
P& M EmAE N &5 A REEY
SHLJR T (R 7 > 2R R R % TR
M mEIH -

F S K4 I B 23 09 2 7o A (B 2 R
{5 8 A D A K~ A B e B B 4
Ym0 T L 7 3 e ] ) B oA I R A R 2R
Bl st E o

A4 Ty B 5 A S 1 £ 3 PG
B E e TR A EER R BUR
LR P o A 36 A B BK B 4 1 R RS
B RENZ B G ER o AR A
A 3 il 5 K 0 e i T L L (A
B > S A (E T IE ) 2 T 2 A B - A
(B E M EEM - FRERGEE
B % A BE B A e (R T
Lefi R o

EMEE BRI A REERA Q%
7 AR HIAE by (3 i B A 8 BR M)
R TR ke o

b T B A B s A (A B A o
WERESW A REEEREEFE > B
MHEEERABNAREEREE - B
FoEBEFLA=+—H BHEEEW
A B & B LG b B AR 5 KR T E
F(CFE—NE EBRARES) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 2% e A B i (#60)

31 December 2020

40.

198

SECBEF AN

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 40. Rt T H o Rl & A R
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 18 6 o &% ()
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy o Fe B A e 5
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TERAHARERSHM THZA fl:tg; ﬁ %1'
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: BB
Assets measured at fair value: E/Z_\\ﬁtg{ﬁﬁ'i 1 ﬁ% :
As at 31 December 2020 R _FEEF-H=+—H
Fair value measurement usin:
R THEHG RN REM
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HAW
1 o 1 5 BigmA  BERAB
i fH LE YN € .
(F—%) (F %) (F=%) At
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$ ’0(!) HK$ ’0(!)
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at fair value @ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%’)\jﬁﬁ
through profit or loss MG E )
— Listed equity — RS E
investment 6,333 - - 6,333
— Private equity fund — PRI & — — 95,043 95,043
6,333 — 95,043 101,376
As at 31 December 2019 R oF—NFE+_H=1—H
Fair value measurement usin
B R F 31 1
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HOAH
I B i By BEmWA  FERAAH
A I IN ;
(F—H) (%5 %) (=8 M5t
HKSO00  HKSO0 HKSO0 HKS'000
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at fair value Ei'T/N ﬁ@gﬁﬁﬁ}\jﬁ?ﬁ
through profit or loss 24 ﬁ:% .
— Listed equity — Ei R E
investment 9,779 - - 9,779
— Private equity fund — RS = 167,452 = 167,452
9,779 167,452 — 177,231
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

41.

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3

during the year are as follows:

bt 265 e 7 B ik (%)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

40. &SR THMA REMALA

18 18 K8 & ()

o Se B AR N B (7)
FERE =Rz A REEFTREHWT

2020 2019

e

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T

At 1 January H—H—H - -
Transfer from Level 2 $§*§ = %:n& 95,043 —
At 31 December wt+—_H=+—H 95,043 -

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

During the year, the fair value measurements of the private
equity fund transferred from Level 2 into Level 3 (2019: Nil)
due to change of underlying investments made by the private
equity fund. There was no transfer of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, accounts receivable, loans
receivable and promissory notes. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as other receivables and payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they

are summarised below.

41.

BOECEERCE U A=
— 1 A B 0 T A (R
CELTYE

FN - REREEENA REER R
YL T Y G S NG
M) > R P A S S 4 ) N B 5 A
Bl BT o B — A BELEE R 2 Sl O Ao
EER BT IE R -

<& il L B AR B H B B BUSR

AEHERN T ESR TRAAERES XS
SEY) - TR - BRI
AR A - ZFE M T AN EZH
MREBAEEEEFEELES - FEH
A R 8 A A Y A A At < Pl
Be AR (0 A B WSS i B B R

A G2 [ R <l T L 2R Y T LR 2
R BEEL B ~ W) A ~ SRR JE ~ A
2 Ja P 2 P A JRL By o 9 S A A A
HEAE B2 5 R B RO BOK > BORBLA AN T -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)
W0 5 R W R (7))

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

200

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of
the Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information

is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging

41. 4 il R B

B HH R R BUR

( z/f'ﬁ' )

fri 8 B b3

A B B 42 B 7 R T AR RS =0
Ly e ZIK%@]EGEJI%Z%B?%&LM%%E@
Lo & P B E SR BT o ILAh
A A [ R 4 AR URUR AR A B i%ﬁ%ﬂ
B I AS e B o NI IR DA AH BH 2 B AL T
REEWFHENZ SIS - BRIFEE S
il 8 > o AIA R BN g R ALE S -

5% 15y ML B R AF 45 I EE

TREIIERAEEFEEBOR 2 FEH
R B h e e B LB > T B A A ) R
(B i HAth BRI AE 4 R A H S 6 B2 B A
BB NZ BT ER) » ARZF T4

classification as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. The amounts R _FE—NFET A=+ —HZELHW
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets. Bt B o T 25 & B 2 4 Rl R R T AR
{H o
As at 31 December 2020 R_F_RETLTH=+—H
12 month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
121 A H
fri S e 7 A0 0 TN s £ R
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BB oM B Y fifj Al Jy ¥ At
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
BT BT i BT BT
Accounts receivable* JE IR 2+ - - - 79,783 79,783
Financial assets included in FEATAST R~ g
prepayments, deposits, other A R i R 26
receivables SRMERE
— Normal#* — E# 16,561 — — — 16,561
— Doubtful** — Felffors — — 1,172 — 1,172
Loans receivable*** JRE M 5 v 87,105 — — - 87,105
Amount due from a related A i 98 ] O
company
— Normal** — E# 206 - - - 206
Cash held on behalf of client REEFRARE
— Not yet past due — K@il 1,007 - - - 1,007
Pledged deposits B A7 3K
— Not yet past due — K 32,175 - - - 32,175
Cash and cash equivalents e RH &%
k]
— Not yet past due — Rl 151,939 — — — 151,939
288,993 — 1,172 79,783 369,948
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Maximum CJ(p()SLII‘C and }’Cc’ll'—(,‘ﬂd Stc’lglllg

(continued)

As at 31 December 2019

12 month ECLs

$t 755 ¥ 2 Bk (4E)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

41. 4 Bl E B 4 B H OB R BR

(41)

f B JE B (4

#)

2% 17 L B TR A 45 P B (#)

B_FE—-hE+ZA=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

1218 A M
HEER BMAENRENGERER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
EallE ol B 3B AL Iy i Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i T T T T i T T
Accounts receivablek HE W Rk — — — 145,534 145,534
Financial assets included in AT R S
prepayments, deposits, other At RE B A 4 T
receivables B
— Normal#* — TF e 18,075 — — — 18,075
— Doubtful#* — Rl = 59 239 = 298
Loans receivable*** JEE A e 172,163 6,818 — — 178,981
Amount due from a fellow R E NG
subsidiary
— Normal** — EH 7 - - - 7
Cash held on behalf of dlient REFFHASE
— Not yet past due — K 900 - - - 900
Pledged deposit BRI
— Not yet past due — K@ 98,698 = = = 98,698
Cash and cash equivalents B B4 S Y
— Not yet past due — K 80,722 = — — 80,722
370,565 6,877 239 145,534 523,215
* For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified 2 A % 5y W {EW? H % L Fikz T Wi e FM

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix

B R R ORI B S AR B R 21

*3k

is disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables and amount due from a related
company and a fellow subsidiary is considered as “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered as “doubtful”.

For loans receivable, the credit quality information is disclosed in note

22 to the financial statement.

Wi -

e NG AR o I EORHETS < L E 2 AR R
JEVBE 19 4002 ftE s LA AR R i s > B A FEAS
AR ~ e 4 T A B AR R ) <6 Al T DA B
i BT W 2 ) % [ 2R W Ja 2 W KR 2 A B
EOMIER ] B EMEE 2 FRER
Bk [ R IR o

JRE WS R A5 R 215 B 4 R A A S R
FE22 o

AHREMERARAA 201
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 2% e A B i (#60)

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

202

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and projected cash

flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank

overdrafts and bank loans.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

i B <5 L K

A SR [ A MR B R Rt TR
SE ok R o 5% THEEF K Em T A
MBI KRR R B S E o

A SR H Y AR R SRAT 8 S R AT B
FROR A L P 5 A P B o O A Y- A

R IR > REES AR AR AL
B s B AR R B LA R

2020 “EFRE

More than one

year but less

Within than
one year 2 years Total

& —EES
—iEN T W 4 At
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
#W T W T W T
Accounts payable JE A5} B K 7,340 - 7,340

Financial liabilities included in other FE A A JRE AT AR 3R B

payables and accruals FERT 22 F 1 4 i B f 35,167 — 35,167
Promissory notes 7R 5, 5 149,812 — 149,812
Lease liabilities & & & 14,802 7,834 22,636
207,121 7,834 214,955
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IV 5 R B e (7))

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  41. £ B JE\ b5 & P H A2 5 B ok

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (78)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) W& 2B ()
2019 —EF—NEF
More than More than
one year but two year but
Within less than less than
one year 2 years 5 years Total
fickic]
— A D T A48 T A
—H R WA HDR A HEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT r W TT  BWTrT  #BWTx

Accounts payable JREA5F Bz 3K 8,112 - - 8,112
Financial liabilities included w1 A oAt JE A B 2k

in other payables and N E T2 )

accruals B N=i 29,117 — — 29,117
Promissory notes 7KL E 195,709 — — 195,709
Bond payable JRE A i 7,420 — — 7,420
Interest-bearing FhEAE K

borrowings 2,569 41,436 — 44,005
Lease liabilities HE & E 19,376 10,895 5,362 35,633

262,303 52,331 5,362 319,996
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

$u 255 3 BiF ik (4

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

F()rcign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from provision of series by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Approximately 14% (2019: 14%) of the Group’s sales were

denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies

of the operating units making the sales.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
EUR/RMB/SGD exchange rate, with all other variable held
constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax and the

41. 4 Bl E B 4 B H OB R BR

(45)

A RE JE Bk

A 45 [ 76 1H B 3 o) R R B o 5% %5 R B
R B KEEAN L EN T REE R LIINE K
FHE R R P E S UL RE o AN 4E B 8 B AR
£114% (T —JULE @ 14%) LUETTEE LK
=AY B SN E R -

R W R R BT A H At
B REE  AEMERBLRTEF (E51R)
Fe W 4 BT, N R B e bS5
BT B 2 ) ) SRR

Group’s equity.

Increase/
(decrease) Decrease/
in EUR/ (increase) Increase/
RMB/SGD in loss (decrease)
rate before tax in equity™
[ ST
AR¥
3 o
ERHAR,  BRBAEER  HERNMm
GRAK) WA (B8 m) (W) *
% HKS$’000 HKS$’000
% EW T BT
2020 TR CRAE
If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 s L Ik o B2 (E
weakens against EUR 3 586 —
If the Hong Kong dollar fied s T S ek oo HE
strengthens against EUR 3) (586) —
If the Hong Kong dollar fied s e o N R Bz (E
weakens against RMB 3 2 —
If the Hong Kong dollar fied 4 i N R THE
strengthens against RMB 3) 2 -
If the Hong Kong dollar i s T 538 in 3% oo
weakens against SGD #2{E 3 2 —
If the Hong Kong dollar i s T 538 in 3% oo
strengthens against SGD FHE 3) 2 —

*  Excluding retained profits

* ELAE OR U A
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)
Ko 5 ik 2 Bt RE (48)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

41. 4 il R B

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (%8)

(continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Ab I Ja B (%)

B HH R R BUR

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in EUR/RMB/  in profit/(loss) (decrease)
SGD rate before tax in equity*
kot
NN R A
HomdorHER BA(EE) R
WA (AR B, () (WD) =
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% i W T
2019 —ZF—NEF
If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 s L K e B2 (E
weakens against EUR 3 686 —
If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 s S IR e THE
strengthens against EUR 3) (686) —
If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 s 5 N R R B (H
weakens against RMB 3 2 —
If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 s 5 N R R THE
strengthens against RMB 3) 2) -
If the Hong Kong dollar 0 45 S8 in 3 o
weakens against SGD [EN 3 20 —
If the Hong Kong dollar 0 45 S8 in 3 o
strengthens against SGD THE 3) (20) -
*  Excluding retained profits * NELHE R B s A
Interest rate risk A 2l B

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s promissory
notes and interest-bearing borrowings with fixed interest

rates.

As at 31 December 2020, if the interest rate on borrowings
had been 100 basis points higher, which was considered
reasonably possible by management, with all other variables
held constant, the loss after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$813,000 (2019: HK$269,000) higher as a
result of higher interest expenses on promissory notes and

interest-bearing borrowings.

7 252 (o] T B ) T 455 ) 4 A e o = B
7S Y R S SRR B TR R R A K
A -

]‘J‘AQ?Q? ﬂE—I— H —I— El 'ﬂJ]'fEl/\
%Uiiﬂmoﬁl%% BB LG A

A AE ) o (R EE T A H At s B A RE N
i A i R ol A% s 18 4% TR K S0 SR R R
S AE R A S B S8 o &9 5 s
813,000 70 (—F — JLAF : 135 %5 269,000
JG) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C()ntinued)

$u 255 3 BiF ik (4

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of listed equity
investment and private equity fund decrease as a result of
changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The Group was exposed to equity price
risk arising from individual equity investments included in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 20) as
at 31 December 2020. The Group’s listed equity
investments are listed on the Hong Kong stock exchange and
are valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting

period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,

based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting

41. 4 il R B

B HH R R BUR

(45)

Jise 11 e, Bt

IS A5 JEL gt 2 i TR 1S S i BOK P K2 AR il
{6 (L 58 Bl i 2 B0 i ABOME BB K AL 5
FCHESE B 2 8 SUAB(E WD 2 Sl B - i
ToFEF A= H > AEE T
S 2 AR B e A 1 A e i & (FH AR
N REEF ARG &M EE (5
20)) o ASEE 2 b7 ICHESUE IR A HE B A
Piv LT > Sl R B T S B A A

RN ARG AR R 2 R (E > B
WERE 2 N e fE(H A 5 B 500 2 WU (T
H H A 3 AR A5 HORFT MBS 28 o

period.
Carrying Increase/
amount of (decrease) Increase/
equity  in profit/(loss) (decrease) in
investments before tax equity*
bA
BHEREZ BF (BHE) R
WA #m, (kD) (B D) =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T T T
2020 TR A
Financial assets at fair value o R fEEF A B S
through profit or loss 2 A E B 101,376 5,069 —
2019 —E L
Financial assets at fair value o R fEEF A B S
through profit or loss 2 A E B 177,231 8,862 —
*  Excluding retained profits * NI R B v
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The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to

support its business and maximise sharcholders’ value.

The Group regards equity attributable to owners of the
Company as capital, manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group complied with the externally imposed capital
requirements and there was no indication of breach of
covenants. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended

31 December 2020 and 2019.

In addition, a licensed subsidiary within the Group manages its
liquidity position to ensure it maintains a prudent and
adequate liquidity ratio, in strict compliance with statutory
requirements. This is achieved by the management,
comprising the Chief Financial Officer and the licensed
subsidiary’s Executive Director, monitoring the liquidity
position of the Group on a daily basis to ensure the
availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations
and compliance with the statutory requirements, such as the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)

Rules, which are applicable to a licensed subsidiary.

31 December 2020 —F “FF+ " =+—H

$%@§$&@%§%E%%ﬁ%$%
B BE ) SRR A AR AR A R
DASE 5 2605 0 7 B OB AE (-

AR H AN T A NEASHE S A&
A% 5 S MR 4 A T T s AL R AT BE T JEL
B EHMPRE G AR o SRR
R ARG 5 AN 4 [ ] B R ) IR
ﬁﬁ%%u‘ﬁ%$%%§$ﬁ%ﬁ%
o M EFEF _HA=F—H $%
@E%#%ﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬂi%k » Slf7 48
SEHRAEHER L BE T _F
ERFE—JFEFFH=Z+—HILFEE
EIEARN B - BURSR PG S E) o

WG AN o A 4R 8] Y 5 R B A W B A ST
o ORI B B e R W wEOR A
h%ﬁ%&%ﬁ%% b o At > HHE
J& (G456 R B B B e B 4 R A
TH#F) B HERAEBREE RN
A T LM RE &S EAT A =L
AF G 78 R A5 R B JB 2 ) 6995 RE R (191
W< R I K& (MTBOEIR) BLAT) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 2% e A B i (#60)

31 December 2020 & —F4H+ - H =+—H

42. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

208

o> ) 0 B IR O

2020 2019
“ERORE —EFNE
Note HKS$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5E BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS k¥ Bh B
Property, plant and equipment ENN Y&
and right-of-use assets DA e fifi R 18,121 30,358
Investments in subsidiaries* w% NEGIESd g\* — 62,835
Deposits i 4 3,211 3,210
Total non-current assets FE LB AE 21,332 96,403
CURRENT ASSETS i) A
Loans receivable AR Wi B 3K 13,516 11,820
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFEE i i 2 ] K I 458,538 635,915
Prepayments, deposits and other TAATEIE ~ e X
receivables H At R WA SR R 44,483 55,596
Financial assets at fair value A REMEFABRRZ
through profit or loss & RE 6,333 9,779
Pledged bank deposits O KR T A7 3K 31,000 97,248
Cash and cash equivalents B4 KB &% EY 1,126 7,880
Total current assets ) A E A 554,996 818,238
CURRENT LIABILITIES it B A 5
Other payables and accruals Al R A R R & B ST 3,643 4,533
Amounts due to subsidiaries Wgﬁ- Bht Ja8 2wk IH 74,772 48,336
Lease liabilities & A fE 11,144 9,963
Promissory notes K B 143,553 185,000
Total current liabilities ) & EAEE 233,112 247,832
Net current assets I B = G RE I 321,884 570,406
Total assets less current liabilities B AR O B A 343,216 666,809
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  JF i B £ fif
Lease liabilities HEAE 5,240 15,470
NET ASSETS & A 337,976 651,339
EQUITY B 2
Share capital &N 31 118,487 118,487
Reserves fiti e 4= 219,489 532,852
TOTAL EQUITY HE 4 48 (8 337,976 651,339

This item was with an amount less than a thousand.

ZIHH SHOR—T -

Sun Lei Zhu Dong

#& k%

Executive Director Executive Director
HAT#H F HATHF

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 205 2 B i (460)

31 December 2020 —F —F4+—"H =+—H

42. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 42. ARl # R % (@)
FINANCIAL POSITION (continucd)

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: NN g g i (L N
Shares held
for share
Share award Share option Contributed Accumulated Total
premium scheme reserve surplus losses Equity
B 1 S I
iE (kR

B it ZWedr WEBCHEREM  EAENG  REDEE MERAM
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
WL W TOT W T W T W T W T

At 1 January 2019 RoE—fE—A—H 250,824 — — 594,404 (277,084) 568,144
Total comprehensive loss for the year A 2 T i 1 A - - - - (34,848) (34,848)
Vesting of shares of share award scheme ety 45 Bt B A0 R B - (444) - - - (444)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January R-ZF—NE+ZA

2020 Z=t—HkK
Rl
—H—H 250,824 (444) — 594,404 (311,932) 532,852
Total comprehensive loss for the year AR B 4 T e PR AR - - - - (312,923) (312,923)
Vesting of shares of share award scheme R0 58 T 3 i - (9,732) - - - 9,732)
Vesting of share option scheme i e T 5 - - 9,292 - - 9,292
Transfer of share option reserve upon the T I A 952 M ok 2 2
forfeiture or expiry of share options L A e - - (3,937) — 3,937 -
At 31 December 2020 "
+ZA=+—H 250,824 (10,176) 5,355 594,404 (620,918) 219,489
43. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 43. LR B
Certain comparative figures, including revenue, interest T BT (IR ~ FLEIA ~
income, loans reccivable, deposits and other receivables, have W B K > 4% 4 R H A B i iR 3K B 4
been reclassified to conform with the current period’s B AEAREY] - EEGRR » %25
presentation. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, this B R iz B A 4R [ 1 BA RS SR B S BABSIR UL -

presentation better reflects the financial performance and
position of the Group.

44. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 44, b A B 3R
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for MBEREFE R " F _—F=H=1+H#
issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2021. 2 L v RN B 0 o

20204 ¥ AZEMERARL A 209



210

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A S0 B

For the year ended 31 December

BE+ H=+—HIL4#E

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“ERORE ZF-NF ZF-)NE ZF—EF ZF-ARF
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T T T T i v T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(K5 (KT 51)
RESULTS ES
Revenue A 298,230 513,646 410,045 348,449 407,511
Other income and gains/ HAb WA K&
(losses), net Iz ﬁ/(gﬂﬁ)
fEix (82,704) 77,671 12,402 25,033 7,185
Profit/ (loss) from meEmA,
operations (f18) (201,327) 63,722 18,903 (15,210) (4,734)
Finance costs il B AR (18,837) (15,377) (236) — —
Impairment of goodwill [EE2CAE (99,890) (9,195) — — —
(Provision)/reversal of Lt B oS B K
provision for BAEEE
impairment loss on (ﬁ‘ﬂ%)/ﬁé%
other receivables f ) (1,989) (1,515) 3,600 — —
Impairment loss on ERN Y
property, plant and AR DA K fi A
equipment and & 7 W E
right-of-use assets g (25,334) — — (37) (22,910)
Impairment loss on Y& 7 W E
intangible assets g (35) (279) _ T o
Reversal of impairment/ JRE i B i (L
(provision) for Ji 18 8
impairment loss on 1 @/(%ﬂ%)
loans receivable 2,019 (5,302) — — —
Reversal of provision s 18 A 4 1 Al 13
onerous contracts, net m] 35 %;E\ _ - 545 13,910 (14,455)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BB (),
BEFORE BH
TAXATION (345,393) 32,054 22,812 (1,337) (42,099)
Income tax credit/ iis ﬁl‘ﬁ.jﬁﬁa/
(expense) (B 32) 1,420 (11,288) (6,555) (6,190) (25)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR  A4EJE () /
THE YEAR B (343,973) 20,766 16,257 (7,527 (42,124)
Attributable to: FEAG T -
Owners of the Company A4 A HEA A (343,973) 20,766 16,257 (6,577) (45,260)
Non-controlling interests I 12 PR i - - - (950) 3,136
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR  ARAEJE () /
THE YEAR B (343,973) 20,766 16,257 (7,527) (42,124)

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2020



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A i 5 B
At 31 December
BR+ZH=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
CRORE TNE SF-NE FE-LFE DT AE
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
wHT T it AT it AT it AT it AT
(Restated) (Restated)
(4T 51)) (4 51))
ASSETS AND kAR
LIABILITIES
Property, plant and ERN =Y
equipment and i LA &
right-of-use assets fiff FHE G 22,783 61,330 40,751 15,491 13,629
Goodwill R 78,554 178,444 217,176 40,770 —
Intangible assets Y& 49,644 58,919 68,525 — —
Non-current ﬁ’ﬁ I/E\ }ﬁﬁ
prepayments, deposits s ﬁﬂﬁg llﬁ(
and other receivables MR 13,881 5,135 24,843 3,218 1,523
Financial assets at fair /TN ﬁigiﬁ%)\
value through profit or Hi5 2 S/
loss B 95,043 167,452 — — —
Loans receivable R Wit B — 42,869 56,165 26,400 —
Deferred tax assets iR LR A & — 1,265 4,252 7,042 10,393
Net current assets B EEFE 142,561 276,996 350,393 428,964 475,427
Total assets less current & A
liabilities mE A fE 402,466 792,410 735,940 495 485 500,972
Interest-bearing &t h5s 3
borrowings — (39,608) — — —
Non-current lease JE BN A
liabilities (7,773) (15,904) (3,289) (590) —
Deferred tax liabilities JHA R (7,459) (15,043) (10,557) (194) (138)
NET ASSETS &R 387,234 721,855 722,094 494,701 500,834
EQUITY e i
Share capital [i&N 118,487 118,487 118,487 99,737 99,737
Reserves i & 268,747 603,368 603,607 386,694 391,877
Total equity attributable KNTHER N
to owners of the fhhE 25 2B
Company 387,234 721,855 722,094 486,431 491,614
Non-controlling interests I P2 B HE 23 - - - 8,270 9,220
TOTAL EQUITY HE £ A8 387,234 721,855 722,094 494,701 500,834

2020 4 ¥
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY
AN g

BOARD OF DIRECTORS # H &
Non-executive Director JEHfTH F

Dr. MA Weihua (Chairman)
SR L (L)

Executive Directors ¥l17 # 3

Mr. XU Peixin

TR ke A4

Mr. SUN Lei (Chief Executive Officer)
BT (1T #)

Mr. ZHU Dong (Chief Financial Officer)

RESEE (HMEE)

Independent Non-executive Directors
WorJEPUATE H

Dr. QI Daqing

VDNt

Mr. CHEN Yigong

Bk IR L5 A

Mr. FENG Zhonghua

W e

COMPANY SECRETARY 2 7] b &

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Fun
Rt

REGISTRARS J% 25 &5 il 2
Hong Kong %E/’#

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 17121716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
R E A RA A
AT 2 5 RE A 183 98

Gt 7#I712-1716%E

Bermuda H 52

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North, Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE
R Y

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
FERERME

Address: 6th Floor, 18 King Wah Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2165 3000

Facsimile:  (852) 2165 3001

Website: http://www.bison.com.hk
Hohk T AL A i 18 R e M
CoE (852) 2165 3000

B - (852) 2165 3001

Hufi http://www.bison.com.hk

AUDITORS #% 8 fif

Ernst & Young

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue,
Central, Hong Kong
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